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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM I - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

June 30, December 31,
2010 2009

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 166,604 $ 344,150
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks 675,891 262,017
Investment securities trading 0 200
Investment securities available-for-sale, at market value (cost $482,129 at June 30,
2010 and $454,953 at December 31, 2009) 503,404 471,002
Investment securities held-to-maturity (market value $18,274 at June 30, 2010 and
$18,590 at December 31, 2009) 17,601 18,115
Other investments 86,509 89,830
Loans held for sale 11,946 6,413
Loans:
Commercial 749,522 800,261
Real estate-construction 197,112 253,223
Real estate-commercial 1,113,836 1,079,628
Real estate-residential 296,295 321,047
Installment 75,862 82,989
Home equity 332,928 328,940
Credit card 28,567 29,027
Lease financing 15 14
Total loans, excluding covered loans 2,794,137 2,895,129
Less
Allowance for loan and lease losses 57,811 59,311
Net loans - uncovered 2,736,326 2,835,818
Covered loans 1,712,441 1,929,549
Less
Allowance for loan and lease losses 1,273 0
Net loans – covered 1,711,168 1,929,549
Net loans 4,447,494 4,765,367
Premises and equipment 114,630 107,351
Goodwill 51,908 51,908
Other intangibles 6,614 7,461
FDIC indemnification asset 280,266 316,040
Accrued interest and other assets 244,298 241,269
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,607,165 $ 6,681,123

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Interest-bearing $ 1,135,970 $ 1,060,383
Savings 1,350,161 1,231,081
Time 2,042,824 2,229,500
Total interest-bearing deposits 4,528,955 4,520,964
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Noninterest-bearing 718,381 829,676
Total deposits 5,247,336 5,350,640
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 38,299 37,430
Long-term debt 384,775 404,716
Other long-term debt 20,620 20,620
Accrued interest and other liabilities 209,370 192,550
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,900,400 6,005,956

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock - $1,000 par value Authorized - 80,000 shares Outstanding - 0 shares in
2010 and 80,000 shares in 2009 0 79,195
Common stock - no par value Authorized - 160,000,000 shares Issued - 68,730,731
shares in 2010 and 62,358,614 shares in 2009 578,362 490,532
Retained earnings 317,213 301,328
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7,831) (10,487)
Treasury stock, at cost, 10,668,076 shares in 2010 and 10,924,793 shares in 2009 (180,979) (185,401)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 706,765 675,167
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 6,607,165 $ 6,681,123

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

1
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FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009
Interest income
Loans, including fees $ 74,944 $ 33,978 $ 154,282 $ 67,635
Investment securities
Taxable 5,444 8,023 10,840 16,713
Tax-exempt 245 386 480 820
Total investment securities interest 5,689 8,409 11,320 17,533
Other earning assets 5,305 0 10,895 0
Total interest income 85,938 42,387 176,497 85,168
Interest expense
Deposits 15,308 9,080 30,956 18,883
Short-term borrowings 17 527 36 1,034
Long-term borrowings 2,556 1,251 5,113 2,557
Subordinated debentures and capital securities 319 320 634 557
Total interest expense 18,200 11,178 36,739 23,031
Net interest income 67,738 31,209 139,758 62,137
Provision for loan and lease losses - uncovered 6,158 10,358 17,536 14,617
Provision for loan and lease losses - covered 254 0 254 0
Net interest income after provision for loan and lease
losses 61,326 20,851 121,968 47,520

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts 5,855 4,289 11,466 8,368
Trust and wealth management fees 3,668 3,253 7,213 6,542
Bankcard income 2,102 1,422 4,070 2,713
Net gains from sales of loans 473 408 642 792
Excess income earned on covered loans 7,408 0 13,506 0
Gains on sales of investment securities 0 3,349 0 3,349
Income (loss) on preferred securities 0 112 (30) 123
Other 5,790 1,264 7,797 4,243
Total noninterest income 25,296 14,097 44,664 26,130

Noninterest expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 29,513 16,223 59,754 33,876
Net occupancy 5,340 2,653 13,462 5,470
Furniture and equipment 2,514 1,851 4,787 3,653
Data processing 1,136 794 2,368 1,612
Marketing 1,600 700 2,674 1,340
Communication 822 669 2,030 1,340
Professional services 2,446 1,254 4,189 2,207
State intangible tax 1,426 648 2,757 1,316
FDIC expense 1,907 3,424 3,917 3,706
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Proportionate share of covered loan losses 3,538 0 5,430 0
Acquisition and integration costs 2,178 426 4,809 426
Other 6,936 4,154 15,333 7,784
Total noninterest expenses 59,356 32,796 121,510 62,730
Income before income taxes 27,266 2,152 45,122 10,920
Income tax expense 9,492 702 15,750 3,735
Net income 17,774 1,450 29,372 7,185
Dividends on preferred stock 0 1,000 1,865 1,578
Net income available to common shareholders $ 17,774 $ 450 $ 27,507 $ 5,607

Net earnings per common share - basic: $ 0.31 $ 0.01 $ 0.49 $ 0.14
Net earnings per common share - diluted: $ 0.30 $ 0.01 $ 0.48 $ 0.14
Cash dividends declared per share $ 0.10 $ 0.10 $ 0.20 $ 0.20
Average basic shares outstanding 57,539,901 40,734,254 56,356,877 38,928,557
Average diluted shares outstanding 58,604,039 41,095,949 57,365,322 39,458,443

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

2
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FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited, dollars in thousands)

Six months ended
June 30,

2010 2009
Operating activities
Net income $ 29,372 $ 7,185
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Provision for loan and lease losses 17,790 14,617
Provision for depreciation and amortization 5,540 3,805
Stock-based compensation expense 1,322 1,394
Pension expense 950 555
Net amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on investment securities 534 764
Gains on sales of investment securities 0 (3,349)
Loss (income) on trading securities 30 (123)
Originations of loans held for sale (47,612) (94,266)
Net gains from sales of loans held for sale (642) (792)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 42,722 92,675
Deferred income taxes (3,459) 11,046
Decrease in interest receivable 3,836 937
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance (822) (69)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 1,205 (597)
Decrease in indemnification asset 36,792 0
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 9,552 (81)
Increase (decrease) in interest payable 2,599 (1,298)
Contribution to pension plan 0 (30,800)
Other 5,689 (13,483)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 105,398 (11,880)
Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 0 152,720
Proceeds from calls, paydowns and maturities of securities available-for-sale 72,683 95,413
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (100,395) (113,014)
Proceeds from calls, paydowns and maturities of securities held-to-maturity 567 430
Purchases of securities held-to-maturity (51) 0
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits with other banks (413,874) (6,591)
Net decrease (increase) in loans and leases, excluding covered loans 66,443 (225,238)
Net decrease in covered assets 220,534 0
Proceeds from disposal of other real estate owned 2,842 2,565
Purchases of premises and equipment (12,277) (5,546)
Net cash used in investing activities (163,528) (99,261)
Financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in total deposits (103,304) 8,328
Net increase in short-term borrowings 869 2,244
Payments on long-term borrowings (16,881) (12,256)
Cash dividends paid on common stock (10,925) (10,119)
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock (1,100) (1,578)
Redemption of preferred stock (80,000) 0
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Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 91,192 98,125
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 235 0
Excess tax benefit (liability) on share-based compensation 498 (191)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (119,416) 84,553
Cash and cash equivalents:
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (177,546) (26,588)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 344,150 100,935
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 166,604 $ 74,347

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

3
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FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Unaudited, dollars in thousands except per share data)

Preferred Preferred Common Common
Accumulated

other
Stock Stock Stock Stock Retainedcomprehensive Treasury stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount earnings
income
(loss) Shares Amount Total

Balances at
January 1, 2009 80,000 $ 78,019 48,558,614 $ 394,169 $ 76,339 $ (11,905) (11,077,413) $ (188,295) $ 348,327
Net income 7,185 7,185
Unrealized
holding gains
(losses) on
securities
available-for-sale
arising during the
period 609 609
Change in
retirement
obligation 360 360
Unrealized loss on
derivatives-Prime
Swap market
value adj. (238) (238)
Unrealized loss on
derivatives-Trust
Preferred Swap
market value adj. 474 474
Total
comprehensive
income 8,390
Issuance of
common stock 13,800,000 98,125 98,125
Cash dividends
declared :
Common stock at
$0.20 per share (7,507) (7,507)
Preferred stock (1,578) (1,578)
Discount on
preferred stock 154 (154) 0
Excess tax
liability on
share-based
compensation (191) (191)
Restricted stock
awards, net of
forfeitures (3,205) 153,145 2,881 (324)
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Share-based
compensation
expense 1,394 1,394
Balances at June
30, 2009 80,000 78,173 62,358,614 490,292 74,285 (10,700) (10,924,268) (185,414) 446,636

Balances at
January 1, 2010 80,000 79,195 62,358,614 490,532 301,328 (10,487) (10,924,793) (185,401) 675,167
Net income 29,372 29,372
Unrealized
holding gains on
securities
available-for-sale
arising during the
period 3,153 3,153
Change in
retirement
obligation 824 824
Unrealized loss on
derivatives-Prime
Swap market
value adj. (239) (239)
Unrealized loss on
derivatives-Trust
Preferred Swap
market value adj. (999) (999)
Foreign Currency
Exchange (83) (83)
Total
comprehensive
income 32,028
Issuance of
common stock 6,372,117 91,192 91,192
Preferred
stock-CPP payoff (80,000) (79,235) (79,235)
Cash dividends
declared :
Common stock at
$0.20 per share (11,582) (11,582)
Preferred stock (1,100) (1,100)
Discount on
preferred stock 40 (805) (765)
Excess tax benefit
on share-based
compensation 498 498
Exercise of stock
options, net of
shares purchased (1,551) 75,446 1,383 (168)
Restricted stock
awards, net of
forfeitures (3,631) 181,271 3,039 (592)
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Share-based
compensation
expense 1,322 1,322
Balances at June
30, 2010 0 $ 0 68,730,731 $ 578,362 $ 317,213 $ (7,831) (10,668,076) $ (180,979) $ 706,765

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4
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FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010
(Unaudited)

The consolidated financial statements for interim periods are unaudited; however, in the opinion of the management of
First Financial Bancorp. (First Financial), all material adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments)
necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

NOTE 1:  BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The consolidated financial statements of First Financial, a bank holding company, include the accounts of First
Financial and its wholly-owned subsidiaries – First Financial Bank, N.A. and First Financial Capital Advisors LLC, a
registered investment advisor.  All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in
consolidation.  Certain reclassifications of prior periods’ amounts have been made to conform to current period’s
presentation and had no effect on previously reported net income amounts or financial condition.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual realized amounts could differ materially from those estimates.  These
interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X and serve to update the First Financial Bancorp. Annual Report on Form 10-K (Form 10-K) for the
year ended December 31, 2009.  These financial statements may not include all information and notes necessary to
constitute a complete set of financial statements under GAAP applicable to annual periods and accordingly should be
read in conjunction with the financial information contained in the Form 10-K.  Management believes these unaudited
consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal recurring nature which are necessary for a fair
presentation of the results for the interim periods presented.  The results of operations for the interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year or any other interim period.  The
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2009, has been derived from the audited financial statements in the
company’s 2009 Form 10-K.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) became effective July
1, 2009.  At that date, the ASC became the FASB’s officially recognized source of authoritative GAAP applicable to
all public and non-public non-governmental entities, superseding existing FASB, American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Emerging Issues Tax Force, and related literature.  Rules and interpretive releases of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the authority of federal securities laws are also sources of
authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants.  All other accounting literature is considered non-authoritative.  The change
to ASC affects the way companies refer to GAAP in financial statements and accounting policies.  Citing particular
content in the ASC involves specifying the unique numeric path to the content through the Topic, Subtopic, Section,
and Paragraph structure.

NOTE 2:  RECENTLY ADOPTED AND ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Effective January 1, 2010, First Financial adopted the amended guidance on the consolidation of variable interest
entities in ASC Topic 810.  This guidance affects all entities and enterprises currently within its scope, as well as
qualifying special purpose entities that were previously outside of its scope, and is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2009, with early adoption prohibited.  The adoption of this guidance did not have a material
impact on First Financial’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective January 1, 2010, First Financial adopted the amended guidance on derecognition on transfers of financial
assets in ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing.  This guidance removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpose
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entity and removes the exception from applying ASC Topic 810, Consolidations, to qualifying special-purpose
entities.  This guidance applies prospectively to transfers of financial assets occurring on or after the effective date
and was effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009, with early adoption prohibited.  The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material impact on First Financial’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective January 1, 2010, First Financial adopted the amended guidance on variable interest entities in ASC Topic
810-10. This guidance replaces the quantitative-based risks-and-rewards calculation for determining which reporting
entity, if any, has controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity with an approach focused on identifying
which reporting entity has (1) the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly
affect the entity’s economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses of, or the right to receive benefits
from, the entity. This guidance also requires additional disclosures about a reporting entity’s involvement with variable
interest entities and about any significant changes in risk exposure as a result of that involvement. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material impact on First Financial’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

5
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Effective January 1, 2010 First Financial adopted the amended guidance on fair value disclosures in ASC Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. This amended guidance requires disclosures about transfers into and out of
Levels 1 and 2 and separate disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements relating to Level 3
measurements. The guidance also clarifies existing fair value disclosures about the level of disaggregation and about
inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value and amends guidance on employers’ disclosures about
postretirement benefit plan assets under ASC Topic 715, Compensation – Post Retirement Benefits, to require that
disclosures be provided by classes of assets instead of by major categories of assets. This guidance was effective for
the first reporting period, including interim periods, beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the requirement to
provide the Level 3 activity of purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis, which will be effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim periods within those fiscal years. For further detail on
First Financial’s fair value measurements and disclosures, see Note 14 - Fair Value Disclosures.

In March 2010, the FASB issued an update (ASU No. 2010-11, Scope Exception Related to Embedded Credit
Derivatives) impacting FASB ASC 815-15, Derivatives and Hedging — Embedded Derivatives. The amendments
clarify the scope exception for embedded credit derivative features related to the transfer of credit risk in the form of
subordination of one financial instrument to another. This update became effective for First Financial for the interim
reporting period beginning after June 15, 2010 and did not have a material impact on First Financial’s consolidated
financial statements or results of operations.

In April 2010, the FASB issued an update (ASU No. 2010-18, Effect of a Loan Modification When the Loan Is Part of
a Pool That Is Accounted for as a Single Asset) impacting FASB ASC 310-30, Receivables — Loans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. Under the amendments, modifications of loans that are
accounted for within a pool do not result in the removal of those loans from the pool even if the modification of those
loans would otherwise be considered a troubled debt restructuring. An entity will continue to be required to consider
whether the pool of assets in which the loan is included is impaired if expected cash flows for the pool change. This
update became effective for First Financial for the interim reporting period beginning after June 15, 2010 and did not
have a material impact on First Financial’s consolidated financial statements or results of operations.

In July 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2010-20, Disclosure about the Credit Quality of
Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit losses. The new guidance will increase disclosures made about
the credit quality of loans and the allowance for credit losses. The disclosures will provide additional information
about the nature of credit risk inherent in First Financial’s loans, how credit risk is analyzed and assessed, and the
reasons for the change in the allowance for loan losses. The requirements will be effective for First Financial’s year
ended December 31, 2010. First Financial is still evaluating the potential impact to its consolidated financial
statements from the adoption of this guidance.

NOTE 3:  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
On July 31, 2009, First Financial Bank, N.A. (First Financial Bank), a wholly owned subsidiary of First Financial
Bancorp, entered into a purchase and assumption agreement (Peoples Agreement) with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), as receiver, pursuant to which First Financial acquired certain assets and assumed substantially
all of the deposits and certain liabilities of Peoples Community Bank (Peoples).

Prior to the acquisition, Peoples operated 19 banking centers in the Cincinnati, Ohio metropolitan area.  Excluding the
effects of purchase accounting adjustments, First Financial acquired $579.6 million in assets and assumed
approximately $520.8 million of the deposits of Peoples.

In connection with the Peoples acquisition, First Financial Bank entered into a loss sharing agreement with the FDIC
that covers $449.7 million of assets, based upon seller’s records, including single family residential mortgage loans,
commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans, and other real estate acquired through foreclosure
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(OREO), all of which are referred to collectively as covered assets.  First Financial acquired other Peoples assets that
are not covered by the loss sharing agreement with the FDIC including investment securities purchased at fair market
value and other tangible assets.  Pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing agreement, the covered assets are subject to a
stated loss threshold of $190.0 million whereby the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of losses of up to
$190.0 million, and 95% of losses in excess of this amount. First Financial will reimburse the FDIC for its share of
recoveries with respect to losses for which the FDIC paid First Financial a reimbursement under the loss sharing
agreement. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse First Financial for losses with respect to covered assets began with the
first dollar of loss incurred.

On September 18, 2009, First Financial Bank, N.A, entered into separate purchase and assumption agreements (Irwin
Agreements) with the FDIC, as receiver, pursuant to which First Financial acquired certain assets and assumed
substantially all of the deposits and certain liabilities of Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company (Irwin Union Bank)
and Irwin Union Bank, F.S.B. (Irwin FSB). Irwin Union Bank and Irwin FSB are collectively referred to herein as
Irwin.

6
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Prior to the acquisition, Irwin operated 27 banking centers primarily located in Indiana, with banking centers also
located in Michigan, Nevada, Arizona, California, Kentucky, Missouri, New Mexico and Utah. Excluding the effects
of purchase accounting adjustments, First Financial acquired $2.6 billion in assets and assumed approximately $2.5
billion of the deposits of Irwin.

In connection with the Irwin acquisitions, First Financial Bank entered into loss sharing agreements with the FDIC
that collectively cover approximately $2.2 billion of assets, based upon seller’s records, which include single family
residential mortgage loans, commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans (covered assets). First
Financial acquired other Irwin assets that are not covered by loss sharing agreements with the FDIC including
investment securities purchased at fair market value and other tangible assets. Pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing
agreements, the covered assets of Irwin Union Bank are subject to a stated loss threshold of $526.0 million whereby
the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of losses of up to $526.0 million, and 95% of losses in excess of this
amount. Also pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing agreements, the covered assets of Irwin FSB are subject to a
stated loss threshold of $110.0 million whereby the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of losses of up to
$110.0 million, and 95% of losses in excess of this amount. First Financial will reimburse the FDIC for its share of
recoveries with respect to losses for which the FDIC paid First Financial a reimbursement under the loss sharing
agreements. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse First Financial for losses with respect to covered assets began with the
first dollar of loss incurred.

The amounts covered by the loss sharing agreements are the pre-acquisition book values of the underlying covered
assets, the contractual balance of unfunded commitments that were acquired, and certain future net direct costs. The
loss sharing agreements applicable to single family residential mortgage loans provide for FDIC loss sharing and First
Financial reimbursement to the FDIC, in each case as described above, for ten years. The loss sharing agreements
applicable to all other covered assets provide for FDIC loss sharing for five years and First Financial reimbursement
of recoveries to the FDIC for eight years, in each case as described above.

The loss sharing agreements are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in agreements with the FDIC. The
expected reimbursements under the loss sharing agreements were recorded as indemnification assets at their estimated
fair values of $69.7 million and $248.9 million for the Peoples Agreement and the Irwin Agreements, respectively, on
the acquisition dates. The indemnification assets reflect the present value of the expected net cash reimbursement
related to the loss sharing agreements described above.

The estimated fair value of liabilities assumed exceeded the estimated fair value of assets acquired in the Peoples
acquisition, resulting in the recognition of goodwill in the amount of approximately $18.1 million. In the Irwin
acquisition, the estimated fair value of assets acquired exceeded the estimated fair value of liabilities assumed,
resulting in a bargain purchase gain of $381.3 million and the recognition of a $239.8 million after-tax gain.

First Financial did not acquire the real estate, banking facilities, furniture and equipment of Peoples as part of the
purchase and assumption agreement but had the option to purchase these assets at fair market value from the FDIC.
This purchase option expired 90 days after acquisition date, but was extended by the FDIC. First Financial completed
a review of the former Peoples locations and notified the FDIC during the first quarter of 2010 of the company’s intent
to purchase certain properties for a combined purchase price of $7.9 million.  First Financial expects to complete the
acquisition of these properties in the third quarter of 2010.

First Financial has determined that the acquisitions of the net assets of Peoples and Irwin constitute business
combinations as defined by the FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations.  Accordingly, the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are presented at their fair values as required.  Fair values were determined based on the
requirements of FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements.  In many cases the determination of these fair
values required management to make estimates about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market conditions
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and other future events that are highly subjective in nature and subject to change.

Early in the fourth quarter of 2009, First Financial completed the technology conversion and operational integration of
Peoples.  The conversion of Irwin’s technology and operational systems was completed in the first quarter of
2010.  During the first quarter of 2010, in conjunction with the planning and product mapping of the Irwin technology
integration, First Financial determined that certain non-interest bearing, interest bearing and other savings accounts
products were ultimately classified in categories different than had been previously reported.  Based upon this updated
product level information, the previously reported deposit line items in the third and fourth quarters of 2009 have been
reclassified to reflect the classifications as shown in the first quarter 2010 reporting.  This reclassification did not
change the total amount of outstanding deposits in any reported period, only individual line items.

Estimated fair values are considered preliminary and, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, are subject to change
up to one year after the acquisition date.  This allows for adjustments to the initial purchase entries if additional
information relative to closing date fair values becomes available.  Material adjustments to acquisition date estimated
fair values are recorded in the period in which the acquisition occurred and, as a result, previously reported results are
subject to change.  Certain reclassifications of prior periods’ amounts may also be made to conform to the current
period’s presentation and would have no effect on previously reported net income amounts.

7
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First Financial made certain adjustments to the estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired in connection
with the Irwin acquisitions during the second quarter of 2010 based on new information.  As the adjustments were
determined to be immaterial in the aggregate, the adjustments were recorded in the second quarter.  These adjustments
resulted in a $2.3 million pre-tax increase to the bargain purchase gain on the Irwin acquisitions and are included in
the updated, summary table below.

Until First Financial and the FDIC conduct a final settlement for the Peoples and Irwin transactions, the determination
of which assets and liabilities are ultimately acquired or assumed by First Financial cannot be completed. The
estimated fair values for the purchased impaired and nonimpaired loans were based upon the FDIC’s estimated data for
acquired loans. First Financial anticipates the final settlement for the Peoples and Irwin transactions will be completed
in the third quarter of 2010.  In addition, the tax treatment of FDIC assisted acquisitions is complex and subject to
interpretations that may result in future adjustments of deferred taxes as of the acquisition dates.

Peoples Irwin
As

Recorded Fair Value
As

Recorded
As

Recorded Fair Value As Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) by FDIC Adjustments by FFB by FDIC Adjustments by FFB

Assets
Cash and interest-bearing
deposits $ 87,158 $ 0 $ 87,158 $ 158,786 $ 0 $ 158,786
Investment securities 37,681 0 37,681 70,700 0 70,700

0
Covered loans 431,217 (106,751) 324,466 2,237,158 (484,265) 1,752,893
Total loans 431,217 (106,751) 324,466 2,237,158 (484,265) 1,752,893

Goodwill (Bargain Purchase) 0 18,106 18,106 0 (381,349) (381,349)
Core deposit intangible 0 1,820 1,820 0 3,326 3,326
Covered other real estate
owned 18,457 (7,728) 10,729 796 0 796
FDIC indemnification asset 0 69,657 69,657 0 248,916 248,916
Other assets 5,115 (4,695) 420 106,073 (26,132) 79,941
Total assets acquired $ 579,628 $ (29,591) $ 550,037 2,573,513 $ (639,504) $ 1,934,009

Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing deposit
accounts $ 49,424 $ 0 $ 49,424 $ 300,859 $ 0 $ 300,859
Interest-bearing deposit
accounts 0 0 0 741,525 0 741,525
Savings deposits 168,220 0 168,220 79,987 0 79,987
Time deposits 303,135 0 303,135 1,376,076 0 1,376,076
Total deposits 520,779 0 520,779 2,498,447 0 2,498,447

Advances from Federal Home
Loan Banks 58,940 4,598 63,538 337,433 17,685 355,118
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 344 0 344 32,638 0 32,638
Total liabilities assumed $ 580,063 $ 4,598 $ 584,661 $ 2,868,518 $ 17,685 $ 2,886,203
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Due from FDIC for net
liabilities assumed $ 435 $ 34,189 $ 34,624 $ 295,005 $ 657,189 $ 952,194

The following is a description of the methods used to determine the fair values of significant assets and liabilities
presented above.

Cash and due from banks and interest-bearing deposits in banks and the Federal Reserve – The carrying amount of
these assets is a reasonable estimate of fair value based on the short-term nature of these assets.

Investment Securities – Investment securities were acquired from the FDIC at fair market value which was their quoted
market prices at the time of acquisition.

8
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Covered loans – Fair values for covered loans were based on a discounted cash flow methodology that considered
factors including the type of loan and related collateral, classification status, fixed or variable interest rate, loan term
and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and current discount rates.  The discount rates used for loans are based on
current market rates for new originations of comparable loans and include adjustments for liquidity concerns. The
discount rate does not include a factor for credit losses as that has been included in the estimated cash flows.  Fair
values of covered loans include both a rate-based valuation mark, representing the carrying value discount required to
establish the appropriate effective yield for covered loans, as well as a credit-based valuation mark representing the
valuation adjustment applied to covered loans related to credit loss assumptions.

Core deposit intangible – This intangible asset represents the value of the relationships that Peoples and Irwin had with
its deposit customers. The fair value of this intangible asset was estimated based on a discounted cash flow
methodology that gave appropriate consideration to expected customer attrition rates, cost of the deposit base, and the
net maintenance cost attributable to customer deposits.

Covered other real estate owned – Covered OREO is presented at the estimated present value that management expects
to receive when the property is sold, net of related costs of disposal.

FDIC indemnification asset – This loss sharing asset is measured separately from the related covered assets as it is not
contractually embedded in the covered assets and is not transferable with the covered assets should First Financial
choose to dispose of them. Fair value was estimated using projected cash flows related to the loss sharing agreements
based on the expected reimbursements for losses and the applicable loss sharing percentages.  These cash flows were
discounted to reflect the uncertainty of the timing and receipt of the loss sharing reimbursement from the FDIC.

Deposits – The fair values used for the demand and savings deposits that comprise the transaction accounts acquired,
by definition equal the amount payable on demand at the acquisition date.  No fair value adjustment was applied for
time deposits as First Financial was provided with the option, upon acquisition, to reset deposit rates to market rates
currently offered.

Advances from Federal Home Loan Banks – The fair values of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances were based
on contractual pre-payment penalties that are determined by the FHLB.

NOTE 4:  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill are shown below.  No changes to goodwill were recorded for 2010.

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 28,261
Goodwill acquired:
Peoples Community Bank 18,107
Branch Acquisition 5,540
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 51,908

Assets and liabilities of acquired entities are recorded at their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date and are
subject to refinement for up to one year as information relative to the fair values of that data becomes available. The
change in the goodwill for 2009 was a result of the purchase accounting adjustments related to the FDIC-assisted
transaction in July of 2009 for Peoples Community Bank and the August of 2009 purchase of three branches, and
related loans and deposits, from Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company.  First Financial expects all the goodwill
resulting from the acquisitions described above to be deductible for tax purposes.
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Goodwill is not amortized, but is measured for impairment on an annual basis as of October 1 of each year or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may be below its carrying
value. First Financial performed its annual impairment test as of October 1, 2009, and determined that no impairment
was indicated.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets consist of mortgage servicing rights, core deposit intangibles, and insurance expirations.
Intangible assets, excluding servicing rights, are primarily amortized on an accelerated basis over their estimated
useful lives and have an estimated weighted average life of 9.3 years.

9
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Other intangible assets consisted of the following:

June 30, 2010
Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Amortization Amount
Core deposit intangibles $ 5,691 $ (1,000) $ 4,691
Mortgage servicing rights 2,065 (264) 1,801
Other 178 (56) 122
Total other intangible assets $ 7,934 $ (1,320) $ 6,614

December 31, 2009
Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Amortization Amount
Core deposit intangibles $ 5,691 $ (332) $ 5,359
Mortgage servicing rights 2,072 (96) 1,976
Other 178 (52) 126
Total other intangible assets $ 7,941 $ (480) $ 7,461

Mortgage Servicing Rights
Changes in capitalized mortgage servicing rights are summarized as follows:

June 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of year $ 1,976 $ 398
Rights capitalized 0 0
Amortization (175) (63)
Rights sold 0 0
Balance at end of period $ 1,801 $ 335

Due to the acquisition of Irwin Union Bank in 2009, First Financial acquired $1.9 million in servicing rights.  No new
servicing rights were capitalized.

The estimated fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights was $1.8 million at June 30, 2010, and $2.0 million
at December 31, 2009.

NOTE 5:  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
In the normal course of business, First Financial offers a variety of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk to
its clients to aid them in meeting their requirements for liquidity and credit enhancement. These financial instruments
include standby letters of credit and outstanding commitments outstanding to extend credit.  U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles do not require these financial instruments to be recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
Consolidated Statements of Income, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.  Following is a discussion of these transactions.

First Financial’s exposure to credit loss, in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument
for standby letters of credit, and outstanding commitments to extend credit, is represented by the contractual amounts
of those instruments.  First Financial uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations
as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.
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Standby letters of credit – These transactions are conditional commitments issued by First Financial to guarantee the
performance of a client to a third party.  First Financial’s portfolio of standby letters of credit consists primarily of
performance assurances made on behalf of clients who have a contractual commitment to produce or deliver goods or
services.  The risk to First Financial arises from its obligation to make payment in the event of the clients’ contractual
default to produce the contracted good or service to a third party.  First Financial has issued standby letters of credit
aggregating $28.4 million and $22.9 million at June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, respectively.
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Management conducts regular reviews of these instruments on an individual client basis and does not anticipate any
material losses as a result of these letters of credit.

Loan commitments – Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a client as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the commitment.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  First
Financial evaluates each client’s creditworthiness on an individual basis.  The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by First Financial upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
counterparty.  The collateral held varies, but may include securities, real estate, inventory, plant, or equipment.  First
Financial had commitments outstanding to extend credit totaling $1.0 billion at June 30, 2010, and $1.1 billion at
December 31, 2009.

Contingencies/Litigation – We and our subsidiaries are from time to time engaged in various matters of litigation, other
assertions of improper or fraudulent loan practices or lending violations, and other matters, and we have a number of
unresolved claims pending. In addition, as part of the ordinary course of business, we and our subsidiaries are parties
to litigation involving claims to the ownership of funds in particular accounts, the collection of delinquent accounts,
challenges to security interests in collateral, and foreclosure interests, that is incidental to our regular business
activities. While the ultimate liability with respect to these other litigation matters and claims cannot be determined at
this time, we believe that damages, if any, and other amounts relating to pending matters are not likely to be material
to our consolidated financial position or results of operations. Reserves are established for these various matters of
litigation, when appropriate under FASB ASC Topic 450, Contingencies, based in part upon the advice of legal
counsel.

NOTE 6:  INVESTMENTS
The following is a summary of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment securities as of June 30, 2010.

Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale
Amortized UnrealizedUnrealized Market Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries $ 13,808 $ 386 $ 0 $ 14,194 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Securities of U.S.
government agencies and
corporations 0 0 0 0 110,043 1,819 0 111,862
Mortgage-backed
securities 134 5 0 139 345,896 18,904 (83) 364,717
Obligations of state and
other political
subdivisions 3,659 282 0 3,941 16,685 289 (89) 16,885
Other securities 0 0 0 0 9,505 435 0 9,940
Total $ 17,601 $ 673 $ 0 $ 18,274 $ 482,129 $ 21,447 $ (172) $ 503,404

The following is a summary of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment securities as of December 31, 2009.

Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale
AmortizedUnrealizedUnrealized Market Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasuries $ 13,857 $ 204 $ (31) $ 14,030 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

0 0 0 0 20,036 585 0 20,621
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Securities of U.S.
government agencies and
corporations
Mortgage-backed
securities 149 1 0 150 407,221 15,407 (369) 422,259
Obligations of state and
other political
subdivisions 4,109 301 0 4,410 17,949 303 (130) 18,122
Other securities 0 0 0 0 9,747 266 (13) 10,000
Total $ 18,115 $ 506 $ (31) $ 18,590 $ 454,953 $ 16,561 $ (512) $ 471,002
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The following is a summary of debt investment securities by estimated maturity as of June 30, 2010.

Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale
Amortized

Cost
Market
Value

Amortized
Cost

Market
Value

Due in one year or less $ 4,173 $ 4,197 $ 11,110 $ 11,415
Due after one year
through five years 12,206 12,725 364,316 381,322
Due after five years
through ten years 338 377 81,703 84,682
Due after ten years 884 975 25,000 25,985
     Total $ 17,601 $ 18,274 $ 482,129 $ 503,404

The following tables present the age of gross unrealized losses and associated fair value by investment category.

June 30, 2010
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Dollars in thousands) Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

U.S. Treasuries $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Mortgage-backed securities 963 8 1,387 75 2,350 83
Obligations of state and other
political subdivisions 750 6 1,577 83 2,327 89
   Total $ 1,713 $ 14 $ 2,964 $ 158 $ 4,677 $ 172

December 31, 2009
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Dollars in thousands) Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

U.S. Treasuries $ 2,277 $ 31 $ 0 $ 0 $ 2,277 $ 31
Mortgage-backed securities 23,800 266 1,608 103 25,408 369
Obligations of state and other
political subdivisions 621 10 1,540 120 2,161 130
Other securities 312 13 0 0 312 13
   Total $ 27,010 $ 320 $ 3,148 $ 223 $ 30,158 $ 543

Unrealized losses on debt securities are generally due to higher current market yields relative to the yields of the debt
securities at their amortized cost.  Unrealized losses due to credit risk associated with the underlying collateral of the
debt security, if any, are not material.  All securities with unrealized losses are reviewed quarterly to determine if any
impairment is other than temporary, requiring a write-down to fair market value. First Financial considers the
percentage loss on a security, duration of the loss, average life or duration of the security, credit rating of the security,
as well as payment performance and the company’s intent and ability to hold the security to maturity when determining
whether any impairment is other than temporary. At this time First Financial does not intend to sell, and it is not more
likely than not that the Company will be required to sell, debt security issues temporarily impaired prior to maturity or
recovery of book value. First Financial had no other than temporary impairment charges for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2010.
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First Financial had trading securities with a fair value of $0 at June 30, 2010, $0.2 million at December 31, 2009, and
$0.2 million at June 30, 2009.  For further detail on the fair value of investment securities, see Note 14 – Fair Value
Disclosures.

NOTE 7:  DERIVATIVES
The use of derivative instruments allows First Financial to meet the needs of its clients while managing the
interest-rate risk associated with certain transactions.  First Financial’s board of directors has authorized the use of
certain derivative products, including interest rate caps, floors, and swaps.  First Financial does not use derivatives for
speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are not designated as hedges.

The following table summarizes the derivative financial instruments utilized by First Financial by the nature of the
underlying asset or liability:

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009 June 30, 2009
Fair ValueCash Flow Fair ValueCash Flow Fair ValueCash Flow

(Dollars in thousands) Hedges Hedges Total Hedges Hedges Total Hedges Hedges Total
Instruments
associated with:
Loans $ 490,962 $ 0 $ 490,962 $ 456,077 $ 0 $ 456,077 $ 404,217 $ 0 $ 404,217
Other long-term debt 0 20,000 20,000 0 20,000 20,000 0 20,000 20,000
Total notional value $ 490,962 $ 20,000 $ 510,962 $ 456,077 $ 20,000 $ 476,077 $ 404,217 $ 20,000 $ 424,217

While authorized to use a variety of derivative products, First Financial primarily utilizes interest rate swaps as a
means to offer borrowers products that meet their needs and may from time to time utilize interest rate swaps to
manage the macro interest rate risk profile of the company. These agreements establish the basis on which interest rate
payments are exchanged with counterparties and are referred to as the notional amount. As only interest rate payments
are exchanged, cash requirements and credit risk are significantly less than the notional amount and the company’s
credit risk exposure is limited to the market value of the instrument.

First Financial manages this market value credit risk through counterparty credit policies. These policies require the
company to maintain a total derivative notional position of less than 35 percent of assets, total credit exposure of less
than 3 percent of capital, and no single counterparty credit risk exposure greater than $20 million. The company is
currently well below all single counterparty and portfolio limits. At June 30, 2010, the company had a total
counterparty notional amount outstanding of approximately $276.4 million, spread among six counterparties, with an
outstanding liability from these contracts of $10.5 million.

In connection with its use of derivative instruments, First Financial from time to time is required to post cash
collateral with its counterparties to offset its market position.  Derivative collateral balances were $12.9 million, $11.2
million, and $5.8 million at June 30, 2010, December 31, 2009, and June 30, 2009, respectively. First Financial
classifies the derivative cash collateral outstanding with its counterparties as an adjustment to the fair value of the
derivative contracts within accrued interest and other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table summarizes the derivative financial instruments utilized by First Financial and their balances:

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009 June 30, 2009
Balance Notional Estimated Fair Value Notional Estimated Fair Value Notional Estimated Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands) Sheet Location Amount Gain Loss Amount Gain Loss Amount Gain Loss
Fair Value Hedges
Pay fixed interest rate
swaps with

Accrued
interest and

$ 21,842 $ 0 $ (2,597) $ 22,559 $ 0 $ (1,928) $ 23,085 $ 0 $ (2,071)
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counterparty other liabilities

Matched interest rate
swaps with borrower

Accrued
interest and
other assets 234,560 16,791 0 216,759 10,226 (32) 190,566 10,085 (91)

Matched interest rate
swaps with
counterparty

Accrued
interest and
other liabilities 234,560 0 (17,566) 216,759 32 (10,661) 190,566 91 $ (9,738)

Cash Flow Hedge

Trust Preferred Swap

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
income (loss) 20,000 0 (578) 20,000 998 0 20,000 745 0

Total $ 510,962 $ 16,791 $ (20,741) $ 476,077 $ 11,256 $ (12,621) $ 424,217 $ 10,921 $ (11,900)
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The following table details the derivative financial instruments, the average remaining maturities and the
weighted-average interest rates being paid and received by First Financial at June 30, 2010:

Average
Notional Maturity Fair Weighted-Average Rate

(Dollars in thousands) Value (years) Value Receive Pay
Asset conversion swaps
Pay fixed interest rate swaps with
counterparty $ 21,842 5.5 $ (2,597) 2.34% 6.83%
Receive fixed, matched interest rate swaps
with borrower 234,560 4.6 16,791 6.33% 2.94%
Pay fixed, matched interest rate swaps with
counterparty 234,560 4.6 (17,566) 2.94% 6.33%
Total asset conversion swaps $ 490,962 4.7 $ (3,372) 4.53% 4.74%

Liability conversion swaps
Trust Preferred Swap $ 20,000 8.8 $ (578) 3.63% 6.20%
Total liability conversion swaps $ 20,000 8.8 $ (578) 3.63% 6.20%

Total swap portfolio $ 510,962 4.8 $ (3,950) 4.50% 4.82%

The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative and the
resulting designation.  Derivatives used to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset, liability, or firm
commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges.  Derivatives
used to hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are
considered cash flow hedges.

Fair Value Hedges - First Financial utilizes interest rate swaps as a means to offer commercial borrowers products that
meet their needs, but are also designed to achieve First Financial’s desired interest rate risk profile at the time.  The fair
value hedge swap agreements generally involve the net receipt by First Financial of floating-rate amounts in exchange
for net payments by First Financial, through its loan clients, of fixed-rate amounts over the life of the agreements
without an exchange of the underlying principal or notional amount.  This results in First Financial’s loan customers
receiving fixed rate funding, while providing First Financial with a floating rate asset.  The net interest receivable or
payable on the interest rate swaps is accrued and recognized as an adjustment to the interest income or interest
expense of the hedged item.  The fair value of the interest rate swaps is included within accrued interest and other
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  The corresponding fair-value adjustment is also included on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets in the carrying value of the hedged item.  Derivative gains and losses not considered
effective in hedging the change in fair value of the hedged item are recognized immediately in income.  The following
table details the location and amounts recognized for fair value hedges:

Decrease to Interest Income
(Dollars in thousands) Three Months Ended
Derivatives in fair
value Location of change in fair value June 30

December
31 June 30

hedging relationships derivative 2010 2009 2009
Interest Rate
Contracts

Loans Interest Income - Loans $ (251) $ (253) $ (251)
Total $ (251) $ (253) $ (251)
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Decrease to Interest Income
Six Months Ended

Derivatives in fair
value Location of change in fair value June 30, June 30,
hedging relationships derivative 2010 2009
Interest Rate
Contracts

Loans Interest Income - Loans $ (511) $ (503)
Total $ (511) $ (503)

Cash Flow Hedges – First Financial utilizes interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges to manage the
variability of cash flows, primarily net interest income, attributable to changes in interest rates.  The net interest
receivable or payable on an interest rate swap designated as a cash flow hedge is accrued and recognized as an
adjustment to interest income or interest expense.  The fair value of the interest rate swaps is included within accrued
interest and other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap are
included in accumulated comprehensive income (loss).  Derivative gains and losses not considered effective in
hedging the cash flows related to the underlying loans, if any, would be recognized immediately in income.  All of
First Financial’s cash flow hedges are considered effective.
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Effective March 30, 2009, First Financial executed a cash flow hedge utilizing an interest rate swap to hedge against
interest rate volatility on $20.0 million of floating rate trust preferred securities based on the London Inter-Bank
Offered Rate (LIBOR).  The interest rate swap involves the receipt by First Financial of variable-rate interest amounts
in exchange for fixed-rate interest payments by First Financial for a period of 10 years.  The net interest receivable or
payable on the trust preferred interest rate swap is accrued and recognized as an adjustment to interest expense.  The
fair value of the trust preferred interest rate swap is included in accrued interest and other assets or liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Changes in the fair value of the trust preferred interest rate swap are included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  The following table details the
location and amounts recognized for cash flow hedges.

Amount of gain or (loss)
recognized in
OCI on derivatives
(effective portion) Location of gain or (loss)

Amount of gain or (loss)
reclassified from accumulated
OCI into earnings (effective portion)

Three Months Ended reclassified from Three Months Ended
Derivatives in cash flow June 30, June 30, accumulated OCI into June 30, June 30,

hedging relationships 2010 2009 earnings (effective portion) 2010 2009
Interest Rate Contracts Interest Expense
Other long-term debt $ (796) $ 134 Other long-term debt $ (144) $ (95)
Total $ (796) $ 134 $ (144) $ (95)

Amount of gain or (loss)
recognized in
OCI on derivatives
(effective portion) Location of gain or (loss)

Amount of gain or (loss)
reclassified from accumulated
OCI into earnings (effective portion)

Six Months Ended reclassified from Six Months Ended
Derivatives in cash flow June 30, June 30, accumulated OCI into June 30, June 30,
hedging relationships 2010 2009 earnings (effective portion) 2010 2009
Interest Rate Contracts Interest Expense
Other long-term debt $ (999) $ 474 Other long-term debt $ (286) $ (97)
Total $ (999) $ 474 $ (286) $ (97)

First Financial expects approximately $0.3 million of the unrecognized losses on cash flow hedges, net of taxes, at
June 30, 2010 to be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months.

U.S. lawmakers recently passed financial reform legislation, including new regulations on the use of
derivatives.  While specific regulations are yet to be enacted, First Financial continues to monitor these developments
and assess the potential impact on its use of derivatives.

NOTE 8:  LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of FHLB long-term advances and repurchase agreements
utilizing investment securities pledged as collateral. These instruments are primarily utilized to reduce overnight
liquidity risk and to mitigate interest rate sensitivity on the balance sheet. During the third quarter of 2008, First
Financial executed $65.0 million in repurchase agreements with remaining maturities of between four and six years
and a weighted average rate of 3.50%.  These instruments have call dates of less than one year.  Securities pledged as
collateral in conjunction with the repurchase agreements are included within Investment securities available-for-sale
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. First Financial assumed additional FHLB long-term advances in the Peoples and
Irwin acquisitions of $63.5 million and $216.3 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2010, the FHLB long-term
advances assumed in the two transactions totaled $239.7 million and had remaining maturities between one and 15
years and a weighted average rate of 4.69%.
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The following is a summary of long-term debt:

(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2010

Amount
Average
Rate

Federal Home Loan Bank $ 319,775 3.38%
National Market Repurchase Agreement 65,000 3.50%
Total long-term debt $ 384,775 3.40%

NOTE 9:  OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT
Other long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of junior subordinated debentures owed to
unconsolidated subsidiary trusts.  Capital securities were issued in the third quarter of 2003 by a statutory business
trust, First Financial (OH) Statutory Trust II (Trust II).

The debentures issued in 2003 were eligible for early redemption by First Financial in September of 2008. First
Financial did not elect to redeem early, but under the terms of the agreement may redeem the securities on any interest
payment date after September of 2008, with a final maturity in 2033.

First Financial owns 100% of the common equity of the remaining trust, Trust II. The trust was formed with the sole
purpose of issuing the capital securities and investing the proceeds from the sale of such capital securities in the
debentures. The debentures held by the trust are the sole asset of the trust. Distributions on the capital securities are
payable quarterly at a variable rate of interest, which is equal to the interest rate being earned by the trust on the
debentures and are recorded as interest expense of First Financial. The interest rate is subject to change every three
months, indexed to the three-month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR).

First Financial has the option to defer interest for up to five years on the debentures. However, the debt covenants
prevent the payment of dividends on First Financial’s common stock if the interest is deferred. The capital securities
are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the debentures. First Financial has
entered into agreements which, taken collectively, fully or unconditionally guarantee the capital securities subject to
the terms of the guarantees. The debenture currently qualifies as Tier I capital under Federal Reserve Board
guidelines, but is limited to 25% of qualifying Tier I capital. The company has the capacity to issue approximately
$148.9 million in additional qualifying debentures under these guidelines.

The following is a summary of other long-term debt:

(Dollars in $000’s) Amount
Contractual

Rate
Maturity
Date

First Financial (OH) Statutory Trust II $ 20,000 3.39% 09/30/2033

Effective March 30, 2009, First Financial executed a cash flow hedge utilizing an interest rate swap to hedge against
interest rate volatility on $20.0 million of floating rate trust preferred securities indexed to the London Inter-Bank
Offered Rate (LIBOR). The interest rate swap involves the receipt by First Financial of variable-rate interest amounts
in exchange for fixed-rate interest payments by First Financial for a period of 10 years. This interest rate swap
effectively fixed the rate of interest on the floating rate trust preferred securities at 6.20% for the 10 year life of the
swap. The net interest receivable or payable on the trust preferred interest rate swap is accrued and recognized as an
adjustment to interest expense. The fair value of the trust preferred interest rate swap is included in accrued interest
and other assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of the trust preferred
interest rate swap are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated Balance

Edgar Filing: FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP /OH/ - Form 10-Q

35



Sheets.  For further information on this cash flow hedge, see Note 7.

NOTE 10:  COVERED LOANS
First Financial evaluates purchased loans for impairment in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic
310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. The cash flows expected to be
collected on purchased loans are estimated based upon the expected remaining life of the underlying loans, which
includes the effects of estimated prepayments.  Purchased loans are considered impaired if there is evidence of credit
deterioration since origination and if it is probable that not all contractually required payments will be collected.
While it was determined that most purchased loans were not impaired, First Financial elected to account for all
purchased loans under FASB ASC Topic 310-30 except loans with revolving privileges, which are outside the scope
of this guidance, and loans for which cash flows could not be estimated, which are accounted for under the cost
recovery method.  Purchased impaired loans were not classified as nonperforming assets at June 30, 2010 as the loans
are considered to be performing under FASB ASC Topic 310-30.  Therefore, interest income, through accretion of the
difference between the carrying value of the loans and the expected cash flows is being recognized on all purchased
loans being accounted for under FASB ASC Topic 310-30.
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All loans acquired in the Peoples and Irwin acquisitions are covered by loss sharing agreements with the FDIC,
whereby the FDIC reimburses First Financial for the majority of the losses incurred. Additionally, these loans were
recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date.  Generally the determination of the fair value of the loans resulted in a
significant write-down in the value of the loans, which was assigned to an accretable or nonaccretable balance, with
the accretable balance being recognized as interest income over the remaining term of the loan.

The following table reflects the carrying value of all purchased impaired and nonimpaired loans as of June 30, 2010:

Loans
Excluded from Total

FASB ASC FASB ASC Purchased
(Dollars in thousands) Topic 310-30 Topic 310-30 Loans
Commercial $ 356,401 $ 62,710 $ 419,111
Real estate - construction 78,508 0 78,508
Real estate - commercial 921,780 8,731 930,511
Real estate - residential 189,713 74,367 264,080
Installment 6,012 6,711 12,723

1,552,414 152,519 1,704,933
Other covered loans 0 7,508 7,508
Total covered loans $ 1,552,414 $ 160,027 $ 1,712,441

The outstanding balance of all purchased impaired and nonimpaired loans accounted for under FASB ASC Topic
310-30, including contractual principal, interest, fees, and penalties, was $2.6 billion and $3.0 billion as of June 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

Changes in the carrying amount of accretable yield for purchased impaired and nonimpaired loans were as follows for
the three months ended June 30, 2010:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2010 June 30, 2010

Accretable
Yield

Carrying
Amount
of Loans

Accretable
Yield

Carrying
Amount
of Loans

Balance at beginning of period (1) $ 437,583 $ 1,650,751 $ 486,313 $ 1,733,106
Additions 0 0 0 0
Accretion (36,994) (36,994) (75,994) 2,006
Payments received, net (2) (12,241) (61,343) (21,971) (182,698)
Other (3) 30,102 0 30,102 0
Balance at end of period $ 418,450 $ 1,552,414 $ 418,450 $ 1,552,414
_____________
(1)   Excludes covered lines of credit which are outside the scope of FASB Topic 310-30 and certain consumer loans
which are treated under the cost recovery method.
(2)   Includes the impact of loan prepayments and charge-offs.
(3)   Represents changes in projected future cash flows determined in second quarter 2010.

First Financial reviewed loans accounted for under FASB ASC Topic 310-30 for impairment in the second quarter of
2010.  First Financial concluded there was minor impairment within the acquired, residential real estate and consumer
loan portfolios and recorded a $1.3 million allowance for covered loan and lease losses as a result.

Edgar Filing: FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP /OH/ - Form 10-Q

37



17

Edgar Filing: FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP /OH/ - Form 10-Q

38



Until First Financial and the FDIC conduct a final settlement for the Peoples and Irwin transactions, the determination
of which assets and liabilities are ultimately acquired or assumed by First Financial cannot be completed. The
estimated fair values for the purchased impaired and nonimpaired loans were based upon the FDIC’s estimated data for
acquired loans. First Financial anticipates the final settlement for the Peoples and Irwin transactions will be completed
in the third quarter of 2010.

NOTE 11:  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
Uncovered Loans
Due to the significant difference in the accounting for the covered loans and the loss sharing agreements with the
FDIC, management believes that asset quality measures excluding the covered loans are generally more meaningful.
Therefore, management has included asset quality measures that exclude covered loans in the tables below.

Changes in the allowance for loan and lease losses for the previous five quarters are presented in the table that
follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
2010 2009 June 30,

(Dollars in
thousands) June 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 2010 2009
Balance at
beginning of
period $ 56,642 $ 59,311 $ 55,770 $ 38,649 $ 36,437 $ 59,311 $ 35,873
Provision for loan
losses 6,158 11,378 14,812 26,655 10,358 17,536 14,617
Loans charged off (5,457) (14,485) (12,055) (10,063) (8,771) (19,942) (12,831)
Recoveries 468 438 784 529 625 906 990
Ending allowance
for loan and lease
losses - uncovered 57,811 56,642 59,311 55,770 38,649 57,811 38,649

Allowance for
loan and lease
losses to total
ending loans 2.07% 2.01% 2.05% 1.94% 1.34% 2.07% 1.34%

The allowance for uncovered loan and lease losses related to loans that are identified as impaired, as defined by FASB
ASC 310-10-35-4, are based on discounted cash flows using the loan’s initial effective interest rate or the fair value of
the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans.  Interest income for impaired loans is recorded on a cash basis
during the period the loan is considered impaired after recovery of principal is reasonably assured.

First Financial’s investment in impaired loans is as follows:
As of and for the Quarter Ended

2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands) Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30
Impaired loans requiring a
valuation $ 44,218 $ 35,363 $ 27,666 $ 23,579 $ 16,229
Impaired loans not requiring a
valuation 35,205 39,090 49,437 40,113 21,364
Total impaired loans $ 79,423 $ 74,453 $ 77,103 $ 63,692 $ 37,593
Valuation allowance $ 12,004 $ 12,310 $ 11,662 $ 9,789 $ 5,890
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Average impaired loans for the
period $ 76,938 $ 75,778 $ 70,398 $ 50,643 $ 31,142
Interest income included in revenue $ 257 $ 204 $ 186 $ 117 $ 25

Covered Loans
In accordance with accounting for business combinations, there was no allowance brought forward on any of the
acquired loans, as the credit losses evident in the loans were included in the determination of the fair value of the
loans at the acquisition date and are represented by the nonaccretable balance. The majority of the nonaccretable
balance is expected to be received from the FDIC through the loss sharing agreements and is recorded as a separate
asset from the covered loans and reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  As a result, all of the loans acquired
in the Peoples and Irwin acquisitions were considered to be accruing loans as of the acquisition date. In accordance
with bank regulatory reporting standards, covered loans that are contractually past due will continue to be reported as
past due and still accruing based on the number of days past due.

The Company established an allowance for loan losses of $1.3 million associated with covered loans during the
second quarter 2010 based upon its most recent impairment analysis.  Of this total reserve, $0.3 million, or 20%, was
recognized as a non-cash provision expense and the remaining $1.0 million, or 80%, was recorded as an increase to
the FDIC indemnification asset representing the portion of loss reimbursement expected from the FDIC under the loss
sharing agreement.
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Under the applicable accounting guidance, impairment is generally recognized in the current period as provision
expense while improvement in the credit outlook is not recognized immediately but instead is reflected as a loan yield
adjustment on a prospective basis.  The timing inherent in this accounting treatment may result in earnings volatility in
future periods.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of period $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Provision for impairment on covered
loans 254 0 254 0
Impact from FDIC loss share
agreements 1,019 0 1,019 0
Loans charged off 0 0 0 0
Recoveries 0 0 0 0
Ending allowance for loan and lease
losses - covered 1,273 0 1,273 0
Total allowance for loan and lease
losses $ 1,273 $ 0 $ 1,273 $ 0

NOTE 12:  INCOME TAXES
First Financial’s effective tax rate for the second quarter of 2010 was 34.8% compared to 32.6% for the second quarter
of 2009.  The 2010 year-to-date effective tax rate was 34.9% compared to 34.2% for 2009.  The increase in the
effective tax rate was primarily due to a decrease in tax-exempt investment and loan interest as well as an increase in
taxable income associated with the 2009 bank acquisitions.  The increase was partially offset by increased bank
owned life insurance income as well as tax credits related to investments in low income housing which were also a
result of the 2009 acquisitions.

At June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, First Financial had no FASB ASC Topic 740-10 unrecognized tax benefits
recorded.  First Financial does not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase within
the next twelve months.

First Financial recognizes interest and penalties on income tax assessments or income tax refunds in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a component of noninterest expense.

First Financial and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as state and local income tax in
several jurisdictions.  Tax years prior to 2008 have been closed and are no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax
examinations.

First Financial is no longer subject to state and local income tax examinations for years prior to 2006.  First Financial’s
2006 and 2007 tax years are currently under examination by the state of Indiana.  Management anticipates no material
impact to the company’s financial position as a result of this examination.  Tax years 2006 through 2008 remain open
to state and local examination in various jurisdictions.  The years open to examination by state and local government
authorities vary by jurisdiction and First Financial is not aware of any material outstanding tax examination matters. 
There may be tax matters related to the acquisitions of Peoples and Irwin at the federal, state, and local levels that
could arise in the future. 

NOTE 13:  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
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First Financial sponsors a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees.  First
Financial uses a December 31 measurement date for its defined benefit pension plan.

In April of 2009, due to the unfunded pension obligation resulting from the significant decline in equity market
values, First Financial contributed $30.8 million to its defined benefit pension plan.  First Financial does not expect to
make additional contributions to the plan during 2010.

The following table sets forth information concerning amounts recognized in First Financial’s Consolidated Balance
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Service cost $ 600 $ 590 $ 1,200 $ 1,180
Interest cost 700 675 1,400 1,350
Expected return on assets (1,250) (917) (2,500) (1,835)
Amortization of prior service cost (100) (105) (200) (210)
Recognized net actuarial loss 525 387 1,050 775
Net periodic benefit cost $ 475 $ 630 $ 950 $ 1,260

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net actuarial loss $ 525 $ 387 $ 1,050 $ 775
Net prior service (credit) cost (100) (105) (200) (210)
Deferred tax assets (158) (102) (26) (205)
Net amount recognized $ 267 $ 180 $ 824 $ 360

NOTE 14:  FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Fair Value Measurement

The fair value framework as disclosed in the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (Fair Value Topic) includes a hierarchy which focuses on prioritizing the inputs used in
valuation techniques.  The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), a lower priority to observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities (Level 2), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  When
determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities, First Financial looks to active markets to price
identical assets or liabilities whenever possible and classifies such items in Level 1.  When identical assets and
liabilities are not traded in active markets, First Financial looks to market observable data for similar assets and
liabilities and classifies such items as Level 2.  Certain assets and liabilities are not actively traded in observable
markets and First Financial must use alternative techniques, based on unobservable inputs, to determine the fair value
and classifies such items as Level 3. The level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant in the fair value measurement.

The following methods, assumptions, and valuation techniques were used by First Financial to measure different
financial assets and liabilities at fair value and in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and short-term investments – The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash and
short-term investments, such as federal funds sold, approximated the fair value of those instruments.

Investment securities – Investment securities classified as trading and available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis.  Fair value measurement is based upon quoted market prices, when available (Level 1).  If quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are measured utilizing independent valuation techniques of identical or
similar investment securities.  Third party vendors compile prices from various sources and may apply such
techniques as matrix pricing to determine the value of identical or similar investment securities (Level 2).  Matrix
pricing is a mathematical technique widely used in the banking industry to value investment securities without relying
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exclusively on quoted prices for the specific investment securities but rather relying on the investment securities’
relationship to other benchmark quoted investment securities.  Any investment securities not valued based upon the
methods above are considered Level 3.

First Financial utilizes information provided by a third party investment securities portfolio manager in analyzing the
investment securities portfolio in accordance with the fair value hierarchy of the Fair Value Topic.  The portfolio
manager’s evaluation of investment security portfolio pricing is performed using a combination of prices and data from
third party vendors, along with internally developed matrix pricing models and assistance from the provider’s internal
fixed income analysts and trading desk.  The portfolio manager’s month-end pricing process includes a series of
quality assurance activities where prices are compared to recent market conditions, previous evaluation prices, and
between the various pricing services.  These processes produce a series of quality assurance reports on which price
exceptions are identified, reviewed, and where appropriate, securities are repriced.  In the event of a materially
different price, the portfolio manager will report the variance to the third party vendor as a “price challenge”, and review
the pricing methodology in detail.  The results of the quality assurance process are incorporated into the selection of
pricing providers by the portfolio manager.
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Loans held for sale – Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value.  These loans currently consist
of one-to-four family residential real estate loans originated for sale to qualified third parties.  Fair value is based on
the contractual price to be received from these third parties, which is not materially different than cost due to the short
duration between origination and sale (Level 2).  As such, First Financial records any fair value adjustments on a
nonrecurring basis.  Gains and losses on the sale of loans are recorded as net gains from sales of loans within
noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Uncovered Loans – The fair value of commercial, commercial real estate, residential real estate, and consumer loans
were estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to
borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities or repricing frequency.  The carrying
amount of accrued interest approximates its fair value.

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management based on current information and events, it is
probable that all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected.  Impaired
loans are valued at the lower of cost or market for purposes of determining the appropriate amount of impairment to
be allocated to the allowance for loan and lease losses.  Market value is measured based on the value of the collateral
securing the loans.  Collateral may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment, inventory, and
accounts receivable.  The vast majority of the collateral is real estate.  The value of real estate collateral is determined
utilizing an income or market valuation approach based on an appraisal conducted by an independent, licensed
appraiser outside of the company (Level 2). The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appraisal if
deemed significant, or the net book value on the applicable borrower financial statements if not considered
significant.  Likewise, values for inventory and accounts receivable collateral are based on borrower financial
statement balances or aging reports (Level 3).  Impaired loans allocated to the allowance for loan and lease losses are
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.  Any fair value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred as
provision for loan and lease losses on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Covered loans – Fair values for covered loans were based on a discounted cash flow methodology that considered
factors including the type of loan and related collateral, classification status, fixed or variable interest rate, loan term
and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and current discount rates. Covered loans were grouped together
according to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate when applying various valuation techniques. The
discount rates used for covered loans are based on current market rates for new originations of comparable loans and
include adjustments for liquidity concerns. The discount rate does not include a factor for credit losses as that has been
included in the estimated cash flows.

There was no allowance for loan and lease losses related to covered loans prior to June 30, 2010 as these loans were
recorded at acquisition at their estimated fair value. With the exception of covered loans accounted for outside the
scope of FASB ASC Topic 310-30, improvements in the estimated fair value of covered loans are reflected through
higher yields on these loans while declines in the estimated fair value of covered loans are recorded as impairment
charges in the company’s operating results in the period in which the decline occurs.

Under the applicable accounting guidance, impairment is generally recognized in the current period as provision
expense while improvement in the credit outlook is not recognized immediately but instead is reflected as a loan yield
adjustment on a prospective basis.  The timing inherent in this accounting treatment may result in earnings volatility in
future periods.

Mortgage-servicing rights – The fair value of mortgage-servicing rights was determined through modeling the expected
future cash flows.  The modeling included stratification by maturity and coupon rates on the underlying mortgage
loans.  Certain assumptions were used in the valuation regarding prepayment speeds, discount rates, servicing costs,
delinquency, cash balances, and foreclosure costs which were arrived at from third-party sources and internal records.
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FDIC indemnification asset – These loss sharing assets are measured separately from the related covered assets as they
are not contractually embedded in the assets and are not transferable with the assets should the Bank choose to dispose
of them. Fair value was estimated using projected cash flows related to the loss sharing agreements based on the
expected reimbursements for losses and the applicable loss sharing percentages. These expected reimbursements do
not include reimbursable amounts related to future covered expenditures. These cash flows were discounted to reflect
the uncertainty of the timing and receipt of the loss sharing reimbursement from the FDIC.

Deposit liabilities – The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money-market deposits was the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date.  The carrying amounts for variable-rate certificates of deposit
approximated their fair values at the reporting date.  The fair value of fixed-rate certificates of deposit was estimated
using a discounted cash flow calculation which applies the interest rates currently offered for deposits of similar
remaining maturities.  The carrying amount of accrued interest approximated its fair value.
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Borrowings – The carry amounts of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
other short-term borrowings approximated their fair values.  The fair value of long-term debt was estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation which utilizes the interest rates currently offered for borrowings of similar remaining
maturities.  Third-party valuations were used for long-term debt with embedded options, such as call features.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit – Pricing of these financial instruments is based on the
credit quality and relationship, fees, interest rates, probability of funding and compensating balance and other
covenants or requirements.  Loan commitments generally have fixed expiration dates, are variable rate and contain
termination and other clauses which provide for relief from funding in the event that there is a significant deterioration
in the credit quality of the client.  Many loan commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon.  The
rates and terms of the commitments to extend credit and the standby letters of credit are competitive with those in
First Financial’s market area.  The carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of the fair value of these financial
instruments.  Carrying amounts, which are comprised of the unamortized fee income and, where necessary, reserves
for any expected credit losses from these financial instruments, are immaterial.

Derivatives – First Financial utilizes interest rate swaps as a means to offer commercial borrowers products that meet
their needs and also to achieve First Financial’s desired interest rate risk profile at the time.  The net interest receivable
or payable is accrued and recognized as an adjustment to the interest income or interest expense of the hedged
item.  First Financial utilizes third-party vendors for derivative valuation purposes.  These vendors determine the
appropriate fair value based on a net present value calculation of the cash flows related to the interest rate swaps using
primarily observable market inputs such as interest rate yield curves.  The discounted net present value calculated
represents the cost to terminate the swap if First Financial should choose to do so on the applicable measurement date
(Level 2).  Additionally, First Financial utilizes a vendor developed, proprietary model to value the credit risk
component of both the derivative assets and liabilities.  The credit valuation adjustment is recorded as an adjustment
to the fair value of the derivative asset or liability on the applicable measurement date (Level 3).
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The estimated fair values of First Financial’s financial instruments were as follows:

June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

(Dollars in thousands) value value value value
Financial assets
Cash and short-term investments $ 842,495 $ 842,495 $ 606,167 $ 606,167
Investment securities trading 0 0 200 200
Investment securities held-to-maturity 17,601 18,274 18,115 18,590
Investment securities available-for-sale 503,404 503,404 471,002 471,002
Other investments 86,509 86,509 89,830 89,830
Loans held for sale 11,946 11,946 6,413 6,413
Loans, excluding covered loans 2,736,326 2,759,981 2,835,818 2,907,648
Covered loans 1,711,168 1,711,168 1,929,549 1,929,549
Mortgage-servicing rights 1,801 1,801 1,976 1,976
FDIC indemnification asset 280,266 280,266 316,040 316,040
Accrued interest receivable 18,811 18,811 22,647 22,647
Derivative financial instruments 0 0 998 998

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 718,381 $ 718,381 $ 829,676 $ 829,676
Interest-bearing demand 1,135,970 1,135,970 1,060,383 1,060,383
Savings 1,350,161 1,350,161 1,231,081 1,231,081
Time 2,042,824 2,064,032 2,229,500 2,230,273
Total deposits 5,247,336 5,268,544 5,350,640 5,351,413
Short-term borrowings 38,299 38,299 37,430 37,430
Long-term debt 384,775 385,398 404,716 428,358
Other long-term debt 20,620 20,620 20,620 20,620
Accrued interest payable 7,358 7,358 4,759 4,759
Derivative financial instruments 3,950 3,950 2,363 2,363

The following table summarizes the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June
30, 2010:

(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Measurements Using Netting Assets/Liabilities
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Adjustments (1) at Fair Value

Assets
Derivatives $ 0 $ 17,566 $ (775) $ (16,791) $ 0
Available-for-sale investment securities 102 503,302 0 0 503,404
Total $ 102 $ 520,868 $ (775) $ (16,791) $ 503,404

Liabilities
Derivatives $ 0 $ 20,834 $ (93) $ (16,791) $ 3,950

(1) Amounts represent the impact of legally enforceable master netting arrangements that allow First Financial to
settle positive and negative positions and also cash collateral held with the same counterparties.
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Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.  Adjustments to the fair
market value of these assets usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs
of individual assets.  The following table summarizes financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis at June 30, 2010:

(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Measurements Using Year-to-date
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Gains/(Losses)

Assets
Loans held for sale $ 0 $ 11,946 $ 0 $ 0
Impaired loans (1) 0 25,931 2,864 0

 (1) Amounts represent the fair value of collateral for impaired loans allocated to the allowance for loan and lease
losses.  Fair values are determined using actual market prices (Level 1), independent third party valuations, discounted
as appropriate (Level 2), and borrower records discounted as appropriate (Level 3).

NOTE 15:  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Shareholders’ equity is affected by transactions and valuations of asset and liability positions that require adjustments
to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).  Disclosure of the related tax effects allocated to other
comprehensive income and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

June 30, 2010
Transactions Balances

(Dollars in thouands) Pre-tax Tax-effect Net of tax Net of tax
Unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale $ 5,226 $ (2,073) $ 3,153 $ 13,377
Unrealized loss on derivatives (1,949) 711 (1,238) (307)
Unfunded pension obligation 850 (26) 824 (20,937)
Foreign currency translation (83) 0 (83) 36
Total $ 4,044 $ (1,388) $ 2,656 $ (7,831)

June 30, 2009
Transactions Balances

(Dollars in thouands) Pre-tax Tax-effect
Net of
tax Net of tax

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale $ 957 $ (348) $ 609 $ 7,548
Unrealized gain on derivatives 371 (135) 236 1,005
Unfunded pension obligation 565 (205) 360 (19,253)
Total $ 1,893 $ (688) $ 1,205 $ (10,700)
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NOTE 16:  EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share -
income available to common shareholders:
Net income $ 17,774 $ 1,450 $ 29,372 $ 7,185
Dividends on preferred stock 0 1,000 1,865 1,578
Income available to common shareholders: $ 17,774 $ 450 $ 27,507 $ 5,607

Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted
average shares 57,539,901 40,734,254 56,356,877 38,928,557

Effect of dilutive securities —
Employee stock awards 944,176 361,695 893,621 529,886
Warrants 119,962 0 114,824 0
Denominator for diluted earnings per share - adjusted
weighted average shares 58,604,039 41,095,949 57,365,322 39,458,443

Earnings per share available to common shareholders
Basic $ 0.31 $ 0.01 $ 0.49 $ 0.14
Diluted $ 0.30 $ 0.01 $ 0.48 $ 0.14

Stock options and warrants, where the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares,
were not included in the computation of net income per diluted share as they would have been antidilutive.  These
out-of-the-money options were 320,963 and 3,314,462 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The warrant to
purchase 465,117 shares of common stock was also outstanding as of June 30, 2010.  At June 30, 2009, the warrant to
purchase 930,233 shares of common stock was also outstanding, but was out-of-the-money.  The reduction in the
warrant share position was a result of the common stock offering that occurred in June of 2009, in accordance with
rules established by the U.S. Treasury.
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ITEM 2-MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (MD&A)
FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Unaudited)

SUMMARY

MARKET STRATEGY
First Financial serves a combination of metropolitan and non-metropolitan markets in Ohio, Indiana, Kentucky, and
Michigan through 115 full-service banking centers across 75 communities. Market selection is based upon a number
of factors, but markets are primarily chosen for their potential for growth, and long-term profitability. First Financial’s
goal is to develop a competitive advantage utilizing a local market focus; building long-term relationships with clients
and helping them reach greater levels of success in their financial life. During the third quarter of 2009, First Financial
assumed the banking operations of Peoples Community Bank (Peoples), Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company (Irwin
Union Bank) and Irwin Union Bank, F.S.B. (Irwin FSB) (Irwin Union Bank and Irwin FSB, collectively, Irwin)
through Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) assisted transactions. First Financial acquired a specialty,
franchise lending subsidiary as part of the Irwin acquisition. The franchise finance business provides equipment and
leasehold improvement financing for franchisees, in the quick service and casual dining restaurant sector, throughout
the United States. First Financial intends to continue to concentrate future growth plans and capital investments in its
metropolitan markets, however, the acquired franchise finance subsidiary is a national business. Smaller markets have
historically provided stable, low-cost funding sources to First Financial and they remain an important part of its
funding base. First Financial believes its historical strength in these markets should enable it to retain or improve its
market share.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
All references to acquired balances reflect the fair value unless stated otherwise.

During the third quarter of 2009, through FDIC-assisted transactions, First Financial acquired the banking operations
of Peoples and Irwin. The company also acquired 3 Indiana banking centers, including related deposits and loans,
from Irwin in a separate and unrelated transaction. The acquisitions of the Peoples and Irwin franchises significantly
expands the First Financial footprint, opens new markets and strengthens the company through the generation of
additional capital. Through these three transactions, the company added, at the time of acquisition, a total of 49
banking centers, including 39 banking centers within the company’s primary markets.

In connection with the Peoples and Irwin FDIC-assisted transactions, First Financial entered into loss sharing
agreements with the FDIC. Under the terms of these agreements the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for a
percentage of losses with respect to certain loans (covered loans) and other real estate owned (OREO) (collectively,
covered assets) beginning with the first dollar of loss. These agreements provide for loss protection on single-family,
residential loans for a period of ten years and First Financial is required to share any recoveries of previously
charged-off amounts for the same time period, on the same pro-rata basis with the FDIC. All other loans are provided
loss protection for a period of five years and recoveries of previously charged-off loans must be shared with the FDIC
for a period of eight years, again on the same pro-rata basis. Covered loans now represent approximately 38% of First
Financial’s loans.

First Financial must follow specific servicing and resolution procedures, as outlined in the loss share agreements, in
order to receive reimbursement from the FDIC for losses on covered assets. The company has established separate and
dedicated teams of legal, finance, credit and technology staff to execute and monitor all activity related to each
agreement, including the required periodic reporting to the FDIC. First Financial intends to service all covered assets
with the same resolution practices and diligence as it does for the assets that are not subject to a loss share agreement.
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An overview of the transactions and their respective loss share agreements are discussed below.

Peoples Community Bank
Including cash received from the FDIC, First Financial acquired $566.6 million in assets, including $335.2 million in
loans and other real estate, and assumed $584.7 million in liabilities, including $520.8 million in deposits. All assets
and liabilities were recorded at their estimated fair market value resulting in recorded goodwill of $18.1 million as the
estimated fair value of liabilities assumed exceeded the estimated fair value of assets acquired.

Covered assets totaling $335.2 million in fair value are subject to a stated loss threshold of $190.0 million whereby the
FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of covered asset losses up to $190.0 million, and 95% of losses beyond
$190.0 million. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse First Financial for losses with respect to covered assets begins
with the first dollar of loss incurred.
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First Financial holds a purchase option from the FDIC for each of Peoples bank properties and their associated
contents. First Financial completed a review of the former Peoples locations and notified the FDIC of the company’s
intent to purchase certain properties for a combined purchase price of $7.9 million during the first quarter of
2010.  First Financial anticipates the final settlement for the Peoples transaction will be completed in the third quarter
of 2010.

Early in the fourth quarter of 2009, First Financial completed the technology conversion and operational integration of
Peoples. In conjunction with these efforts, two former Peoples banking centers were consolidated into First Financial
locations and one First Financial banking center was consolidated into a former Peoples location.

Irwin
Including cash received from the FDIC, First Financial acquired $3.3 billion in assets, including $1.8 billion in loans,
and assumed $2.9 billion in liabilities, including $2.5 billion in deposits, with all assets and liabilities recorded at their
estimated fair market value.

The loans were acquired under a modified transaction structure with the FDIC whereby certain nonperforming loans,
foreclosed real estate, acquisition, development and construction loans, and residential and commercial land loans
were excluded from the acquired portfolio.  Until First Financial and the FDIC conduct a final settlement, the
determination of which assets and liabilities are ultimately acquired or assumed by First Financial cannot be
completed. The estimated fair value for loans acquired was based upon the FDIC’s estimated data for acquired loans.
First Financial anticipates the final settlement for the Irwin transactions will be completed in the third quarter of 2010.

Covered assets acquired from Irwin Union Bank totaling $1.5 billion in fair value are subject to a stated loss threshold
of $526.0 million whereby the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of covered asset losses up to $526.0
million, and 95% of losses beyond $526.0 million. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse First Financial for losses with
respect to covered assets begins with the first dollar of loss incurred.

Covered assets acquired from Irwin FSB totaling $259.4 million in fair value are subject to a stated loss threshold of
$110.0 million whereby the FDIC will reimburse First Financial for 80% of covered asset losses up to $110.0 million,
and 95% of losses beyond $110.0 million. The FDIC’s obligation to reimburse First Financial for losses with respect to
covered assets begins with the first dollar of loss incurred.

As the estimated fair value of assets acquired exceeded the estimated fair value of liabilities assumed, First Financial
recorded a pre-tax bargain purchase gain of $381.3 million, as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 805, Business Combinations.

Conversion of Irwin’s technology and operational systems was completed in the first quarter of 2010.

Strategic Decisions
Management has concluded that the markets previously operated by Irwin in the western United States do not align
with the long-term strategic plans for the company. Each of these markets pursued an exit strategy whereby the market
presidents worked with an institution of their choosing to refer existing client relationships. If a suitable financial
institution was not identified, an exit date was selected for each market and the office closed in compliance with the
applicable regulatory requirements. Exit strategies coincided with the conversion and operational integration process.
In the fourth quarter of 2009, the company elected to close the St. Louis, Missouri location and sold $42.9 million in
western market loans, at their unpaid principal balances.

Additionally, in the first quarter of 2010, First Financial closed 7 of the remaining 9 western market offices and sold
an additional $24.5 million in western market loans at their unpaid principal balances.  At June 30, 2010, First
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Financial had $139.6 million in unpaid principal balances in loans and $104.4 million in deposits from the two
remaining western market offices. First Financial will continue to service the loans and deposits in these markets in
compliance with the terms of the purchase agreements with the FDIC and FDIC as receiver and related loss share
agreements.  The company expects to close the two remaining western offices on or about September 30, 2010.

First Financial also acquired, as part of the Irwin transaction, a franchise finance business. This national business is a
specialty lender in the quick service and casual dining segments of the restaurant industry. It is led by a seasoned
management team with strong underwriting, credit management and loss mitigation experience.  There were
outstanding principal balances of approximately $606.5 million in franchise finance loans at June 30, 2010, all of
which are covered under a loss share agreement with the FDIC except for $61.2 million of loans originated subsequent
to the acquisition.
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This business offers First Financial the ability to diversify its earning assets and will be supported as part of the
company’s ongoing strategy. The overall portfolio size will be managed to a risk-appropriate level so as not to create
an industry concentration.

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Second quarter 2010 net income and net income available to common shareholders, was $17.8 million, and earnings
per diluted common share were $0.30.  This compares with first quarter 2010 net income of $11.6 million, net income
available to common shareholders of $9.7 million and earnings per diluted common share of $0.17 and second quarter
2009 net income of $1.5 million, net income available to common shareholders of $0.5 million and earnings per
diluted common share of $0.01.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2010, net income was $29.4 million, net income available to common
shareholders was $27.5 million and earnings per diluted common share were $0.48 as compared to net income of $7.2
million, net income available to common shareholders of $5.6 million and earnings per diluted common share of
$0.14 for the six month period ended June 30, 2009.

Each acquisition in the third quarter of 2009 was considered a business combination and accounted for under FASB
ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, and ASC Topic
310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. All acquired assets and liabilities were
recorded at their estimated fair market values as of the date of acquisition, and identifiable intangible assets were
recorded at their estimated fair value. These estimated fair market values are considered preliminary, and are subject
to change for up to one year after the acquisition date as additional information relative to closing date fair values
becomes available.  Certain reclassifications of prior periods’ amounts have been made to conform to current period’s
presentation and had no effect on previously reported net income amounts or financial condition.  For a more detailed
discussion of the transactions please see Note 3, Business Combinations.

Return on average assets for the second quarter of 2010 was 1.07% compared to 0.15% for the comparable period in
2009 and 0.71% for the linked-quarter (second quarter of 2010 compared to the first quarter of 2010).  Return on
average shareholders’ equity for the second quarter of 2010 was 10.24% compared to 1.53% for the comparable period
in 2009 and 6.67% for the linked-quarter.

Return on average assets for the first six months of 2010 was 0.89% compared to 0.38% for the comparable period in
2009.  Return on average shareholder’s equity was 8.46% for the first six months of 2010 compared to 3.96% for the
same period in 2009.

A discussion of the first six months and second quarter of 2010 results of operations follows.

NET INTEREST INCOME
Net interest income, First Financial’s principal source of income, is the excess of interest received from earning assets
over interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities.  For analytical purposes, net interest income is also presented in the
table that follows, adjusted to a tax equivalent basis assuming a 35% marginal tax rate for interest earned on
tax-exempt assets such as municipal loans and investments.  This is to recognize the income tax savings that facilitates
a comparison between taxable and tax-exempt assets.  Management believes that it is a standard practice in the
banking industry to present net interest margin and net interest income on a fully tax equivalent basis.  Therefore,
management believes these measures provide useful information for both management and investors by allowing them
to make peer comparisons.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
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(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net interest income $ 67,738 $ 31,209 $ 139,758 $ 62,137
Tax equivalent adjustment 212 307 424 670
Net interest income - tax equivalent $ 67,950 $ 31,516 $ 140,182 $ 62,807

Average earning assets $ 6,024,202 $ 3,483,796 $ 6,009,556 $ 3,483,223

Net interest margin * 4.51% 3.59% 4.69% 3.60%
Net interest margin (fully tax equivalent) * 4.52% 3.63% 4.70% 3.64%

* Margins are calculated using net interest income annualized divided by average earning assets.
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Net interest income for the second quarter of 2010 was $67.7 million, an increase of $36.5 million from the second
quarter of 2009 net interest income of $31.2 million and a decrease of $4.3 million from the first quarter of 2010 net
interest income of $72.0 million.  Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis for the second quarter 2010 was
$68.0 million as compared to $72.2 million for the first quarter 2010 and $31.5 million for the comparable
year-over-year period.  While the average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities remained
relatively unchanged for the second quarter 2010 as compared to the first quarter, the asset mix changed as higher
yielding loans paid down and converted to lower yielding cash or investments, which negatively impacted the net
interest margin and resulted in the lower level of net interest income.  In addition to higher levels of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities resulting from the 2009 acquisitions, the year-over-year increase of $36.4 million
was also impacted by the significant increase in the net interest margin.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2010, net interest income was $139.8 million, an increase of $77.6 million
over the comparable period in 2009.  Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was $140.2 million as
compared to $62.8 million for the comparable period in 2009.  Similar to the quarterly year-over-year items noted
above, the increase was driven by the larger balance sheet items as well as a higher net interest margin.

Included in net interest income for both the second quarter and first quarter 2010 were the results of operations
classified by the Company as acquired-non-strategic.  These amounts totaled $10.2 million and $10.9 million during
those periods, respectively, and in sum totaled $21.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Net interest margin was 4.51% for the second quarter 2010 as compared to 4.87% for the first quarter 2010 and 3.59%
for the second quarter 2009.  The net interest margin was significantly impacted by normal amortization and
paydowns in both the covered and uncovered loan portfolios.  As loan demand remains slow in the Company’s
strategic markets, the incoming cash flows from the loan portfolios contributed to an increased cash position which
accounted for 34 basis points of the linked quarter net interest margin decline.  While the Company experienced a
lower level of interest income and, as a result, a lower net interest margin during the quarter due partly to its cash
position, it deliberately avoided redeploying the cash into long term securities as it did not want to introduce higher
levels of duration and pricing risk.  The average balance of cash and interest-bearing deposits during the second
quarter was $827 million which earned a combined yield of 0.22%.  As such, opportunities for net interest margin
enhancement may exist as the Company considers alternatives for deploying its high level of liquidity, including
purchasing investment securities consistent with its asset / liability management objectives and restructuring
liabilities.

The increase of 92 basis points over the comparable year-over-year period was primarily attributable to the higher
yield on covered loans, improved pricing in new loan originations, lower funding costs of deposits as a result of
repricing acquired CDs and disciplined pricing strategies, and an overall increase in earning assets.

Net interest margin for the six month period ended June 30, 2010 was 4.69% as compared to 3.60% for the six month
period ended June 30, 2009.
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The Consolidated Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Analysis that follows are presented on a GAAP
basis.

QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND NET INTEREST INCOME ANALYSIS

June 30, 2010 March 31, 2010 June 30, 2009
Average Average Average Average Average Average

(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Earning assets

Investments:
Interest-bearing
deposits with other
banks $ 554,333 $ 459 0.33% $ 394,741 $ 342 0.35% $ 8,614 $ - 0.00%
Investment securities 597,991 5,689 3.82% 558,595 5,631 4.09% 731,119 8,409 4.61%

Gross loans including
covered loans and
indemnification
asset (1) 4,871,878 79,790 6.57% 5,041,411 84,586 6.80% 2,744,063 33,978 4.97%
Total earning assets 6,024,202 85,938 5.72% 5,994,747 90,559 6.13% 3,483,796 42,387 4.88%

Nonearning assets

Cash and due from
banks 273,162 336,333 72,402
Allowance for loan
and lease losses (60,444) (59,891) (36,644)
Premises and
equipment 115,587 108,608 85,433
Other assets 292,044 291,274 179,471
Total assets $ 6,644,551 $ 6,671,071 $ 3,784,458

Interest-bearing
liabilities

Deposits:
Interest-bearing $ 1,139,001 1,265 0.45% $ 1,050,697 1,021 0.39% $ 630,885 389 0.25%
Savings 1,341,194 2,058 0.62% 1,318,374 2,139 0.66% 645,197 487 0.30%
Time 2,090,776 11,985 2.30% 2,175,400 12,488 2.33% 1,131,972 8,204 2.91%

Short-term borrowings 37,353 17 0.18% 38,413 19 0.20% 385,769 527 0.55%
Long-term borrowings 410,592 2,875 2.81% 420,463 2,872 2.77% 156,809 1,571 4.02%

Total interest-bearing
liabilities 5,018,916 18,200 1.45% 5,003,347 18,539 1.51% 2,950,632 11,178 1.52%

Noninterest-bearing
liabilities and
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shareholders' equity

Noninterest-bearing
demand 740,011 774,393 425,330
Other liabilities 189,364 188,555 28,552
Shareholders' equity 696,260 704,776 379,944
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity $ 6,644,551 $ 6,671,071 $ 3,784,458
Net interest income $ 67,738 $ 72,020 $ 31,209

Net interest spread 4.27% 4.62% 3.36%

Contribution of
noninterest-bearing
sources of funds 0.24% 0.25% 0.23%
Net interest margin (2) 4.51% 4.87% 3.59%

(1) Nonaccrual loans and loans held for sale are included in average balances for each applicable loan category.

(2) Because noninterest-bearing funding sources, demand deposits, other liabilities, and shareholders' equity also
support earning assets, the net interest margin exceeds the interest spread.
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RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS
The impact of changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and interest rates on net
interest income is illustrated in the following tables.

Changes for the Three Months Ended June 30
Linked Qtr. Income Variance Comparable Qtr. Income Variance

(Dollars in thousands) Rate Volume Total Rate Volume Total
Earning assets
Investment securities $ (375) $ 433 $ 58 $ (1,453) $ (1,267) $ (2,720)
Other earning assets (19) 136 117 7 452 459
Gross loans (1) (2,927) (1,869) (4,796) 10,963 34,849 45,812
Total earning assets (3,321) (1,300) (4,621) 9,517 34,034 43,551
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total interest-bearing deposits $ (596) $ 256 $ (340) $ (1,016) $ 7,244 $ 6,228
Borrowed funds
Short-term borrowings (2) 0 (2) (351) (159) (510)
Federal Home Loan Bank long-term debt 35 (36) (1) (358) 1,663 1,305
Other long-term debt 0 4 4 (1) 0 (1)
Total borrowed funds 33 (32) 1 (710) 1,504 794
Total interest-bearing liabilities (563) 224 (339) (1,726) 8,748 7,022
Net interest income (2) $ (2,758) $ (1,524) $ (4,282) $ 11,243 $ 25,286 $ 36,529

(1) Loans held for sale, nonaccrual loans, covered loans, and indemnification asset are included in gross loans.
(2) Not tax equivalent.

Changes for the
Six Months Ended June 30

Year-to-Date Income Variance
Rate Volume Total

Earning assets
Investment securities $ (2,960) $ (3,253) $ (6,213)
Federal funds sold 13 788 801
Gross loans (1) 22,930 73,811 96,741
Total earning assets 19,983 71,346 91,329
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total interest-bearing deposits $ (2,536) $ 14,609 $ 12,073
Borrowed funds
Short-term borrowings (660) (338) (998)
Federal Home Loan Bank long-term debt (741) 3,297 2,556
Other long-term debt 77 0 77
Total borrowed funds (1,324) 2,959 1,635
Total interest-bearing liabilities (3,860) 17,568 13,708
Net interest income (2) $ 23,843 $ 53,778 $ 77,621

(1) Loans held for sale, nonaccrual loans, covered loans, and indemnification asset are included in gross loans.
(2) Not tax equivalent.
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NONINTEREST INCOME
Second quarter 2010 noninterest income was $25.3 million, an increase of $11.2 million from the comparable period
in 2009 and $5.9 million from the first quarter of 2010.

During the first and second quarters of 2010, covered loan activity positively impacted noninterest income by $6.1
million and $7.4 million, respectively.  When unpaid covered loan principal balances decrease faster than expected,
which could occur either through a loan sale, any prepayment by the borrower, either in full or in part, or is
charged-off, the remaining or pro rata carrying value of the rate-based valuation mark is recognized as noninterest
income.  The carrying value of the credit-based valuation mark impacts both noninterest income and noninterest
expense.  When covered loan balances paydown early, again through either a loan sale or prepayments by the
borrower, and credit experience is better than originally estimated, the remaining carrying value is recognized as
noninterest income, net of a corresponding valuation adjustment on the FDIC indemnification asset.  However, when
losses are incurred on covered loans that exceed the initial estimate, the Company will recognize noninterest expense
representing its proportional share of the unanticipated losses.

Also, included in noninterest income for the second quarter of 2010 was $2.3 million of non-recurring income
resulting from the settlement of certain initial cash items and valuations related to the 2009 FDIC acquisitions, as well
as $0.7 million of other income not expected to recur.  Excluding the impact of these items as well as the sales of
investment securities and other items not expected to recur, estimated noninterest income earned in the second quarter
2010 was $14.5 million as compared to $12.8 million in the first quarter of 2010 and $10.6 million in the second
quarter of 2009.  The increase from the linked quarter was primarily attributable to higher service charges on deposits,
gains on sales of residential mortgages, and increased bankcard interchange income, trust and wealth management
fees and BOLI income, partially offset by lower insurance agency income.  The increase in the comparable
year-over-year quarter was driven primarily by higher service charges on deposit accounts resulting from an increase
in transaction-based deposits, increased bankcard income, higher trust and wealth management fees and higher
brokerage and insurance income as a result of the 2009 acquisitions.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2010, noninterest income totaled $44.7 million as compared to $26.1 million
for the similar year-over-year period.  Excluding the items mentioned previously as well as the gain on sale of the
property and casualty portion of the insurance business during the first quarter 2009, noninterest income was $27.3
million for the six month period ended June 30, 2010 as compared to $22.1 million for the six months ended June 30,
2009.  This increase was attributable to higher service charges on deposit accounts resulting from an increase in
transaction-based deposits, increased bankcard income and higher trust and wealth management fees.

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Second quarter 2010 noninterest expense was $59.4 million, compared with $32.8 million in the second quarter of
2009, and $62.2 million in the first quarter of 2010.  Acquisition-related costs for the second quarter of 2010 consisted
of $0.7 million in integration-related costs and $1.5 million in professional services fees and other costs.  Transition
related items such as salaries, employee benefits and other items related to people, processes, and facilities that are
diminishing over time were $2.6 million for the same period.  Additionally, there was $3.5 million of expense
associated with the proportionate share of losses in excess of the credit-based valuation mark, $0.9 million for FDIC
indemnification support, $1.0 million in retention plan expense, $0.3 million in professional fees related to the auction
of of the common stock warrant held by the U.S. Treasury, and other items not expected to recur of $1.1
million.  These expenses totaled $11.6 million for the second quarter of 2010.

After adjusting for these items, estimated noninterest expense was essentially unchanged, totaling $47.7 million for
the second quarter 2010.  Compared to the year-over-year quarter, excluding the FDIC special assessment and
acquisition-related expenses incurred during the second quarter 2009, estimated noninterest expense increased $17.1
million, primarily driven by higher salaries and employment benefits, occupancy costs, equipment expenses and
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marketing costs resulting from the 2009 acquisitions.

Likewise, acquisition-related costs for the first quarter of 2010 consisted of $1.0 million in integration-related costs,
$1.5 million in professional services fees, and $0.2 million in other costs.  Transition related items such as salaries and
employee benefits were $4.9 million, occupancy expense was $2.3 million, and other was $1.2 million for the same
period.    Additionally, there was $1.9 million of expense associated with the proportionate share of losses in excess of
the credit-based valuation mark and $0.6 million for FDIC indemnification support.  These expenses totaled $13.6 for
the first quarter of 2010.

For the six month period ended June 30, 2010, noninterest expense totaled $121.5 million compared to $62.7 million
for the comparable year-over-year period.  Excluding the items mentioned previously as well as severance costs
related to the sale of the property and casualty portion of the insurance business which occurred during the first
quarter 2009, noninterest expense was $95.3 million for the six month period ended June 30, 2010 as compared to
$60.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2009.
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INCOME TAXES
Income tax expense was $9.5 million and $0.7 million for the second quarters of 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The
effective tax rates for the second quarters of 2010 and 2009 were 34.8% and 32.6%, respectively.  Income tax expense
was $15.8 million and $3.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, with a tax benefit
related to securities transactions of $11 thousand for the six months ended June 30, 2010 and a tax expense of $1.2
million for the same period in 2009.  The effective tax rates for the six months ended June 30, 2010, and 2009, were
34.9% and 34.2%, respectively.

The increases in the effective tax rate was primarily due to a decrease in tax-exempt investment and loan interest as
well as an increase in taxable income associated with the 2009 bank acquisitions.  The increase was partially offset by
increased bank owned life insurance income as well as tax credits related to investments in low income housing which
were also a result of the 2009 acquisitions.

LOANS (excluding covered loans)
Loans, excluding covered loans, totaled $2.79 billion at the end of the second quarter, a decrease of $21.5 million, or
0.8%, over the balance of $2.82 billion as of March 31, 2010 and a decrease of $98.8 million, or 3.4%, over the
amount of $2.89 billion as of June 30, 2009.  As compared to the linked quarter, the composition of the loan portfolio
remained essentially the same with the slight overall decrease occurring in the commercial, construction and
residential real estate portfolios offset by a modest increase in the commercial real estate portfolio.  Overall, loan
demand continued to remain slow in the Company’s strategic operating markets.

Average loans excluding covered loans and loans held for sale, increased $60.9 million or 2.2% from the second
quarter of 2009.  Average commercial, commercial real estate, and construction loans increased $89.1 million or 4.5%
from the second quarter of 2009.  Year-to-date average loans, excluding loans covered and held for sale, increased
$97.9 million or 3.6% from the same period on 2009.  Year-to-date average commercial, commercial real estate, and
construction loans increased $129.5 million or 6.6% from the same period in 2009.

INVESTMENTS
Investment securities totaled $607.5 million as of June 30, 2010 as compared to $579.1 million as of December 31,
2009 and $560.9 million as of June 30, 2009.  The total investment portfolio represented 9.2% of total assets at June
30, 2010, 8.7% at December 31, 2009, and 14.8% at June 30, 2009.  Securities available-for-sale at June 30, 2010,
totaled $503.4 million, compared with $528.2 million at June 30, 2009, and $471.0 million at December 31,
2009.  The net increase relative to December 31, 2009 was due to the purchase of $100 million of FNMA agency
securities during the second quarter.  While loan demand remains muted, the Company intends to selectively redeploy
a portion of its large cash position to purchase investments as market conditions permit.  Future purchases will be
made utilizing the same discipline and portfolio management philosophy applied in the past, including avoidance of
credit risk and geographic concentration risk within mortgage-backed securities, while also balancing the Company’s
overall asset/liability management objectives.  The aforementioned purchase of FNMA agency securities represents
the Company’s commitment to this discipline and philosophy.  Additionally, early in the third quarter 2010 the
Company continued to redeploy its liquidity by purchasing approximately $150 million of adjustable rate
FNMA/FHLMC mortgage-backed securities in accordance with these guidelines.

The company has recorded, as a component of equity in accumulated other comprehensive income, an unrealized
after-tax gain on the investment portfolio of approximately $13.4 million at June 30, 2010, compared with an
unrealized after-tax gain of $7.5 million at June 30, 2009, and an unrealized after-tax gain of $10.2 million at
December 31, 2009.

DEPOSITS AND FUNDING
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Total deposits as of June 30, 2010 were $5.25 billion, a decline of $103.3 million, or 1.9%, from $5.35 billion as of
December 31, 2009.  A significant portion of this decrease related to declines in time deposits of $186.7 million and
noninterest-bearing deposits of $111.3 million, offset by increases in interest-bearing checking accounts of $75.6
million and savings accounts of $119.1 million.  The acquisition of low cost core deposits and customer relationships
is central to the Company’s long term operating strategy despite the current strong liquidity position.  As expected,
acquired-non-strategic balances, primarily brokered deposits and deposits in the western markets of Irwin, continued
to decline.  As of June 30, 2010, brokered deposits had declined to less than 5% of total deposits.  Overall, strategic
deposit retention from the acquisitions continues to exceed management’s expectations.

Borrowed funds as of June 30, 2010 totaled $443.7 million, as compared to $453.5 million as of March 31,
2010.  This decrease was primarily due to maturities of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances.  As compared
to the similar year-over-year period, borrowed funds declined $69.6 million, or 13.6%, from $513.3 million as of June
30, 2009.  The year-over-year comparison was impacted by long-term borrowings assumed as a result of the
FDIC-assisted transactions that were offset by significant maturities of primarily short- and long-term Federal Home
Loan Bank advances and other short-term borrowings.  Other than the Federal Home Loan Bank long-term debt
acquired in the Peoples and Irwin transactions in the third quarter of 2009, First Financial has not increased long-term
borrowings since the third quarter of 2008.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
First Financial manages risks through processes that regularly assess the overall level of risk and identifies specific
risks and the steps being taken to mitigate them. First Financial continues to enhance its risk management capabilities
and has, over time, enhanced risk awareness as part of the culture of the company.  First Financial employ’s a
structured Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) approach as part of this progression.  ERM allows First Financial to
align a variety of risk management activities within the company into a cohesive, enterprise-wide approach, focus on
process-level risk management activities and strategic objectives within the risk management culture, deliberately
consider risk responses and effectiveness of mitigation compared to established standards for risk appetite and
tolerance, recognize and respond to the significant organizational changes that have increased the size and complexity
of the organization, and consolidate information obtained through a common process into concise business
performance and risk information for management and the board of directors.

First Financial uses a robust regulatory risk framework as one of the foundational components of its ERM
framework.  This not only allows for a common categorization among business units, but allows for a consistent and
complete risk framework that can be summarized and assessed enterprise-wide.  In addition, the framework is
consistent with that used by the company’s regulators, allowing for additional feedback on First Financials ability to
assess and measure risk across the organization and for management and the board of directors to identify and
understand differences in assessed risk profiles using this same foundation.  The goal of this framework is to
implement effective risk management techniques and strategies, minimize losses, and strengthen the company’s overall
performance.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk represents the risk of loss due to failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its financial obligations in
accordance with contractual terms. First Financial manages credit risk through underwriting, periodically reviewing
and approving its credit exposures using Board approved credit policies and guidelines.

Allowance for loan and lease losses (Excluding covered assets)
Due to the significant difference in the accounting for the covered loans and the loss sharing agreements with the
FDIC, management believes that asset quality measures excluding the covered loans are generally more
meaningful.  Therefore, management has included asset quality measures that exclude covered loans in the table in
this section.

Management maintains the allowance at a level that is considered sufficient to absorb inherent risks in the loan
portfolio.  Management’s evaluation in establishing the adequacy of the allowance includes evaluation of the loan and
lease portfolios, historical loan and lease loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay (including the timing of future payments), the estimated value of any
underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, and other pertinent factors, such as
periodic internal and external evaluations of delinquent, nonaccrual, and classified loans.  The evaluation is inherently
subjective as it requires utilizing material estimates, including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to
be received on impaired loans.  The evaluation of these factors is the responsibility of the Allowance for Loan and
Lease Losses Committee, which is comprised of senior officers from the risk management, credit administration,
finance, and lending areas.

As of the end of the second quarter 2010, the allowance for uncovered loan and lease losses increased to $57.8 million
from $56.6 million as of March 31, 2010 and was $38.6 million as of June 30, 2009.  As a percentage of period-end
loans, the allowance for loan and lease losses was 2.07% as of June 30, 2010 as compared to 2.01% as of March 31,
2010 and 1.34% as of June 30, 2009.  The allowance for loan and lease losses as of June 30, 2010 reflects
management’s estimate of credit risk inherent in the Company’s portfolio at that time.
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Second quarter 2010 net charge-offs were $5.0 million, or 0.71% of average loans and leases, compared with $14.0
million, or 2.00%, for the linked quarter and $8.1 million, or 1.19%, for the comparable year-over-year quarter.  The
decrease compared to the linked quarter was impacted by the alleged fraudulent activity noted during the first quarter
2010 which totaled $8.8 million, representing 125 basis points of average loans and leases for the period.  Excluding
this activity, net charge-offs decreased slightly during the second quarter 2010 both in terms of dollar amount as well
as a percentage of average loans and leases.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2010, net charge-offs were $19.0 million, or 1.36% of average loans and
leases.  Excluding the alleged fraudulent activity noted above, net charge-offs were $10.2 million, or 0.73%, as
compared to $11.8 million, or 0.88%, for the six month period ended June 30, 2009.

Second quarter 2010 provision expense related to uncovered loans and leases was $6.2 million as compared to $11.4
million during the linked quarter and $10.4 million during the comparable year-over-year quarter.  As a percentage of
net charge-offs, second quarter 2010 provision expense equaled 123.4% compared to 81.0% during the first quarter
2010 and 127.2% during the second quarter 2009.  Year-to-date 2010 provision expense related to uncovered loans
and leases was $17.5 million as compared to $14.6 million during the comparable period in 2009.  As a percentage of
net charge-offs, year-to-date 2010 provision expense equaled 92.1% compared to 123.4% during the first six months
of 2009.

The table that follows indicates the activity in the allowance for loan losses, excluding covered loans, for the quarterly
periods presented.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
2010 2009 June 30,

(Dollars in thousands) June 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 2010 2009

Balance at beginning of
period $ 56,642 $ 59,311 $ 55,770 $ 38,649 $ 36,437 $ 59,311 $ 35,873
Provision for loan losses 6,158 11,378 14,812 26,655 10,358 17,536 14,617
Gross charge-offs
Commercial 1,156 6,275 1,143 2,924 4,707 7,431 7,228
Real estate-construction 2,386 2,126 6,788 4,552 1,340 4,512 1,340
Real estate-commercial 359 3,932 1,854 927 1,351 4,291 1,733
Real estate-residential 246 534 262 471 351 780 582
Installment 304 414 449 315 304 718 704
Home equity 580 684 1,105 382 332 1,264 550
All other 426 520 454 492 386 946 694
Total gross charge-offs 5,457 14,485 12,055 10,063 8,771 19,942 12,831
Recoveries
Commercial 120 109 148 91 333 229 393
Real estate-construction 24 0 0 0 0 24 0
Real estate-commercial 99 12 360 167 14 111 30
Real estate-residential 4 3 3 2 20 7 22
Installment 127 160 195 205 203 287 457
Home equity 10 87 6 9 1 97 1
All other 84 67 72 55 54 151 87
Total recoveries 468 438 784 529 625 906 990
Total net charge-offs 4,989 14,047 11,271 9,534 8,146 19,036 11,841
Ending allowance for loan
and lease losses -
uncovered $ 57,811 $ 56,642 $ 59,311 $ 55,770 $ 38,649 $ 57,811 $ 38,649
.
NET CHARGE-OFFS TO
AVERAGE LOANS AND
LEASES (ANNUALIZED)
Commercial 0.56% 3.18% 0.47% 1.31% 2.08% 1.90% 1.65%

Edgar Filing: FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP /OH/ - Form 10-Q

69



Real estate-construction 4.68% 3.72% 10.48% 6.90% 2.09% 4.17% 1.08%
Real estate-commercial 0.09% 1.47% 0.57% 0.30% 0.62% 0.77% 0.40%
Real estate-residential 0.32% 0.70% 0.31% 0.56% 0.38% 0.51% 0.31%
Installment 0.92% 1.30% 1.15% 0.50% 0.45% 1.11% 0.54%
Home equity 0.69% 0.73% 1.31% 0.47% 0.44% 0.71% 0.37%
All other 4.89% 6.46% 5.40% 6.35% 5.00% 5.67% 4.59%
Total net charge-offs 0.71% 2.00% 1.53% 1.31% 1.19% 1.36% 0.88%

While First Financial’s credit quality trends have experienced some deterioration over the past several quarters, the
company believes it is still well-positioned to handle the challenging economic environment and avoid many of the
troublesome areas facing the financial services industry.  However, the possibility exists that the company could
experience higher credit costs over the next several quarters.
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Allowance for loan and lease losses on covered loans
All loans acquired in the Peoples and Irwin acquisitions are covered by loss sharing agreements with the FDIC,
whereby the FDIC reimburses First Financial for the majority of the losses incurred. Additionally, these loans were
recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date.  Generally the determination of the fair value of the loans resulted in a
significant write-down in the value of the loans, which was assigned to an accretable or nonaccretable balance, with
the accretable balance being recognized as interest income over the remaining term of the loan. In accordance with
accounting for business combinations, there was no allowance brought forward on any of the acquired loans, as the
credit losses evident in the loans were included in the determination of the fair value of the loans at the acquisition
date and are represented by the nonaccretable balance.  The majority of the nonaccretable balance is expected to be
received from the FDIC through the loss sharing agreements and is recorded as a separate asset from the covered loans
and reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a result, the majority of loans acquired in the Peoples and Irwin
acquisitions were considered to be accruing loans as of the acquisition date. In accordance with regulatory reporting
standards, covered loans that are contractually past due will continue to be reported as past due and still accruing
based on the number of days past due.  First Financial had $27.5 million of covered nonaccrual loans, $215.4 million
of covered loans 90 days past due and still accruing, and $9.5 million of covered OREO at June 30, 2010.

There was no allowance for loan and lease losses related to covered loans prior to June 30, 2010 as these loans were
recorded at acquisition at their estimated fair value. With the exception of covered loans accounted for outside the
scope of FASB ASC Topic 310-30, improvements in the estimated fair value of covered loans are reflected through
higher yields on these loans while declines in the estimated fair value of covered loans are recorded as impairment
charges in the company’s operating results in the period in which the decline occurs.

The Company established an allowance for loan losses of $1.3 million associated with covered loans as of June
30, 2010 based upon its most recent impairment analysis.  Of this total reserve, $0.3 million, or 20%, was recognized
as a non-cash provision expense and the remaining $1.0 million, or 80%, was recorded as an increase to the FDIC
indemnification asset representing the portion of loss reimbursement expected from the FDIC under the loss sharing
agreement.  On an after-tax basis, the non-cash provision expense had an immaterial impact on diluted earnings per
share for the second quarter 2010.

Under the applicable accounting guidance, impairment is generally recognized in the current period as provision
expense while improvement in the credit outlook is not recognized immediately but instead is reflected as a loan yield
adjustment on a prospective basis.  The timing inherent in this accounting treatment may result in earnings volatility in
future periods.

Three Months EndedSix Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of period $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Provision for impairment on covered loans 254 0 254 0
Impact from FDIC loss share agreements 1,019 0 1,019 0
Loans charged off 0 0 0 0
Recoveries 0 0 0 0
Ending allowance for loan and lease losses - covered 1,273 0 1,273 0
Total allowance for loan and lease losses $ 1,273 $ 0 $ 1,273 $ 0

Nonperforming/Underperforming Assets (Excluding covered assets)
Nonperforming loans totaled $79.4 million and nonperforming assets totaled $96.2 million as of June 30, 2010
compared with $74.5 million and $92.5 million, respectively, for the linked quarter and $37.8 million and $43.0
million, respectively, for the comparable year-over-year quarter.  While total nonaccrual loans remained essentially
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unchanged, the individual components changed as commercial nonaccrual loans decreased $8.7 million, partially
driven by a credit that was transferred to restructured loans (see further discussion below), offset by increases in
construction nonaccrual loans of $1.2 million and commercial real estate nonaccrual loans of $7.1
million.  Nonperforming loans are accounted for under FASB Codification Topic 310-10-35: Subsequent
Measurement of Receivables.

The second quarter 2010 allowance for loan and lease losses as a percent of nonaccrual loans was 86.7% compared
with 84.7% in the first quarter of 2010, and 102.8% in the second quarter of 2009, and the allowance for loan and
lease losses as a percent of nonperforming loans was 72.8% at June 30, 2010, compared with 76.1% in the first quarter
of 2010, and 102.3% in the second quarter of 2009.
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Total classified assets increased $30.7 million during the second quarter to $201.9 million.  Classified assets are
defined by the Company as nonperforming assets plus performing loans internally rated substandard or worse.  This
increase was driven by the reclassification of certain performing loans rated special mention or pass to substandard,
primarily commercial real estate relationships involving borrowers in a range of industries including hospitality,
entertainment and residential development.  All credits included in classified assets are monitored closely and have
workout strategies in place should their status continue to deteriorate.

Recovery within the Company’s strategic markets remains sluggish as evidenced by the prolonged stress in both the
business and consumer economic environments and, as a result, First Financial’s credit results may continue to be
volatile.  Commercial real estate may face additional challenges as the combination of maturing credits and existing
loan-to-value levels may create difficulties for those borrowers exploring refinancing opportunities.

Restructured Loans
Restructured loans increased $5.2 million during the second quarter 2010, due primarily to one commercial
relationship totaling $5.0 million that was previously classified as nonaccrual in which the Company worked with the
borrower to modify certain terms including the addition of an interest-only feature for a specified period of time and
re-amortization.  Restructured loans remain on nonaccrual status until the borrower demonstrates the ability to comply
with the modified terms.

Delinquent Loans
Loans 30-to-89 days past due totaled $21.8 million, or 0.78% of period end loans, as of June 30, 2010.  This compares
to $22.6 million, or 0.80%, as of March 31, 2010 and $20.5 million, or 0.71%, as of June 30, 2009.

Other Real Estate Owned
At June 30, 2010, OREO was $16.8 million, compared with $4.1 million at December 31, 2009, and $5.2 million at
June 30, 2009.  One relationship with multiple commercial land loans, totaling $13.6 million in the aggregate, all of
which was previously classified as nonperforming, was transferred to OREO during the first quarter of 2010.

The table that follows shows the categories that are included in nonperforming and underperforming assets, excluding
covered assets, as of June 30, 2010, and the four previous quarters, as well as related credit quality ratios.

Quarter Ended
2010 2009

(Dollars in thousands) June 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30
Nonaccrual loans
Commercial $ 12,874 $ 21,572 $ 13,756 $ 13,244 $ 8,100
Real estate - construction 18,890 17,710 35,604 26,575 11,936
Real estate - commercial 28,272 21,196 15,320 12,407 10,130
Real estate - residential 4,571 4,116 3,993 5,253 4,897
Installment 267 365 660 493 394
Home equity 1,797 1,910 2,324 2,534 2,136
 Total nonaccrual loans 66,671 66,869 71,657 60,506 37,593
Restructured loans 12,752 7,584 6,125 3,102 197
Total nonperforming loans 79,423 74,453 77,782 63,608 37,790
Other real estate owned (OREO) 16,818 18,087 4,145 4,301 5,166
Total nonperforming assets 96,241 92,540 81,927 67,909 42,956
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 276 286 417 308 318
Total underperforming assets $ 96,517 $ 92,826 $ 82,344 $ 68,217 $ 43,274
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Allowance for loan and lease losses to
Nonaccrual loans 86.71% 84.71% 82.77% 92.17% 102.81%
Nonperforming loans 72.79% 76.08% 76.25% 87.68% 102.27%
Total ending loans 2.07% 2.01% 2.05% 1.94% 1.34%
Nonperforming loans to total loans 2.84% 2.65% 2.69% 2.21% 1.31%
Nonperforming assets to
Ending loans, plus OREO 3.42% 3.27% 2.83% 2.36% 1.48%
Total assets, including covered assets 1.46% 1.41% 1.23% 0.94% 1.14%
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MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. The primary source of market risk for First Financial is
interest-rate risk. Interest-rate risk is the risk to earnings and market value arising from changes in market interest
rates and arises in the normal course of business to the extent that there is a divergence between the amount of First
Financial’s interest-earning assets and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities that are prepaid/withdrawn, re-price, or
mature in specified periods. First Financial seeks to achieve consistent growth in net interest income and capital while
managing volatility arising from shifts in market interest rates. First Financial’s board of directors establishes policy
limits with respect to interest rate risk. First Financial’s Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) oversees market risk
management, monitoring risk measures, limits, and policy guidelines for managing the amount of interest-rate risk and
its effect on net interest income and capital.

Interest rate risk management is an active process that encompasses monitoring loan and deposit flows complemented
by investment and funding activities. Effective interest rate risk management begins with understanding the dynamic
characteristics of assets and liabilities and determining the appropriate interest rate risk position given business
activities, management objectives, market expectations and ALCO policy limits and guidelines.

Liquidity
Liquidity management is the process by which First Financial manages the continuing flow of funds necessary to meet
its financial commitments on a timely basis and at a reasonable cost.  These funding commitments include
withdrawals by depositors, credit commitments to borrowers, shareholder dividends, expenses of its operations, and
capital expenditures.  Liquidity is monitored and closely managed by ALCO, a group of senior officers from the
lending, deposit gathering, finance, risk management, and treasury areas. It is ALCO’s responsibility to ensure First
Financial has the necessary level of funds available for normal operations as well as maintain a contingency funding
policy to ensure that liquidity stress events are quickly identified, and management plans are in place to respond.  This
is accomplished through the use of policies which establish limits and require measurements to monitor liquidity
trends, including management reporting that identifies the amounts and costs of all available funding sources.  First
Financial has expanded its various funding sources, including overnight borrowing lines, and has a diversified base of
liquidity sources.  These sources are periodically tested for funding availability and there have been no restrictions in
availability.

Liquidity is derived primarily from deposit growth, principal and interest payments on loans and investment securities,
maturing loans and investment securities, access to wholesale funding sources, and collateralized borrowings.  First
Financial’s most stable source of liability-funded liquidity for both the long and short-term needs is deposit growth and
retention of the core deposit base.  The deposit base is diversified among individuals, partnerships, corporations,
public entities, and geographic markets.  This diversification helps First Financial minimize dependence on large
concentrations of funding sources.

Capital expenditures, such as banking center expansions and technology investments, were $12.3 million and $5.5
million for the first six months of 2010 and 2009, respectively.  Management believes that First Financial has
sufficient liquidity to fund its future capital expenditure commitments.

As of June 30, 2010, First Financial had pledged certain eligible residential and farm real estate loans, home equity
lines of credit, as well as certain government and agency securities, totaling $1.3 billion as collateral for borrowings to
the FHLB.  For ease of borrowing execution, First Financial utilizes a blanket collateral agreement with the FHLB.

From time to time, First Financial utilizes its short-term line of credit and longer-term advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank (FHLB) as funding sources.  At both June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the company had no
short-term borrowings from the FHLB.  At June 30, 2010, and December 31, 2009, total long-term borrowings from
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the FHLB were $319.8 million and $339.7 million, respectively.  The total remaining borrowing capacity from the
FHLB at June 30, 2010, was $103.2 million.

The principal source of asset-funded liquidity is marketable investment securities, particularly those of shorter
maturities.  The market value of investment securities classified as available-for-sale totaled $503.4 million at June 30,
2010.  Securities classified as held-to-maturity that are maturing in one year or less are also a source of liquidity and
totaled $4.2 million at June 30, 2010.  In addition, other types of assets such as cash and due from banks, federal funds
sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell, as well as loans maturing within one year, are sources of
liquidity.

At June 30, 2010, in addition to liquidity on hand of $842.5 million, First Financial had unused and available
overnight wholesale funding of approximately $2.7 billion to fund any significant deposit runoff that may occur as a
result of acquired-non-strategic markets.
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Certain restrictions exist regarding the ability of First Financial’s subsidiaries to transfer funds to First Financial in the
form of cash dividends, loans, or advances.  The approval of the subsidiaries’ respective primary federal regulators is
required for First Financial’s subsidiaries to pay dividends in excess of regulatory limitations.  In June 2010, banking
regulators issued interagency guidelines on their evaluation of bargain purchase gains created in business
combinations.  The guidance lists several situations in which the bargain purchase gain is to be excluded from capital
during the one year period under which U.S. generally accepted accounting principles allow for adjustments to be
made to the original asset and liability valuations (“conditional period”). Capital will be excluded for the calculations of
legal lending limits, bank-to-parent dividend availability and any other business combination application.  The
Company remains within the conditional period but management does not expect any material negative impact as a
result of this guidance. Dividends paid to First Financial from its subsidiaries totaled $0.4 million for the first six
months of 2010.  As of June 30, 2010, First Financial’s subsidiaries had retained earnings of $377.8 million of which
$5.5 million was available for distribution to First Financial prior to the expiration of the conditional period at the end
of the third quarter of 2010.  Upon expiration of the conditional period, approximately $245.3 million will be available
for distribution to First Financial without prior regulatory approval.  Management is not aware of any other events or
regulatory requirements that, if implemented, are likely to have a material effect on First Financial’s liquidity.

First Financial Bancorp makes quarterly interest payments on its junior subordinated debenture owed to its
unconsolidated subsidiary trust.  Interest expense related to this other long-term debt totaled $0.3 million for each of
the three months ended June 30, 2010, and 2009.  Interest expense was $0.6 million for each of the six months ended
June 30, 2010, and 2009.  Through the execution of an interest-rate swap the company has fixed its interest rate on the
debentures for the next 10 years at 6.20%.

During 2009, First Financial made quarterly dividend payments to the U.S. Treasury on the 80,000 perpetual preferred
securities, which carried a 5.0% dividend rate for the first five years and a 9.0% rate thereafter. On February 24, 2010,
First Financial Bancorp redeemed all of the $80.0 million of senior preferred shares issued to the U.S. Treasury in
December 2008 under its CPP. First Financial included in its computation of earnings per diluted common share the
impact of a non-cash, deemed dividend of $0.8 million, representing the unaccreted preferred stock discount
remaining on the transaction date. This one-time deemed dividend was in addition to the first quarter 2010 preferred
cash dividends paid through the redemption date, totaling $1.1 million.

First Financial had no share repurchase activity under publicly announced plans in 2009 or 2010.  First Financial does
not plan to repurchase any of its shares during 2010.

OPERATIONAL RISK
As with all companies, First Financial is subject to operational risk in all the products and services offered and in
every business line. Operational risk is the risk of loss due to human behavior, inadequate or failed internal systems
and controls, and external influences such as market conditions, fraudulent activities, disasters, and security risks.
First Financial continuously strives to strengthen the company’s system of internal controls, operating processes and
employee awareness to assess the impact on earnings and capital and to improve the oversight of our operational risk.

COMPLIANCE RISK
Compliance risk represents the risk of regulatory sanctions, reputational impact or financial loss resulting from the
company’s failure to comply with regulations and standards of good banking practice. Activities which may expose
First Financial to compliance risk include, but are not limited to, those dealing with the prevention of money
laundering, privacy and data protection, community reinvestment initiatives, fair lending challenges resulting from the
company’s expansion of its banking center network and employment and tax matters.

STRATEGIC AND/OR REPUTATION RISK
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Strategic and/or reputation risk represents the risk of loss due to impairment of reputation, failure to fully develop and
execute business plans, failure to assess current and new opportunities in business, markets and products, and any
other event not identified in the defined risk types mentioned previously.  Mitigation of the various risk elements that
represent strategic and/or reputation risk is achieved through initiatives to help First Financial better understand and
report on the various risks.

CAPITAL
First Financial and its subsidiary, First Financial Bank, are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by
federal banking agencies.  Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action
regulations involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under
regulatory accounting practices.  Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by
regulators.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate regulatory action.
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On June 8, 2009, First Financial completed a public offering of 13.8 million shares of its common stock adding
approximately $98.0 million of additional common equity, after offering related costs. As a result of the capital raise,
the company's capital ratios further improved and continued to significantly exceed the amounts necessary to be
classified as well capitalized.

On February 2, 2010, First Financial completed a public offering of 6.4 million shares of its common stock adding
approximately $91.2 million of additional common equity, after offering related costs.  This public offering completed
the issuance of common shares available to be offered pursuant to a prospectus supplement and base prospectus files
as part of an existing shelf registration statement, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Form
S-3.

Consolidated regulatory capital ratios at June 30, 2010, included the leverage ratio of 10.34%, Tier 1 ratio of 18.75%,
and total capital ratio of 20.02%.  All regulatory capital ratios exceeded the amounts necessary to be classified as “well
capitalized,” and total regulatory capital exceeded the “minimum” requirement by approximately $438.2 million, on a
consolidated basis.  First Financial’s tangible common equity ratio increased to 9.90% for the second quarter 2010 as
compared to 9.73% for the linked quarter and 9.06% for the comparable year-over-year quarter.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require First Financial to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (as defined by the regulations and set forth in the following table) of Total and Tier 1
capital to risk-weighted assets and to average assets, respectively.  Management believes, as of June 30, 2010, that
First Financial met all capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject.  At June 30, 2010, and December 31,
2009, regulatory notifications categorized First Financial as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action.  To be categorized as well-capitalized, First Financial must maintain minimum Total
risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table.  There have been no conditions or
events since those notifications that management believes has changed the institution’s category.

First Financial’s Tier I capital is comprised of total shareholders’ equity plus junior subordinated debentures, less
unrealized gains and losses and any amounts resulting from the application of FASB ASC Topic 715,
Compensation-Retirement Benefits, that is recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),
intangible assets, and any valuation related to mortgage servicing rights.  Total risk-based capital consists of Tier I
capital plus qualifying allowance for loan and lease losses and gross unrealized gains on equity securities.

For purposes of calculating the leverage ratio, average assets represents quarterly average assets less assets not
qualifying for Total risk-based capital including intangibles and non-qualifying mortgage servicing rights and
allowance for loan and lease losses.

The Peoples and Irwin FDIC-assisted transactions, which were each accounted for as a business combination, resulted
in the recognition of an FDIC Indemnification Asset, which represents the fair value of estimated future payments by
the FDIC to First Financial for losses on covered assets.  The FDIC Indemnification Asset, as well as covered assets,
are risk-weighted at 20% for regulatory capital requirement purposes.

U.S. Department of the Treasury Troubled Asset Relief Program
The U.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”), working with the Federal Reserve Board, established late in 2008 the
Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) Capital Purchase Program (CPP), which was intended to stabilize the
financial services industry.  One of the components of the CPP included a $250 billion voluntary capital purchase
program for certain qualified and healthy banking institutions.  Pursuant to the CPP, Treasury purchased from First
Financial 80,000 shares of $1,000 par value senior perpetual preferred securities at a price of $80.0 million equal to
approximately 3.0% of the company’s then risk-weighted assets.  Such preferred shares paid a dividend of 5% for the
first five years and increased to 9% thereafter.  In addition, subject to certain limited exceptions, financial institutions
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participating in the CPP are prohibited from (a) increasing their dividend to common shareholders and (b) conducting
share repurchases without prior approval of the Treasury.  Participating financial institutions are also subject to certain
limitations on executive compensation as well as other conditions.  On January 21, 2009, First Financial filed a
registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC to register these securities as required by the security purchase
agreement with the Treasury.  On February 19, 2009, the registration statement was deemed effective by the SEC.

During February 2010, First Financial successfully completed a follow-on equity offering and, after deducting
underwriting and other offering costs, received net proceeds of $91.2 million.  On February 24, 2010, First Financial
used most of the net proceeds to redeem all of the $80 million in senior preferred shares issued to the U.S. Treasury in
December 2008 under its Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”), a component of the Troubled Asset Relief Program
(“TARP”).  Subsequent to the equity offering and redemption of the preferred shares, the Company experienced an
increase in its already strong regulatory and GAAP capitalization levels.
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Treasury also received a warrant for the purchase of common stock in the amount of 930,233 shares at a strike price of
$12.90 per share and expires on December 23, 2018.  As a result of the common equity raised during the second
quarter of 2009, the number of common shares eligible for purchase under the warrant agreement was reduced by 50%
to 465,117 shares.  In June 2010, the U.S. Treasury conducted an auction of the warrants in which the warrants were
sold in a public offering at a price of $6.70 per warrant.  This transaction represents the final step in the redemption
process and the U.S. Treasury no longer owns any securities issued by First Financial.

The following table illustrates the actual and required capital amounts and ratios as of June 30, 2010, and the year
ended December 31, 2009.

To Be Well
Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
JUNE 30, 2010
Total capital to risk-weighted
assets
Consolidated 729,962 20.02% 291,729 8.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 651,271 17.92% 290,818 8.00% 363,523 10.00%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets
Consolidated 683,777 18.75% 145,864 4.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 597,854 16.45% 145,409 4.00% 218,114 6.00%

Tier 1 capital to average assets
Consolidated 683,777 10.34% 263,749 4.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 597,854 9.05% 263,287 4.00% 329,109 5.00%

To Be Well
Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
DECEMBER 31, 2009
Total capital to risk-weighted
assets
Consolidated 703,202 17.99% 312,648 8.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 622,076 15.95% 311,929 8.00% 389,911 10.00%

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets
Consolidated 654,104 16.74% 156,324 4.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 565,666 14.51% 155,965 4.00% 233,947 6.00%

Tier 1 capital to average assets
Consolidated 654,104 9.57% 272,495 4.00% N/A N/A
First Financial Bank 565,666 8.24% 273,698 4.00% 342,123 5.00%
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The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Financial Reform Act) was
signed into law.  The Financial Reform Act provides for, among other matters, increased regulatory supervision and
examination of financial institutions, the imposition of more stringent capital requirements on financial institutions
and increased regulation of derivatives and hedging transactions.  Provided below is an overview of key elements of
the Financial Reform Act relevant to the Corporation. Most of the provisions contained in the Financial Reform Act
will be effective immediately upon enactment; however, many have delayed effective dates. Implementation of the
Financial Reform Act will require many new mandatory and discretionary rules to be made by federal regulatory
agencies over the next several years.  Estimates of the impact on the Company’s financial statements are still under
review.  Given the uncertainty of the timing and scope of the rulemaking, the potential impact is subject to change
until this process is complete.
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•Interest on Demand Deposits: Effective July 21, 2010, allows interest on commercial demand deposits, which could
lead to increased cost of commercial demand deposits, depending on the interplay of interest, deposit credits and
service charges.

•TAG Extension: Provides unlimited deposit insurance on noninterest-bearing accounts from December 31, 2010 to
December 31, 2012.

• Deposit Insurance:
oChanges the definition of assessment base from domestic deposits to net assets (average consolidated total assets
less average tangible equity).
oIncreases the deposit insurance fund’s minimum reserve ratio and permanently increases general deposit insurance
coverage from $100,000 to $250,000.
oProvides unlimited FDIC insurance for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts at all banks, effective December
31, 2010 and continuing through December 31, 2012.

•Derivatives: Allows continued trading of foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives. Requires banks to shift
energy, uncleared commodities and agriculture derivatives to a separately capitalized subsidiary within their holding
company.   First Financial does not participate in the client-driven energy, commodities or agricultural derivatives
business.

•Interchange Fee: Limits debit card transaction processing fees that card issuers can charge to merchants which could
lead to a decrease in fees earned from referrals.

• Trust Preferred Securities: Prohibits holding companies with more than $15 billion in assets from including
trust preferred securities as Tier 1 capital, and allows for a phase-in period of three years, beginning on
January 1, 2013.  As the company’s total assets are less than $15 billion, this provision has no impact at the
current time.

FDIC Transaction Account Guarantee Program
First Financial opted to participate in the FDIC’s transaction account guarantee program. One component of this
program included full deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts, regardless of size, until
June 30, 2010. Participation in this program resulted in an increase in deposit insurance premiums.

In April 2010, the FDIC announced the continued extension of the Transaction Account Guarantee Program (TAG)
beyond the current expiration of June 30, 2010 to December 31, 2010, with the possibility of a 12 month extension
through December 31, 2011.  First Financial Bank had previously participated in the expanded coverage (unlimited
FDIC insurance on demand deposits and low rate NOW accounts) in both the initial introduction and in the first
extension (November 2009).  First Financial Bank has concluded that it would be in the best interest of the bank,
clients, and shareholders to opt-out of the new extensions.  This was communicated to the FDIC on April 29, 2010. 
Therefore, beginning on July 1, 2010, First Financial Bank will no longer participate in the FDIC's TAG and funds
held in noninterest bearing transaction accounts, certain interest-bearing checking accounts, and IOLTA/ IOTA
accounts will no longer be guaranteed in full under TAG.  However, these accounts will be insured up to $250,000 per
depositor under the FDIC's general deposit rules.  See also the discussion of the Financial Reform Bill in “The
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act” section presented earlier herein with respect to the
FDIC insurance on noninterest-bearing transaction accounts.

The standard maximum insurance deposit amount of $250,000 per depositor was made permanent on July 21, 2010
when the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was signed.  The FDIC coverage limit
applies per depositor, per insured depository institution, for each account ownership category.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
First Financial’s Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared based on the application of accounting policies. These
policies require the reliance on estimates and assumptions. Changes in underlying factors, assumptions, or estimates in
any of these areas could have a material impact on First Financial’s future financial condition and results of operations.
In management’s opinion, some of these areas have a more significant impact than others on First Financial’s financial
reporting. For First Financial, these areas currently include accounting for the allowance for loan and lease losses
covered loans, FDIC indemnification asset, goodwill, pension and income taxes.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses.  First Financial maintains the allowance for loan and lease losses at a level
sufficient to absorb potential losses inherent in the loan portfolio given the conditions at the time. Management
determines the adequacy of the allowance based on periodic evaluations of the loan portfolio and other factors.  These
evaluations are inherently subjective as they require material estimates, all of which may be susceptible to significant
change, including, among others:

• Probability of default,
• Loss given default,
• Exposure at date of default,
• Amounts and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans,
• Value of collateral,
• Historical loss exposure, and
• The effects of changes in economic conditions that may not be reflected in historical results.

To the extent actual outcomes differ from management's estimates, additional provision for credit losses may be
required that would impact First Financial's operating results.

Covered loans. Loans acquired in FDIC-assisted transactions are covered under loss sharing agreements. Covered
loans were recorded at fair value at acquisition. Fair values for covered loans were based on a discounted cash flow
methodology that considered various factors including the type of loan and related collateral, classification status,
fixed or variable interest rate, term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing, and a discount rate reflecting
the Company’s assessment of risk inherent in the cash flow estimates. Covered loans were grouped together according
to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate when applying various valuation techniques.

FDIC indemnification asset. FDIC indemnification assets result from the loss share agreements in the assisted
transactions and are measured separately from the related covered assets as they are not contractually embedded in the
assets and are not transferable with the assets should First Financial choose to dispose of them. Fair value is estimated
using projected cash flows related to the loss sharing agreements based on the expected reimbursements for losses and
the applicable loss sharing percentages. These expected reimbursements do not include reimbursable amounts related
to future covered expenditures. These cash flows are discounted to reflect the uncertainty of the timing and receipt of
the loss sharing reimbursement from the FDIC.

Goodwill.  Goodwill arising from business acquisitions represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible
elements in the business acquired. FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other, requires goodwill to be
tested for impairment on an annual basis and more frequently in certain circumstances. At least annually, First
Financial reviews goodwill for impairment using both income and asset based approaches. The income-based
approach utilizes a multiple of earnings method in which First Financial's annualized earnings are compared to equity
to provide an implied book-value-to-earnings multiple. First Financial then compares the implied multiple to current
marketplace earnings multiples for which banks are being traded. An implied multiple less than current marketplace
earnings multiples is an indication of possible goodwill impairment. The asset-based approach uses the discounted
cash flows of First Financial's assets and liabilities, inclusive of goodwill, to determine an implied fair value. This
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input is used to calculate the fair value of the company, including goodwill, and is compared to the company's book
value. An implied fair value that exceeds the company's book value is an indication that goodwill is not impaired. If
First Financial's book value exceeds the implied fair value, an impairment loss equal to the excess amount would be
recognized. Based on First Financial's analysis at year-end 2009, there have been no impairment charges required.

Pension.  First Financial sponsors a non-contributory defined-benefit pension plan covering substantially all
employees. Accounting for the pension plan involves material estimates regarding future plan obligations and
investment returns on plan assets. Significant assumptions used in the pension plan include the discount rate, expected
return on plan assets, and the rate of compensation increase. First Financial determines the discount rate assumption
using published Corporate Bond Indices, projected cash flows of the pension plan, and comparisons to external
industry surveys for reasonableness. The expected long-term return on plan assets is based on the composition of plan
assets and a consensus of estimates of expected future returns from similarly managed portfolios while the rate of
compensation increase is compared to historical increases for plan participants. Changes in these assumptions can
have a material impact on the amount of First Financial's future pension obligations, on the funded status of the plan
and can impact First Financial's operating results.
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Income Taxes.  First Financial evaluates and assesses the relative risks and appropriate tax treatment of transactions
after considering statutes, regulations, judicial precedent and other information and maintains tax accruals consistent
with its evaluation of these relative risks. Changes to the estimate of accrued taxes occur periodically due to changes
in tax rates, interpretations of tax laws, the status of examinations being conducted by taxing authorities and changes
to statutory, judicial and regulatory guidance that impact the relative risks of tax positions. These changes, when they
occur, can affect deferred taxes and accrued taxes as well as the current period's income tax expense and can be
material to First Financial's operating results.

ACCOUNTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements discusses new accounting standards adopted by First Financial during
2010 and the expected impact of accounting standards recently issued but not yet required to be adopted.  To the
extent the adoption of new accounting standards materially affects financial condition, results of operations, or
liquidity, the impacts are discussed in the applicable section(s) of Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION
Certain statements contained in this report that are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act (the Act).  In addition, certain
statements in future filings by First Financial with the SEC, in press releases, and in oral and written statements made
by or with the approval of First Financial which are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Act.

Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, projections of revenues, income or loss,
earnings or loss per share, the payment or non-payment of dividends, capital structure and other financial items,
statements of plans and objectives of First Financial or its management or board of directors, and statements of future
economic performances and statements of assumptions underlying such statements.  Words such as “believes,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” and other similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the
exclusive means of identifying such statements.

Management’s analysis contains forward-looking statements that are provided to assist in the understanding of
anticipated future financial performance. However, such performance involves risk and uncertainties that may cause
actual results to differ materially. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the
forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

• management’s ability to effectively execute its business plan;
• the risk that the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the local economies in which
we conduct operations may continue to deteriorate resulting in, among other things, a further deterioration in credit
quality or a reduced demand for credit, including the resultant effect on our loan portfolio, allowance for loan and
lease losses and overall financial performance;

• the ability of financial institutions to access sources of liquidity at a reasonable cost; the impact of recent upheaval
in the financial markets and the effectiveness of domestic and international governmental actions taken in response,
such as the U.S. Treasury’s TARP and the FDIC’s Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, and the effect of such
governmental actions on us, our competitors and counterparties, financial markets generally and availability of
credit specifically, and the U.S. and international economies, including potentially higher FDIC premiums arising
from participation in the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program or from increased payments from FDIC
insurance funds as a result of depository institution failures;

• the effects of and changes in policies and laws of regulatory agencies (notably the recently enacted Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act);

• inflation and possible changes in interest rates;
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• our ability to keep up with technological changes;
•mergers and acquisitions, including costs or difficulties related to the integration of acquired companies, including
our ability to successfully integrate the branches of Peoples and Irwin which were acquired out of FDIC
receivership;

• the risk that exploring merger and acquisition opportunities may detract from management’s time and ability to
successfully manage our company;

•expected cost savings in connection with the consolidation of recent acquisitions may not be fully realized or
realized within the expected time frames, and deposit attrition, customer loss and revenue loss following completed
acquisitions may be greater than expected;

• our ability to increase market share and control expenses;
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• the effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies as well as
the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the SEC; adverse changes in the securities and debt markets;

•our success in recruiting and retaining the necessary personnel to support business growth and expansion and
maintain sufficient expertise to support increasingly complex products and services;

•monetary and fiscal policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (Federal Reserve) and the
U.S. government and other governmental initiatives affecting the financial services industry;

•our ability to manage loan delinquency and charge-off rates and changes in estimation of the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses; and

• the costs and effects of litigation and of unexpected or adverse outcomes in such litigation.

In addition, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, as well as our
other filings with the SEC, for a more detailed discussion of these risks and uncertainties and other factors.  Such
forward-looking statements are meaningful only on the date when such statements are made, and First Financial
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on
which such a statement is made to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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ITEM 3.      QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to changes in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.  The primary source of market risk for First Financial is
interest rate risk.  Interest rate risk arises in the normal course of business to the extent that there is a divergence
between the amount of First Financial’s interest-earning assets and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities that are
prepaid/withdrawn, re-price, or mature in specified periods.  First Financial seeks to achieve consistent growth in net
interest income and capital while managing volatility arising from shifts in market interest rates.  The Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO) oversees market risk management, establishing risk measures, limits, and policy
guidelines for managing the amount of interest-rate risk and its effect on net interest income and capital.

Interest-rate risk for First Financial’s Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of repricing, option, and basis risks. 
Repricing risk results from differences in the maturity, or repricing, of interest-bearing assets and liabilities.  Option
risk in financial instruments arises from embedded options such as loan prepayments, early withdrawal of Certificates
of Deposits, and calls on investments and debt instruments that are primarily driven by third party or client behavior. 
Basis risk refers to the potential for changes in the underlying relationship between market rates or indices, which
subsequently result in a narrowing of the net interest margin.  Basis risk is also present in managed rate liabilities,
such as interest-bearing checking accounts and savings accounts, where historical pricing relationships to market rates
may change due to the level or directional change in market interest rates, or competitive pressures.

The interest rate risk position is measured and monitored using income simulation models and economic value of
equity sensitivity analysis that capture both short-term and long-term interest rate risk exposure.  Income simulation
involves forecasting net interest income under a variety of interest rate scenarios including instantaneous shocks.

Presented below is the estimated impact on First Financial’s net interest income as of June 30, 2010, assuming
immediate, parallel shifts in interest rates:

-200 bas is
points

-100 bas is
points

+100 basis
points

+200 basis
points

June 30, 2010 (8.06)% (2.68)% 2.37% 3.82%

Modeling the sensitivity of net interest income and the economic value of equity to changes in market interest rates is
highly dependent on numerous assumptions incorporated into the modeling process.  Due to the current low interest
rate environment, funding rates on deposit and wholesale funding instruments were not reduced below 0.0% in the
down 200 and down 100 basis points scenarios.  The analysis provides a framework as to what our overall sensitivity
is as of our most recent reported position.  Management strategies may impact future reporting periods, as our actual
results may differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude, and frequency of interest rate changes, the
difference between actual experience, and the characteristics assumed, as well as changes in market conditions. 
Market based prepayment speeds are factored into the analysis for loan and securities portfolios.  Rate sensitivity for
transactional deposit accounts is modeled based on both historical experience and external industry studies.

First Financial uses economic value of equity sensitivity analysis to understand the impact of changes in interest rates
on long-term cash flows, income, and capital.  Economic value of equity is based on discounting the cash flows for all
balance sheet instruments under different interest-rate scenarios.  Deposit premiums are based on external industry
studies and utilizing historical experience.  Presented below is the change in First Financial’s economic value of equity
position as of June 30, 2010, assuming immediate, parallel shifts in interest rates and excluding the impact of the
Irwin acquisition as noted above:
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- 200  ba s i s
points

-100 bas is
points

+100 basis
points

+200 basis
points

June 30, 2010 (17.63)% (8.08)% 4.22% 7.88%

First Financial, utilizing interest rates primarily based upon external industry studies, models additional scenarios
covering the next twelve months.  Based on these scenarios, First Financial has a relatively neutral rate risk position of
a positive 0.65% when compared to a base-case scenario with interest rates held constant.  Given its outlook for future
interest rates, First Financial is managing its balance sheet with a bias toward asset sensitivity.

See also “Item 2-Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Net Interest
Income.”
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ITEM 4.   CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and procedures, as defined
under Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, that are designed to cause the material information
required to be disclosed by First Financial in the reports it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
to be recorded, processed, summarized, and reported to the extent applicable within the time periods required by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.  In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.  Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, First Financial performed an evaluation under the supervision and
with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

On July 31, 2009, First Financial acquired the banking operations of Peoples Community Bank (Peoples) through an
agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. On September 18, 2009, First Financial acquired the
banking operations of Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and Irwin Union Bank, FSB (Irwin, collectively)
through an agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  The internal control over financial reporting of
Peoples’ and Irwin’s banking operations were excluded from the evaluation of effectiveness of First Financial’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of the period end covered by this report as a result of the timing of the
acquisitions.  As a result of the Peoples and Irwin acquisitions, First Financial will be evaluating changes to processes,
information technology systems and other components of internal control over financial reporting as part of its
integration activities.

The acquired Peoples banking operations represents 9.9% of total consolidated deposits and 8.3% of total consolidated
assets as of the period covered by this report.  The acquired Irwin banking operations represents 47.6% of total
consolidated deposits and 29.3% of total consolidated assets as of the period covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
No changes were made to the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the last fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II-OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.         Legal Proceedings.

We make the following disclosure in connection with the acquisition of certain assets and assumption of certain
liabilities of Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company (Irwin Union Bank) by First Financial Bank from the FDIC as
receiver for Irwin Union Bank.  The acquisition was completed pursuant to a Purchase and Assumption Agreement by
and among the FDIC, the FDIC as receiver, and First Financial Bank dated September 18, 2009, as amended (the
“Purchase Agreement”).  Some of these claims involve Irwin Union Bank prior to it being placed in receivership and are
thus the responsibility of the FDIC as receiver pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.  Furthermore, with respect to the
claims set forth below, First Financial Bank has or expects to submit requests for indemnification to the FDIC as
receiver pursuant to Section 12 of the Purchase Agreement.  Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the FDIC as
receiver has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless First Financial Bank for certain claims against Irwin Union Bank
and the former subsidiaries of Irwin Union Bank for actions taken on or prior to September 18, 2009.  First Financial
believes the matters discussed below qualify for indemnification.  Furthermore, discussions are ongoing with the
FDIC regarding indemnification with respect to certain actions taken by Irwin and its subsidiaries in connection the
purchase of certain assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Irwin by First Financial Bank from the FDIC as
receiver.

Litigation in Connection with Loans Purchased by Former Irwin Subsidiaries from Freedom Mortgage Corporation

On January 22, 2008, Irwin Union Bank and Irwin Home Equity Corporation (IHE), filed suit against Freedom
Mortgage Corporation (Freedom) in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, Oakland
Division, Irwin Union Bank, et al. v. Freedom Mortgage Corp. (the “First California Action”), for breach of contract and
negligence arising out of Freedom’s refusal to repurchase certain mortgage loans that Irwin Union Bank and IHE had
purchased from Freedom. Irwin Union Bank and IHE are seeking damages in excess of $8 million from Freedom.

In response, in March 2008, Freedom moved to compel arbitration of the claims asserted in the First California Action
and filed suit against Irwin Mortgage Corporation (Irwin Mortgage) and its former indirect parent, Irwin Financial
Corporation (IFC), (now in Chapter 7 bankruptcy), in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware,
Freedom Mortgage Corporation v. Irwin Financial Corporation et al., (the “Delaware Action”). Freedom alleged that the
repurchase demands in the First California Action represent various breaches of an Asset Purchase Agreement dated
as of August 7, 2007, which was entered into by IFC, Irwin Mortgage and Freedom in connection with the sale to
Freedom of the majority of Irwin Mortgage’s loan origination assets. In the Delaware Action, Freedom sought
damages in excess of $8 million and to compel Irwin Financial to order its (now former) subsidiaries in the First
California Action to dismiss their claims.

In April 2008, the California district court stayed the First California Action pending completion of arbitration. The
arbitration remains pending.  The California district judge previously stated on the record that she would not hear
Freedom’s claims in the Delaware Action until the arbitration is completed.

On March 23, 2009, the Delaware district court granted Irwin’s motion to transfer the Delaware Action to the Northern
District of California, and ordered that the Delaware case be closed.  The Delaware Action was transferred on March
30, 2009 and officially filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco
Division, on March 31, 2009, Freedom Mortgage Corporation v. Irwin Financial Corporation and Irwin Mortgage
Corporation (the “Second California Action”).

As a result of the FDIC receivership of Irwin Union Bank and the bankruptcy of Irwin Financial, several stipulations
were entered into postponing various case management dates originally ordered by the court.  No reserves have been
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established for this litigation.

First Financial Bank continues to evaluate this matter and expects to conduct discussions with the FDIC counsel and
make a claim for indemnification with respect to the subsidiaries.
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EverBank v. Irwin Mortgage Corporation and Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company-Demand for Arbitration

On March 25, 2009, Irwin Mortgage and Irwin Union Bank received an arbitration demand (Demand) from EverBank
for administration by the American Arbitration Association (AAA), claiming damages for alleged breach of an
”Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Servicing” (the “EverBank Agreement”) under which Irwin Mortgage is alleged to
have sold the servicing of certain mortgage loans to EverBank. The Demand also alleges that Irwin Union Bank is the
guarantor of Irwin Mortgage’s obligations under the EverBank Agreement, and that the EverBank Agreement was
amended November 1, 2006 to include additional loans. According to the Demand, EverBank alleges that Irwin
Mortgage and Irwin Union Bank breached certain warranties and covenants under the EverBank Agreement by failing
to repurchase certain loans and failing to indemnify EverBank after EverBank had demanded repurchase. The Demand
sets forth several claims based on legal theories of breach of warranty, breach of the covenant of good faith and fair
dealing, promissory estoppel, specific performance and unjust enrichment, and requests damages, penalties, interest,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and other appropriate relief to be granted by the arbitration panel. The Demand also states that,
as a result of Irwin Mortgage’s alleged failure to repurchase loans, EverBank has allegedly incurred and continues to
incur damages that it claims could exceed $10,000,000.  In April 2009, Irwin Mortgage and Irwin Union Bank filed an
answer and counter-claims to the Demand.  Discussions to resolve this matter led to the issuance of a stay of the
arbitration on February 16, 2010.  A reserve has been established that is deemed appropriate for resolution of all open
repurchase issues with EverBank.

On October 23, 2009, First Financial requested indemnification from the FDIC for this matter under the Agreement
and expects to conduct discussions with the FDIC.

Additional Repurchase Demands

Irwin Mortgage has recorded a liability for losses from the potential repurchases by Irwin Mortgage of loans it sold
that allegedly contained origination errors.  Such alleged errors included inaccurate appraisals, errors in underwriting,
and ineligibility for inclusion in loan programs of government-sponsored entities.  In determining liability levels for
repurchases, we estimate the number of loans that may contain origination errors, the year in which the loss is
expected to occur, and the expected severity of the loss upon occurrence applied to an average loan amount.
Inaccurate assumptions in setting this liability could result in changes in future liabilities.   A reserve has been
established that is deemed appropriate for resolution of verified repurchase issues.

In addition, in August 2009, Irwin Mortgage received a request to repurchase approximately 1,700 mobile home loans
with an unpaid principal balance of approximately $154 million.  The request alleged that title was not perfected with
respect to these loans in accordance with contractual terms.  However, Irwin Mortgage believes the requesting party
has failed to provide sufficient evidence to support its claim.  Irwin Mortgage disputed the claim in September 2009.
Additional unsubstantiated claims have been received subsequent to the August 2009 requests of approximately $15
million.  Based on the information available at the time of this filing, there is insufficient evidence to warrant the
recording of a reserve for these claims.

We and our subsidiaries are from time to time engaged in various matters of litigation, including the matters described
above, other assertions of improper or fraudulent loan practices or lending violations, and other matters, and we have a
number of unresolved claims pending. In addition, as part of the ordinary course of business, we and our subsidiaries
are parties to litigation involving claims to the ownership of funds in particular accounts, the collection of delinquent
accounts, challenges to security interests in collateral, and foreclosure interests, that is incidental to our regular
business activities. While the ultimate liability with respect to these other litigation matters and claims cannot be
determined at this time, we believe that damages, if any, and other amounts relating to pending matters are not likely
to be material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations, except as described above. Reserves are
established for these various matters of litigation, when appropriate under FASB ASC Topic 450, Contingencies,
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based in part upon the advice of legal counsel.
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Item 1A.      Risk Factors.

Possible Additional Risks
The risks listed here are not the only risks we face. Additional risks that are not presently known, or that we presently
deem to be immaterial, also could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations,
business, and prospects. (See also “Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” for certain forward looking statements.)

Recent Market, Legislative, and Regulatory Events
Difficult market conditions have adversely affected our industry.
Dramatic declines in the housing market over the past years, with falling home prices and increasing foreclosures,
unemployment and under-employment, have negatively impacted the credit performance of real estate related loans
and resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial institutions. These write-downs, initially of
mortgage-backed securities (MBS) but spreading to other securities and loans have caused many financial institutions
to seek additional capital, to reduce or eliminate dividends, to merge with larger and stronger institutions and, in some
cases, to fail. Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of
counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowers,
including to other financial institutions. This market turmoil and tightening of credit have led to an increased level of
commercial and consumer delinquencies, lack of consumer confidence, increased market volatility and widespread
reduction of business activity generally. The resulting economic pressure on consumers and lack of confidence in the
financial markets has adversely affected our business, financial condition and results of operations. Market
developments may affect consumer confidence levels and may cause adverse changes in payment patterns, causing
increases in delinquencies and default rates, which may impact our charge-offs and provision for credit and fraud
losses. A worsening of these conditions would likely exacerbate the adverse effects of these difficult market
conditions on us and others in the financial institutions industry.

Current levels of market volatility are unprecedented.
The capital and credit markets have been experiencing volatility and disruption for more than 12 months. Recently,
volatility and disruption have reached unprecedented levels. In some cases, the markets have produced downward
pressure on stock prices and credit availability for certain issuers without regard to those issuers’ underlying financial
strength. If current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen, there can be no assurance that we
will not experience an adverse effect, which may be material, on our ability to access capital and on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.  Numerous facts and circumstances are considered when evaluating the
carrying value of our goodwill. One of those considerations is our market capitalization, evaluated over a reasonable
period of time, in relation to the aggregate estimated fair value of the reporting units. While this comparison provides
some relative market information regarding the estimated fair value of the reporting units, it is not determinative and
needs to be evaluated in the context of the current economic and political environment. However, significant and/or
sustained declines in First Financial’s market capitalization, especially in relation to First Financial’s book value, could
be an indication of potential impairment of goodwill.

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us.
Our ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial
soundness of other financial institutions. Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing,
counterparty, or other relationships. As a result, defaults by, or even rumors or questions about, one or more financial
services institutions, or the financial services industry generally, have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could
lead to losses or defaults by us or by other institutions. Many of these transactions expose us to credit risk in the event
of default of our counterparty or client. In addition, our credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held by us
cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the financial instrument
exposure due us. There is no assurance that any such losses would not materially and adversely affect our results of
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operations.

There can be no assurance that enacted legislation or any proposed federal programs will stabilize the U.S. financial
system and such legislation and programs may adversely affect us.
There has been much legislative and regulatory action in response to the financial crises affecting the banking system
and financial markets and threats to investment banks and other financial institutions.  There can be no assurance,
however, as to the actual impact that the legislation and its implementing regulations or any other governmental
program will have on the financial markets. The failure of the actions by the legislators, the regulatory bodies or the
U.S. government to stabilize the financial markets and a continuation or worsening of current financial market
conditions could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and access to
credit or the trading price of our common shares.

Contemplated and proposed legislation, state and federal programs, and increased government control or influence
may adversely affect us by increasing the uncertainty in our lending operations and expose us to increased losses,
including legislation that would allow bankruptcy courts to permit modifications to mortgage loans on a debtor’s
primary residence, moratoriums on a mortgagor’s right to foreclose on property, and requirements that fees be paid to
register other real estate owned property. Statutes and regulations may be altered that may potentially increase our
costs to service and underwrite mortgage loans. Additionally, federal intervention and operation of formerly private
institutions may adversely affect our rights under contracts with such institutions and the way in which we conduct
business in certain markets.
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Financial reforms and related regulations may affect our business activities, financial position and profitability.
On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Financial Reform Act. The Financial Reform Act will institute
far-reaching reforms, including the creation of an independent Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection inside the
Federal Reserve Board and new federal government power to wind down large, failing financial institutions.

The Financial Reform Act permanently raises the current standard maximum deposit insurance amount to $250,000.
The standard maximum insurance amount of $100,000 had been temporarily raised to $250,000 until December 31,
2013. This permanent increase in deposit insurance limits could increase the Company’s future insurance assessments.

The Financial Reform Act requires the Federal Reserve to issue regulations to ensure that fees charged to merchants
for debit card transactions are reasonable and proportional to the cost of processing those transactions. While
institutions with less than $10 billion in assets are exempt from these regulations, the effect of competition on the fee
levels has the potential for making that illusory. In all likelihood, all banks will see a loss of revenue from changes
that will occur with interchange fees.

The Financial Reform Act will establish a 10-member Financial Stability Oversight Council. The duties of this council
include monitoring financial regulatory proposals and accounting issues, facilitating coordination among the
regulatory agencies, requiring Federal Reserve supervision of systemically significant non-bank financial companies,
recommending new standards and reviewing accounting principles.

The Financial Reform Act places new limits, known as the Volcker Rule, on the amount of money a bank can invest
in hedge funds and private equity funds. It also discourages financial institutions from excessive risk-taking by
imposing tough new capital and leverage requirements. Further, it allows the Government Accountability Office to
conduct a one-time audit of the Federal Reserve’s emergency lending activities during the financial crisis and
establishes the Federal Insurance Office to supervise insurance products, other than health insurance, at the federal
level.

Other provisions will establish closer oversight of the over-the-counter derivatives market, including mandatory
clearing and trading and real-time reporting of derivatives trades. Among other measures, the bill will institute
numerous investor protections, including stricter oversight of credit rating agencies, securitization reforms and
expanded Securities and Exchange Commission enforcement powers. The legislation establishes mortgage protections
requiring lenders to ensure that their borrowers can repay their loans by establishing minimum federal standards for all
home loans.

The changes resulting from the Financial Reform Act, as well as the regulations promulgated by federal agencies, may
impact the profitability of our business activities, require changes to certain of its business practices, impose upon us
more stringent capital, liquidity and leverage ratio requirements or otherwise adversely affect our business. These
changes may also require us to invest significant management attention and resources to evaluate and make necessary
changes.

Treasury “Stress Tests” and Other Actions may Adversely Affect Bank Operations and Value of Shares.
On February 10, 2009, the Treasury outlined a plan to restore stability to the financial system. This announcement
included reference to a plan by the Treasury to conduct “stress tests” of certain banks which received funds under the
CPP and similar Treasury programs. The methods and procedures to be used by the Treasury in conducting its “stress
tests,” how these methods and procedures will be applied, and the significance or consequence of such tests presently
are not known. Any of these or their consequences could adversely affect the banking industry in general, and the
value of First Financial shares, among other things.
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The fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government and its agencies could have a material adverse effect on
our earnings.
The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System regulates the supply of money and credit in the United States.
Its policies determine in large part the cost of funds for lending and investing and the return earned on those loans and
investments, both of which affect the net interest margin. The resultant changes in interest rates can also materially
decrease the value of certain financial assets we hold, such as debt securities. Its policies can also adversely affect
borrowers, potentially increasing the risk that they may fail to repay their loans. Changes in Federal Reserve Board
policies are beyond our control and difficult to predict; consequently, the impact of these changes on our activities and
results of operations is difficult to predict.
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Risks Relating to Our Business

Credit Risks
When we loan money, commit to loan money or enter into a letter of credit or other contract with a counterparty, we
incur credit risk, or the risk of losses if our borrowers do not repay their loans or our counterparties fail to perform
according to the terms of their contracts.
Large, individual loans, letters of credit and contracts magnify such credit risks.  As lending is one of our primary
business activities, the credit quality of our portfolio can have a significant impact on our earnings. We estimate and
establish reserves for credit risks and credit losses inherent in our total loan portfolio. This process, which is critical to
our financial results and condition, requires difficult, subjective and complex judgments, including forecasts of
economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair the ability of our borrowers to repay their
loans. As is the case with any such assessments, there is always the chance that we will fail to identify the proper
factors or that we will fail to accurately estimate the impacts of factors that we identify.  In addition, large loans,
letters of credit and contracts with individual counterparties in our portfolio magnify the credit risk that we face, as the
impact of large borrowers and counterparties not repaying their loans or performing according to the terms of their
contracts has a disproportionately significant impact on our credit losses and reserves.

Weakness in the economy and in the real estate market, including specific weakness within our geographic footprint,
has adversely affected us and may continue to adversely affect us.
If the strength of the U.S. economy in general and the strength of the local economies in which we conduct operations
decline, or continue to decline, this could result in, among other things, a deterioration of credit quality or a reduced
demand for credit, including a resultant effect on our loan portfolio and allowance for loan and lease losses. These
factors could result in higher delinquencies and greater charge-offs in future periods, which would materially
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Weakness in the real estate market, including the secondary residential mortgage loan markets, could adversely affect
us.
Significant ongoing disruptions in the secondary market for residential mortgage loans have limited the market for and
liquidity of many mortgage loans. The effects of ongoing mortgage market challenges, combined with the ongoing
correction in residential real estate market prices and reduced levels of home sales, could result in further price
reductions in single family home values, adversely affecting the value of collateral securing mortgage loans that we
hold, mortgage loan originations and profits on sales of mortgage loans. These trends could continue and such
conditions could result in higher losses, write downs and impairment charges in our mortgage and other lines of
business. Continued declines in real estate values, home sale volumes, financial stress on borrowers as a result of job
losses, interest rate resets on adjustable rate mortgage loans or other factors could have further adverse effects on
borrowers that could result in higher delinquencies and greater charge-offs in future periods, which adversely affect
our financial condition or results of operations. Additionally, decreases in real estate values might adversely affect the
creditworthiness of state and local governments, and this might result in decreased profitability or credit losses from
loans made to such governments. A decline in home values or overall economic weakness could also have an adverse
impact upon the value of real estate or other assets which we own upon foreclosing a loan and our ability to realize
value on such assets.

Real estate volatility and future changes in our disposition strategies could result in net proceeds that differ
significantly from our OREO fair value appraisals.
Our other real estate owned (“OREO”) portfolio consists of properties that we obtained through foreclosure or through
an in-substance foreclosure in satisfaction of loans. Properties in our OREO portfolio are recorded at the lower of the
recorded investment in the loans for which the properties previously served as collateral or the “fair value”, which
represents the estimated sales price of the properties on the date acquired less estimated selling costs. Generally, in
determining “fair value” an orderly disposition of the property is assumed, except where a different disposition strategy
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is expected. Significant judgment is required in estimating the fair value of OREO property, and the period of time
within which such estimates can be considered current is significantly shortened during periods of market volatility, as
is currently being experienced and as experienced during 2008 and 2009.

In response to market conditions and other economic factors, we may utilize alternative sale strategies other than
orderly disposition as part of our OREO disposition strategy, such as immediate liquidation sales. In this event, as a
result of the significant judgments required in estimating fair value and the variables involved in different methods of
disposition, the net proceeds realized from such sales transactions could differ significantly from appraisals,
comparable sales, and other estimates used to determine the fair value of our OREO properties.

The information that we use in managing our credit risk may be inaccurate or incomplete, which may result in an
increased risk of default and otherwise have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with clients and counterparties, we may rely on
information furnished by or on behalf of clients and counterparties, including financial statements and other financial
information. We also may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the accuracy and completeness of
that information and, with respect to financial statements, on reports of independent auditors. Although we regularly
review our credit exposure to specific clients and counterparties and to specific industries that we believe may present
credit concerns, default risk may arise from events or circumstances that are difficult to detect, such as fraud.
Moreover, such circumstances, including fraud, may become more likely to occur and/or be detected in periods of
general economic uncertainty, such as at the present time. We may also fail to receive full information with respect to
the risks of a counterparty.  In addition, in cases where we have extended credit against collateral, we may find that we
are undersecured, for example, as a result of sudden declines in market values that reduce the value of collateral or due
to fraud with respect to such collateral. If such events or circumstances were to occur, it could result in a potential loss
of revenue and have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Recently declining values of real estate, increases in unemployment, and the related effects on local economies may
increase our credit losses, which would negatively affect our financial results.
We offer a variety of secured loans, including commercial lines of credit, commercial term loans, real estate,
construction, home equity, consumer and other loans. Many of our loans are secured by real estate (both residential
and commercial) in our market area. A major change in the real estate market, such as deterioration in the value of this
collateral, or in the local or national economy, could adversely affect our customer’s ability to pay these loans, which
in turn could adversely impact us. Additionally, increases in unemployment also may adversely affect the ability of
certain clients to pay loans and the financial results of commercial clients in localities with higher unemployment,
which may result in loan defaults and foreclosures and which may impair the value of our collateral. Risk of loan
defaults and foreclosures are unavoidable in the banking industry, and we try to limit our exposure to this risk by
monitoring our extensions of credit carefully. We cannot fully eliminate credit risk, and as a result credit losses may
increase in the future.

Deteriorating credit quality, particularly in real estate loans, has adversely impacted us and may continue to adversely
impact us.
Late in 2008 we began to experience a downturn in the overall credit performance of our loan portfolio, as well as
acceleration in the deterioration of general economic conditions. This deterioration, including a significant increase in
national and regional unemployment levels and decreased sources of liquidity are the primary drivers of the increased
stress being placed on most borrowers and is negatively impacting their ability to repay. These conditions resulted in
an increase in our loan loss reserves.

We expect credit quality to remain challenging and could continue to deteriorate for much of 2010, notably in
commercial real estate. Continued deterioration in the quality of our credit portfolio could significantly increase
nonperforming loans, require additional increases in loan loss reserves, elevate charge-off levels and have a material
adverse effect on our capital, financial condition, and results of operations. Furthermore, given the size of our loan
portfolio, it is possible that a deterioration in the credit quality of one or two of our largest credits could have a
material adverse effect on our capital, financial condition, and results of operations. Because we have substantially
fewer nonperforming assets than many of our peers, the credit quality of our loan portfolio in recent quarters has and
may continue to deteriorate at a faster rate than many of our peers.

The results of the internal stress test may not accurately predict the impact on our company if the condition of the
economy were to continue to deteriorate.
During 2009 we conducted a number of internal stress tests. These stress tests were based on the tests that were
administered to the nation’s 19 largest banks by the Treasury in connection with its Supervisory Capital Assessment
Program. Under the stress tests, we applied the Treasury’s assumptions to estimate our credit losses, resources
available to absorb those losses and any necessary additions to capital that would be required under the “more adverse”
stress test scenario.

While we believe we have appropriately applied the Treasury’s assumptions in performing our internal stress tests, we
can not assure you that the results of this test are comparable to the results of stress tests performed and publicly
released by the Treasury or that the results of our stress test would be the same if it had been performed by the
Treasury. Moreover, the results of the stress tests may not accurately reflect the impact on our company if the
economy does not improve or continues to deteriorate. Any continued deterioration of the economy could result in
credit losses significantly higher, with a corresponding impact on our resources and capital requirements, than those
predicted by our internal stress tests.

Our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses in our loan portfolio.
Like all financial institutions, we maintain an allowance for loan losses to provide for loans in our portfolio that may
not be repaid in their entirety. We believe that our allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level adequate to
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absorb probable losses inherent in our loan portfolio as of the corresponding balance sheet date. However, our
allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual loan losses, and future provisions for loan losses could
materially and adversely affect our operating results. We have seen a significant increase in the level of potential
problem loans and other loans with higher than normal risk. We expect to receive more frequent requests from
borrowers to modify loans. The related accounting measurements related to impairment and the loan loss allowance
require significant estimates which are subject to uncertainty and changes relating to new information and changing
circumstances. Our estimates of the risk of loss and amount of loss on any loan are complicated by the significant
uncertainties surrounding our borrowers’ abilities to successfully execute their business models through changing
economic environments, competitive challenges and other factors. Because of the degree of uncertainty and
susceptibility of these factors to change, our actual losses may vary from our current estimates.
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State and federal regulators, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review our allowance for
loan losses and may require us to increase our allowance for loan losses by recognizing additional provisions for loan
losses charged to expense, or to decrease our allowance for loan losses by recognizing loan charge-offs, net of
recoveries. Any such additional provisions for loan losses or charge-offs, as required by these regulatory agencies,
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We expect fluctuations in our loan loss provisions due to the uncertain economic conditions.

Operating Risks
The introduction, implementation, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies, including, but
not limited to, the opening of new banking centers, may be less successful or may be different than anticipated, which
could adversely affect our business.
First Financial makes certain projections and develops plans and strategies for its banking and financial products. If
we do not accurately determine demand for our banking and financial products, it could result in us incurring
significant expenses without the anticipated increases in revenue, which could result in a material adverse effect on its
business.

Changes in market interest rates or capital markets could adversely affect our revenue and expense, the value of assets
and obligations, and the availability and cost of capital or liquidity.
Given our business mix, and the fact that most of the assets and liabilities are financial in nature, we tend to be
sensitive to market interest rate movements and the performance of the financial markets. In addition to the impact of
the general economy, changes in interest rates or in valuations in the debt or equity markets could directly impact us in
one or more of the following ways:

• The yield on earning assets and rates paid on interest bearing liabilities may change in disproportionate ways;
•The value of certain balance sheet and off-balance sheet financial instruments or the value of equity investments
that we hold could decline;

• The value of assets for which we provide processing services could decline; or
•To the extent we access capital markets to raise funds to support our business; such changes could affect the cost of
such funds or the ability to raise such funds.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans or indemnify mortgage loan purchasers as a result of breaches of
representations and warranties, borrower fraud, or certain borrower defaults, which could harm our liquidity, results of
operations, and financial condition.
When we sell mortgage loans, whether as whole loans or pursuant to a securitization, we are required to make
customary representations and warranties to the purchaser about the mortgage loans and the manner in which they
were originated. Our whole loan sale agreements require us to repurchase or substitute mortgage loans in the event we
breach any of these representations or warranties. In addition, we may be required to repurchase mortgage loans as a
result of borrower fraud. Likewise, we are required to repurchase or substitute mortgage loans if we breach a
representation or warranty in connection with our securitizations. While we have taken steps to enhance our
underwriting policies and procedures, there can be no assurance that these steps will be effective or reduce risk
associated with loans sold in the past. If the level of repurchase and indemnity activity becomes material, our liquidity,
results of operations and financial condition will be adversely affected.

Clients could pursue alternatives to bank deposits, causing us to lose a relatively inexpensive source of funding.
Checking and savings account balances and other forms of client deposits could decrease if clients perceive alternative
investments as providing superior expected returns. When clients move money out of bank deposits in favor of
alternative investments, we can lose a relatively inexpensive source of funds, increasing our funding costs.

Consumers may decide not to use banks to complete their financial transactions, which could affect net income.
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Technology and other changes now allow parties to complete financial transactions without banks. For example,
consumers can pay bills and transfer funds directly without banks. This process could result in the loss of fee income,
as well as the loss of client deposits and the income generated from those deposits.

Our asset management business subjects us to a variety of risks.
At June 30, 2010, we had $2.2 billion in assets under management.  A sharp decline in the stock market can negatively
impact the amount of assets under management and thus subject our earnings to a broader variety of risks and
uncertainties.

Negative public opinion could damage our reputation and adversely impact business and revenues.
As a financial institution, our earnings and capital are subject to risks associated with negative public opinion.
Negative public opinion could result from our actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities, including lending
practices, the failure of any product or service sold by us to meet our clients’ expectations or applicable regulatory
requirements, corporate governance and acquisitions, or from actions taken by government regulators and community
organizations in response to those activities. Negative public opinion can adversely affect our ability to keep and
attract and/or retain clients and can expose us to litigation and regulatory action. Actual or alleged conduct by one of
our businesses can result in negative public opinion about our other businesses. Negative public opinion could also
affect our ability to borrow funds in the unsecured wholesale debt markets.
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We rely on other companies to provide key components of our business infrastructure.
Third parties provide key components of our business infrastructure such as banking services, processing, and Internet
connections and network access. Any disruption in such services provided by these third parties or any failure of these
third parties to handle current or higher volumes of use could adversely affect our ability to deliver products and
services to clients and otherwise to conduct business. Technological or financial difficulties of a third party service
provider could adversely affect our business to the extent those difficulties result in the interruption or discontinuation
of services provided by that party. We may not be insured against all types of losses as a result of third party failures
and our insurance coverage may be inadequate to cover all losses resulting from system failures or other disruptions.
Failures in our business infrastructure could interrupt the operations or increase the costs of doing business.

We rely on our systems, employees, and certain counterparties, and certain failures could materially adversely affect
our operations.
We are exposed to many types of operational risk, including the risk of fraud by employees and outsiders, clerical and
record-keeping errors, and computer/telecommunications systems malfunctions. Our businesses are dependent on our
ability to process a large number of increasingly complex transactions. If any of our financial, accounting, or other
data processing systems fail or have other significant shortcomings, we could be materially adversely affected. We are
similarly dependent on our employees. We could be materially adversely affected if one of our employees causes a
significant operational break-down or failure, either as a result of human error or where an individual purposefully
sabotages or fraudulently manipulates our operations or systems. Third parties with which we do business could also
be sources of operational risk to us, including relating to break-downs or failures of such parties’ own systems or
employees. Any of these occurrences could result in our diminished ability to operate one or more of our businesses,
potential liability to clients, reputational damage and regulatory intervention, which could materially adversely affect
us. We may also be subject to disruptions of our operating systems arising from events that are wholly or partially
beyond our control, which may include, for example, computer viruses or electrical or telecommunications outages or
natural disasters, or events arising from local or regional politics, including terrorist acts. Such disruptions may give
rise to losses in service to clients and loss or liability to us. In addition there is the risk that our controls and
procedures as well as business continuity and data security systems prove to be inadequate. Any such failure could
affect our operations and could materially adversely affect our results of operations by requiring us to expend
significant resources to correct the defect, as well as by exposing us to litigation or losses not covered by insurance.

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about clients and counterparties.
In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with clients and counterparties, we may rely on
information furnished by or on behalf of clients and counterparties, including financial statements and other financial
information. We also may rely on representations of clients and counterparties as to the accuracy and completeness of
that information and, with respect to financial statements, on reports of independent auditors.

Industry Risks
Regulation by federal and state agencies could adversely affect the business, revenue, and profit margins.
We are heavily regulated by federal and state agencies. This regulation is to protect depositors, the federal deposit
insurance fund and the banking system as a whole. Congress and state legislatures and federal and state regulatory
agencies continually review banking laws, regulations, and policies for possible changes. Changes to statutes,
regulations, or regulatory policies, including interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations, or policies,
could affect us adversely, including limiting the types of financial services and products we may offer and/or
increasing the ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and products. Also, if we do not comply with
laws, regulations, or policies, we could receive regulatory sanctions and damage to our reputation.

Competition in the financial services industry is intense and could result in losing business or reducing margins.
We operate in a highly competitive industry that could become even more competitive as a result of legislative,
regulatory and technological changes, and continued consolidation. We face aggressive competition from other
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domestic and foreign lending institutions and from numerous other providers of financial services. The ability of
non-banking financial institutions to provide services previously limited to commercial banks has intensified
competition. Because non-banking financial institutions are not subject to the same regulatory restrictions as banks
and bank holding companies, they can often operate with greater flexibility and lower cost structures. Securities firms
and insurance companies that elect to become financial holding companies may acquire banks and other financial
institutions. This may significantly change the competitive environment in which we conduct business. Some of our
competitors have greater financial resources and/or face fewer regulatory constraints. As a result of these various
sources of competition, we could lose business to competitors or be forced to price products and services on less
advantageous terms to retain or attract clients, either of which would adversely affect our profitability.
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Future legislation could harm our competitive position.
Federal, state, and local legislatures increasingly have been considering proposals to substantially change the financial
institution regulatory system and to expand or contract the powers of banking institutions and bank holding
companies. Various legislative bodies have also recently been considering altering the existing framework governing
creditors’ rights, including legislation that would result in or allow loan modifications of various sorts. Such legislation
may change banking statutes and the operating environment in substantial and unpredictable ways. If enacted, such
legislation could increase or decrease the cost of doing business, limit or expand permissible activities, or affect the
competitive balance among banks, savings associations, credit unions, and other financial institutions. We cannot
predict whether new legislation will be enacted and, if enacted, the effect that it, or any regulations, would have on our
activities, financial condition, or results of operations.

Maintaining or increasing market share depends on market acceptance and regulatory approval of new products and
services.
Our success depends, in part, on the ability to adapt products and services to evolving industry standards. There is
increasing pressure to provide products and services at lower prices. This can reduce net interest income and
noninterest income from fee-based products and services. In addition, the widespread adoption of new technologies
could require us to make substantial capital expenditures to modify or adapt existing products and services or develop
new products and services. We may not be successful in introducing new products and services in response to industry
trends or development in technology or those new products may not achieve market acceptance. As a result, we could
lose business, be forced to price products and services on less advantageous terms to retain or attract clients, or be
subject to cost increases.

Company Risks
We may not pay dividends on your common shares.
Holders of our common shares are only entitled to receive such dividends as our Board of Directors may declare out
of funds legally available for such payments. Although we have historically declared cash dividends on our common
shares, we are not required to do so and may reduce or eliminate our common shares dividend in the future. This could
adversely affect the market price of our common shares.  Also, our ability to increase our dividend or to make other
distributions was restricted due to our participation in the CPP, which limited (without the consent of the Treasury)
our ability to increase our dividend or to repurchase our common shares for so long as any preferred securities issued
under such program remain outstanding.  Our ability to increase our dividend or to make other distributions is not
impacted by the warrant held by Treasury.

There may be future sales or other dilution of our equity, which may adversely affect the market price of our common
shares.
Generally, we are not restricted from issuing additional common shares, including any securities that are convertible
into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common shares. We are currently authorized to issue up
to 160 million common shares, of which 58,059,005 shares are outstanding. Our board of directors has authority,
without action or vote of the shareholders, to issue all or part of the authorized but unissued shares. These authorized
but unissued shares could be issued on terms or in circumstances that could dilute the interests of other shareholders.

Furthermore, in connection with our participation in the CPP, the U.S. Treasury received a warrant as discussed under
“-The U.S. Department of the Treasury Troubled Asset Relief Program”, and we have agreed to provide the U.S.
Treasury with certain anti-dilutive adjustments as well as registration rights. The issuance of additional common
shares as a result of exercise of the warrant or otherwise or the issuance of securities convertible or exercisable into
common shares would dilute the ownership interest of our existing common shareholders.  The market price of our
common shares could decline as a result of this offering as well as other sales of a large block of common shares or
similar securities in the market after this offering, or the perception that such sales could occur.
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Our liquidity is dependent upon our ability to receive dividends from our subsidiaries, which accounts for most of our
revenue and could affect our ability to pay dividends, and we may be unable to enhance liquidity from other sources.
We are a separate and distinct legal entity from our subsidiaries, including First Financial Bank. We receive
substantially all of our revenue from dividends from our subsidiaries. These dividends are the principal source of
funds to pay dividends on our common stock and interest and principal on our debt. Various federal and/or state laws
and regulations limit the amount of dividends that our bank and certain of our non-bank subsidiaries may pay us.
Additionally, if our subsidiaries’ earnings are not sufficient to make dividend payments to us while maintaining
adequate capital levels, we may not be able to make dividend payments to our common shareholders.

To enhance liquidity, we may depend upon borrowings under credit facilities or other indebtedness. As a result of
recent turbulence in the capital and credit markets, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced or ceased to
provide funding to borrowers and, as a result, we may not be able to further increase liquidity through additional
borrowings.

Limitations on our ability to receive dividends from our subsidiaries or an inability to increase liquidity through
additional borrowings, or inability to maintain, renew or replace existing credit facilities, could have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and on our ability to pay dividends on our common and preferred shares and interest
and principal on our debt.
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Significant legal actions could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities.
We are from time to time subject to claims related to our operations. These claims and legal actions, including
supervisory actions by our regulators, could involve large monetary claims and significant defense costs. Substantial
legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could have material adverse financial effects or cause
significant reputational harm to us, which in turn could seriously harm our business prospects. We may be exposed to
substantial uninsured liabilities, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

If our regulators deem it appropriate, they can take regulatory actions that could impact our ability to compete for new
business, constrain our ability to fund our liquidity needs, and increase the cost of our services.
First Financial and its subsidiaries are subject to the supervision and regulation of various State and Federal
regulators, including the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, SEC, FINRA, and
various state regulatory agencies. As such, First Financial is subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations. As part
of their supervisory process, which includes periodic examinations and continuous monitoring, the regulators have the
authority to impose restrictions or conditions on our activities and the manner in which we manage the organization.
These actions could impact the organization in a variety of ways, including subjecting us to monetary fines, restricting
our ability to pay dividends, precluding mergers or acquisitions, limiting our ability to offer certain products or
services, or imposing additional capital, operating, or oversight requirements.

Disruptions in our ability to access capital markets may negatively affect our capital resources and liquidity.
In managing our consolidated balance sheet, we depend on wholesale capital markets to provide us with sufficient
capital resources and liquidity to meet our commitments and business needs, and to accommodate the transaction and
cash management needs of our clients. Other sources of funding available to us, and upon which we rely as regular
components of our liquidity risk management strategy, include inter-bank borrowings, repurchase agreements, and
borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank system. Any occurrence that may limit our access to these sources,
such as a decline in the confidence of debt purchasers, or our depositors or counterparties participating in the capital
markets, may adversely affect our capital costs and our ability to raise capital and, in turn, our liquidity.

Management’s ability to retain key officers and employees may change.
Our future operating results depend substantially upon the continued service of its executive officers and key
personnel. Our future operating results also depend in significant part upon its ability to attract and retain qualified
management, financial, technical, marketing, sales, and support personnel. Competition for qualified personnel is
intense, and we cannot ensure success in attracting or retaining qualified personnel. There may be only a limited
number of persons with the requisite skills to serve in these positions, and it may be increasingly difficult for us to hire
personnel over time.

Our ability to retain key officers and employees may be further impacted by legislation and regulation affecting the
financial services industry. For example, recent legislation and bank regulatory action has or will place additional
restrictions on executive compensation at, and the pay practices of, financial institutions.  Such restrictions and
standards may further impact management's ability to compete for talent with other industries that are not subject to
the same limitations as financial institutions.

Our business, financial condition, or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by the loss of any of
its key employees, or our inability to attract and retain skilled employees.

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business and dilute shareholder value and we may not be able to successfully
consummate or integrate such acquisitions.
Acquiring other banks, businesses, or branches involves various risks commonly associated with acquisitions,
including, among other things:
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• potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of the target company;
• exposure to potential asset quality issues of the target company;

• difficulty and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of the target company;
• potential disruption to our business;

• potential diversion of our management’s time and attention;
• the possible loss of key employees and customers of the target company;

• difficulty in estimating the value (including goodwill) of the target company;
• difficulty in receiving appropriate regulatory approval for any proposed transaction;

• difficulty in estimating the fair value of acquired assets, liabilities and derivatives of the target company;     and
• potential changes in accounting, banking, or tax laws or regulations that may affect the target company.

We regularly evaluate merger and acquisition opportunities and conduct due diligence activities related to possible
transactions with other financial institutions and financial services companies. As a result, merger or acquisition
discussions and, in some cases, negotiations may take place and future mergers or acquisitions involving cash, debt or
equity securities may occur at any time. Acquisitions could involve the payment of a premium over book and market
values, and, therefore, some dilution of our tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in
connection with any future transaction.
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Any merger or acquisition opportunity that we decide to pursue will ultimately be subject to regulatory approval and
other closing conditions. We may expend substantial time and resources pursuing potential acquisitions which may
not be consummated because regulatory approval is not received or other closing conditions are not satisfied. In
addition, our existing credit facility and the terms of other indebtedness that we may subsequently incur may restrict
our ability to consummate certain acquisitions. Furthermore, any difficulty integrating businesses acquired as a result
of a merger or acquisition and the failure to realize the expected revenue increases, cost savings, increases in
geographic or product presence, and/or other projected benefits from an acquisition could have an adverse impact on
our liquidity, results of operations, and financial condition and any such integration could divert management’s time
and attention from managing our company in an effective manner and could be significantly more expensive than we
anticipate.

Our accounting policies and processes are critical to how we report our financial condition and results of operations.
They require management to make estimates about matters that are uncertain.
Accounting policies and processes are fundamental to how we record and report the financial condition and results of
operations. Management must exercise judgment in selecting and applying many of these accounting policies and
processes so they comply with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP).

Management has identified certain accounting policies as being critical because they require management’s judgment
to ascertain the valuations of assets, liabilities, commitments, and contingencies. A variety of factors could affect the
ultimate value that is obtained either when earning income, recognizing an expense, recovering an asset, valuing an
asset or liability, or reducing a liability. We have established detailed policies and control procedures that are intended
to ensure these critical accounting estimates and judgments are well controlled and applied consistently. In addition,
the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing methodologies occurs in an
appropriate manner. Because of the uncertainty surrounding our judgments and the estimates pertaining to these
matters, we cannot guarantee that we will not be required to adjust accounting policies or restate prior period financial
statements. See the “Critical Accounting Policies” in the MD&A and Note 1, “Accounting Policies,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 for more information.

Changes in our accounting policies or in accounting standards could materially affect how we report our financial
results and condition.
From time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and SEC change the financial accounting and
reporting standards that govern the preparation of our financial statements. These changes can be hard to predict and
can materially impact how we record and report our financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, we
could be required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in us restating prior period financial
statements.

Our results of operations depend upon the results of operations of our subsidiaries.
We are a holding company that conducts substantially all of our operations through our bank and other subsidiaries.
As a result, our ability to make dividend payments on our common shares will depend primarily upon the receipt of
dividends and other distributions from our subsidiaries. There are various regulatory restrictions on the ability of our
bank subsidiary to pay dividends or make other payments to us. As of the close of business on June 30, 2010, our bank
subsidiary had an additional $5.5 million available to pay dividends to us without prior regulatory approval.

Our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect all errors or acts of fraud.
Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed by
us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accurately accumulated and communicated to management,
and recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. We
believe that any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
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These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, that alternative
reasoned judgments can be drawn, or that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally,
controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by an
unauthorized override of the controls. Accordingly, because of the inherent limitations in our control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Our financial instruments carried at fair value expose us to certain market risks.
We maintain an available for sale investment securities portfolio which includes assets with various types of
instruments and maturities.  We also maintain certain assets that are classified and accounted for as trading assets. The
changes in fair value of the available for sale securities are recognized in shareholders equity as a component of other
comprehensive income. The changes in fair value of financial instruments classified as trading assets are carried at fair
value and recognized in earnings. The financial instruments carried at fair value are exposed to market risks related to
changes in interest rates and market liquidity. We manage the market risks associated with these instruments through
broad asset/liability management strategies. Changes in the market values of these financial instruments could have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition or results of operations. We may classify additional financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value in the future.
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Our revenues derived from our investment securities may be volatile and subject to a variety of risks.
We generally maintain investment securities and trading positions in the fixed income markets. Unrealized gains and
losses associated with our investment portfolio and mark to market gains and losses associated with our trading
portfolio are affected by many factors, including our credit position, interest rate volatility, volatility in capital
markets, and other economic factors. Our return on such investments could experience volatility and such volatility
may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, accounting regulations
may require us to record a charge prior to the actual realization of a loss when market valuations of such securities are
impaired and such impairment is considered to be other than temporary.

We are subject to ongoing tax examinations in various jurisdictions. The Internal Revenue Service and other taxing
jurisdictions may propose various adjustments to our previously filed tax returns. It is possible that the ultimate
resolution of such proposed adjustments, if unfavorable, may be material to the results of operations in the period it
occurs.
In the ordinary course of business, we operate in various taxing jurisdictions and are subject to income and
non-income taxes. The effective tax rate is based in part on our interpretation of the relevant current tax laws. We
believe the aggregate liabilities related to taxes are appropriately reflected in the consolidated financial statements. We
review the appropriate tax treatment of all transactions taking into consideration statutory, judicial, and regulatory
guidance in the context of our tax positions. In addition, we rely on various tax opinions, recent tax audits, and
historical experience.

From time to time, we engage in business transactions that may have an effect on our tax liabilities. Where
appropriate, we have obtained opinions of outside experts and have assessed the relative merits and risks of the
appropriate tax treatment of business transactions taking into account statutory, judicial, and regulatory guidance in
the context of the tax position. However, changes to our estimates of accrued taxes can occur due to changes in tax
rates, implementation of new business strategies, resolution of issues with taxing authorities regarding previously
taken tax positions prior to acquisition and newly enacted statutory, judicial, and regulatory guidance. Such changes
could affect the amount of our accrued taxes and could be material to our financial position and/or results of
operations.

In the event the Internal Revenue Service, State of Ohio, or other state tax officials propose adjustments to our
previously filed tax returns (or those of our subsidiaries), it is possible that the ultimate resolution of the proposed
adjustments, if unfavorable, may be material to the results of operations in the period it occurs.

Risks Related to the Acquisition of the Business and Assets of Peoples Community Bank, Irwin Union Bank and Trust
Company and Irwin Union Bank, FSB.

Changes in national and local economic conditions could lead to higher loan charge-offs in connection with the
acquisitions all of which may not be supported by the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC.
In connection with the acquisitions, we acquired a significant portfolio of loans. Although we marked down the loan
portfolios we have acquired, there is no assurance that the non-impaired loans we acquired will not become impaired
or that the impaired loans will not suffer further deterioration in value resulting in additional charge-offs to this loan
portfolio. The fluctuations in national, regional and local economic conditions, including those related to local
residential, commercial real estate and construction markets, which may increase the level of charge-offs that we make
to our loan portfolio, and, consequently, reduce our net income, may also increase the level of charge-offs on the loan
portfolios that we have acquired in the acquisitions and correspondingly reduce our net income. These fluctuations are
not predictable, cannot be controlled and may have a material adverse impact on our operations and financial
condition even if other favorable events occur. See “Business Risks – Credit Risks“ in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2009 for more information on the factors affecting the levels of these charge-offs.
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Although we have entered into loss sharing agreements with the FDIC, which provide that a significant portion of
losses related to specified loan portfolios that we have acquired in connection with the acquisitions will be
indemnified by the FDIC, we are not protected from all losses resulting from charge-offs with respect to those
specified loan portfolios. Additionally, the loss sharing agreements have limited terms; therefore, any charge-off of
related losses that we experience after the term of the loss sharing agreements will not be reimbursed by the FDIC and
will negatively impact our net income.
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We may fail to realize any benefits and incur unanticipated losses related to the assets of Peoples Community Bank,
Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and Irwin Union Bank, FSB  that First Financial Bank acquired and the
liabilities of Peoples Community Bank, Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and Irwin Union Bank, FSB  that were
assumed.
The success of these acquisitions will depend, in part, on First Financial’s ability to successfully combine the acquired
businesses and assets with First Financial’s business and First Financial’s ability to successfully manage the significant
loan portfolio that was acquired. As with any acquisition involving a financial institution, particularly with respect to
the acquisition nearly doubling the size of First Financial and the large increase in the number of bank branches, there
may be business and service changes and disruptions that result in the loss of customers or cause customers to close
their accounts and move their business to competing financial institutions. It is possible that the integration process
could result in the loss of key employees, the disruption of ongoing business, or inconsistencies in standards, controls,
procedures and policies that adversely affect First Financial’s ability to maintain relationships with clients, customers,
depositors and employees or to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition. Successful integration may also be
hampered by differences between the organizations. Although First Financial had significant operations in the
principal regional markets in which the acquired entities operated, the loss of key employees of these entities could
adversely affect First Financial’s ability to successfully conduct business in certain local markets in which the entities
operated, which could have an adverse effect on First Financial’s financial results. Integration efforts will also divert
attention and resources from First Financial’s management. Additionally, general market and economic conditions or
governmental actions affecting the financial industry generally may inhibit the ability to successfully integrate the
institutions. If First Financial experiences difficulties with, or delays in, the integration process, the anticipated
benefits of the acquisitions may not be realized fully, or at all, or may take longer to realize than expected.
Furthermore, any cost savings that are realized may be offset by losses in revenues or other charges to earnings.

Finally, First Financial will need to ensure that the banking operations of the acquired entities maintain effective
disclosure controls as well as internal controls and procedures for financial reporting, and such compliance efforts
may be costly and may divert the attention of management.

First Financial’s Exchange Act reports contain limited financial information on which to evaluate the acquisition of
Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and Irwin Union Bank, FSB.
The acquisition of the banking operations and certain assets of Irwin Union Bank and Irwin FSB are significant
acquisitions for First Financial; however, First Financial’s Exchange Act reports contain limited financial information
on which to evaluate these acquisitions.  First Financial’s Exchange Act reports may not contain all of the financial and
other information about Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and Irwin Union, FSB and the assets that were
acquired and liabilities assumed that investors may consider important, including information related to the loan
portfolio acquired and the impact of the acquisition on First Financial.

First Financial will be expanding operations into new geographic areas.
Portions of the market areas represented by Irwin Union Bank and Irwin FSB, including those in Arizona, California, 
Nevada and Utah, are areas in which First Financial historically conducted no banking activities. Although First
Financial has indicated it plans to divest itself of banking centers in areas outside its strategic footprint, in the interim,
First Financial must effectively integrate these new markets to retain and expand the business currently conducted by
these branches while maintaining appropriate risk controls. The ability to compete effectively in the new markets will
be dependent on First Financial’s ability to understand the local market and competitive dynamics and identify and
retain certain employees from Irwin who know their markets better than First Financial does.

Furthermore, the operations of the acquired franchise lending business will increase the concentration risk of First
Financial’s lending and expand our geography footprint in this area and First Financial will rely on the expertise of
those individuals currently at the acquired franchise group.
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Prior to the acquisition, Irwin Union Bank and Trust Company and a number of its subsidiaries, notably Irwin Home
Equity and Irwin Mortgage Corporation were the subject of a number of legal actions regarding their mortgage and/or
home equity lines of business and these matters may require significant resources and  management attention.
In connection with the acquisition of certain assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Irwin Union Bank by First
Financial Bank from the FDIC as receiver for Irwin Union Bank, First Financial assumed, subject to the terms of a
Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among the FDIC, the FDIC as receiver, and First Financial Bank dated
September 18, 2009, as amended (the “Purchase Agreement”), certain legal claims against the subsidiaries of Irwin
Union Bank.  Some of these claims involve Irwin Union Bank prior to it being placed in receivership and are thus the
responsibility of the FDIC as receiver pursuant to the Agreement.  Furthermore, with respect to the claims involving
the subsidiaries, First Financial Bank has or expects to submit requests for indemnification to the FDIC as receiver
pursuant to Section 12 of the Purchase Agreement.  Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the FDIC as receiver has
agreed to indemnify and hold harmless First Financial Bank for certain claims against Irwin and its former
subsidiaries for actions taken on or prior to September 18, 2009.  There can be no assurances the FDIC will agree with
our positions regarding indemnification.

Although the assets and liabilities that the FDIC as receiver determines are subject to First Financial’s indemnification
claims will be covered by the FDIC as receiver and thus excluded from the acquisition of Irwin Union Bank, during
the process of integrating Irwin Union Bank and its subsidiaries with First Financial Bank, First Financial may
discover other inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect First Financial’s
ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition of Irwin Union Bank and could distract management from
implementing its strategic plan.  Furthermore, unless the FDIC as receiver assumes the defense of such claims, First
Financial will have to expend considerable time and effort to defend the actions, subject to such indemnification.
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We have identified a number of claims against which we believe we should be indemnified pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, and we have submitted and expect to continue to submit requests for indemnification to the FDIC as
receiver. The process of seeking indemnification from the FDIC as receiver with respect to such litigation could be
time-consuming and subject to dispute. Further, until the FDIC as receiver has approved and reimbursed us for the
claims for which we should be indemnified, we could be exposed to liabilities arising from the defense of such
claims.  Discussions are ongoing with the FDIC regarding indemnification with respect to certain actions taken by
Irwin and/or its subsidiaries prior to September 18, 2009.

The acquisitions have increased First Financial’s commercial real estate loan portfolio, which have a greater credit risk
than residential mortgage loans.
With the acquisition of the Irwin entities loan portfolios, the commercial loan and construction loan portfolios have
become a larger portion of First Financial Bank’s total loan portfolio than it was prior to the acquisitions. This type of
lending is generally considered to have more complex credit risks than traditional single-family residential lending,
because the principal is concentrated in a limited number of loans with repayment dependent on the successful
operation of the related real estate or construction project. Consequently, these loans are more sensitive to the current
adverse conditions in the real estate market and the general economy. These loans are generally less predictable and
more difficult to evaluate and monitor and collateral may be more difficult to dispose of in a market decline.

First Financial Bank’s acquisitions of Peoples and Irwin from the FDIC have caused us to modify our disclosure
controls and procedures, which may not result in the material information that we are required to disclose in our
Exchange Act reports being recorded, processed, summarized, and reported adequately.
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and procedures that are
designed to cause the material information that we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act to be recorded, processed, summarized, and reported to the extent applicable within the time periods
required by the SEC’s rules and forms. The internal control over financial reporting of Peoples’ and Irwin’s banking
operations were excluded from the evaluation of effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the
period ended December 31, 2009, because of the timing of the acquisitions. As a result of the Peoples and Irwin
acquisitions, however, we will be implementing changes to processes, information technology systems and other
components of internal control over financial reporting as part of our integration activities. Notwithstanding any
changes to our disclosure controls and procedures resulting from our evaluation of the same after the Peoples and
Irwin acquisitions, our control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, may not result in the material
information that we are required to disclose in our Exchange Act reports being recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported adequately. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected.

Certain fair value estimates and other measures associated with the assets of Peoples and Irwin acquired from the
FDIC remain uncertain, and subject to change, based on future determinations made by the FDIC, which could
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
We have determined that the acquisitions of the net assets of Peoples and Irwin constitute business combinations as
defined under GAAP. Accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been presented by us in our
financial statements at their fair values as required. In many cases, the determination of these fair values requires
management to make estimates about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market conditions and other future
events that are highly subjective in nature and subject to change. Under GAAP, these fair value estimates are
considered preliminary, and remain subject to change for up to one year after the closing dates of the acquisitions as
additional information relative to closing date fair values becomes available. We and the FDIC are engaged in
on-going discussions that may impact which assets and liabilities were acquired or assumed by First Financial and/or
the associated purchase prices. Based upon these discussions, there could be further adjustments to those assets
acquired or assumed. In addition, the tax treatment of FDIC assisted acquisitions is complex and subject to
interpretations that may result in future adjustments of deferred taxes as of the acquisition dates. Any future changes
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to such measures or determinations could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

First Financial Bank’s failure to fully comply with the loss-sharing provisions relating to its acquisitions of Peoples and
Irwin from the FDIC could jeopardize the loss-share coverage afforded to certain individual or pools of assets,
rendering First Financial Bank financially responsible for the full amount of any losses related to such assets.
In connection with First Financial Bank’s acquisitions of Peoples and Irwin from the FDIC, First Financial Bank
entered into loss-sharing agreements with the FDIC whereby the FDIC has agreed to cover 80% of the losses on
certain single family residential mortgage loans and certain commercial loans (together, “covered assets”), and 95% of
the losses on such covered assets in excess of thresholds stated in the loss-sharing agreements. First Financial Bank’s
management of and application of the terms and conditions of the loss-sharing provisions of the Purchase and
Assumption Agreements related to the covered assets is monitored by the FDIC through periodic reports that First
Financial Bank must submit to the FDIC and on-site compliance visitations by the FDIC. If First Financial Bank fails
to fully comply with its obligations under the loss-sharing provisions of the Purchase and Assumption Agreements
relating to First Financial Bank’s acquisitions of Peoples and Irwin from the FDIC, First Financial Bank could lose the
benefit of the loss-share coverage as it applies to certain individual or pools of covered assets. Without such loss-share
coverage, First Financial Bank would be solely financially responsible for the losses sustained by such individual or
pools of assets.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

 (c) The following table shows the total number of shares repurchased in the second quarter of 2010.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Total Number

of Shares
Maximum
Number

Total
Number Average Purchased as

of Shares that
may

of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly yet be purchased

Period
Purchased

(1) Per Share
Announced
Plans (2) Under the Plans

April 1 through April 30, 2010 144,985 $ 19.76 0 4,969,105
May 1 through May 31, 2010 12,318 17.63 0 4,969,105
June 1 through June 30, 2010 24,529 16.20 0 4,969,105
Total 181,832 $ 19.14 0 4,969,105

(1)The number of shares purchased in column (a) and the average price paid per share in column (b) include the
purchase of shares other than through publicly announced plans.  The shares purchased other than through publicly
announced plans were purchased pursuant to First Financial’s Thrift Plan, Director Fee Stock Plan, 1999 Stock
Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors and 1999 Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and Employees, 2009
Employee Stock Plan, and 2009 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan.  (The last four plans are referred to hereafter
as the Stock Plans.)  The following tables show the number of shares purchased pursuant to those plans and the
average price paid per share.  The purchases for the Thrift Plan and the Director Fee Stock Plan were made in
open-market transactions.  Under the Stock Plans, shares were purchased from plan participants at the then current
market value in satisfaction of stock option exercise prices.
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(a) (b)
Total Number Average
of Shares Price Paid
Purchased Per Share

Period
First Financial Bancorp Thrift Plan
April 1 through April 30, 2010 0 $ 0.00
May 1 through May 31, 2010 0 0.00
June 1 through June 30, 2010 0 0.00
Total 0 $ 0.00

Director Fee Stock Plan
April 1 through April 30, 2010 1,280 $ 18.99
May 1 through May 31, 2010 0 0.00
June 1 through June 30, 2010 0 0.00
Total 1,280 $ 18.99

Stock Plans
April 1 through April 30, 2010 143,705 $ 19.77
May 1 through May 31, 2010 12,318 17.63
June 1 through June 30, 2010 24,529 16.20
Total 180,552 $ 19.14

(2)First Financial has one remaining previously announced stock repurchase plan under which it is currently
authorized to purchase shares of its common stock.  The plan has no expiration date.  The table that follows
provides additional information regarding this plan.

Total Shares

Announcement
Total Shares
Approved for

Repurchased
Under Expiration

Date Repurchase the Plan Date
1/25/2000 7,507,500 2,538,395 None

Item 5. Other Information

(b)As previously disclosed, First Financial appointed two new directors on May 25, 2010.  These two individuals have
subsequently been assigned to the following committees:

• Compensation Committee – David S. Barker
• Audit Committee – David S. Barker and Maribeth S. Rahe
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Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits:
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, and incorporated herein
by reference).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment by the Board of Directors to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 24, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.3 Certificate of Amendment by Shareholders to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Form S-3 filed on January 21, 2009, and
incorporated herein by reference, Registration No. 333-156841).

3.4 Amended and Restated Regulations, as amended as of May 1, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to
the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 Letter Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2008, between the Registrant and the United
States Department of the Treasury, which includes the Securities Purchase Agreement –
Standard Terms (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 30, 2008, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.2 Warrant to Purchase up to 930,233 shares of Common Stock dated as of December 23, 2008
(filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K filed on December 30, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference).

4.3 Form of Series A Preferred Stock Certificate dated as of December 23, 2008 (filed as Exhibit
4.2 to the Form 8-K filed on December 30, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.4 No instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of First Financial are filed
herewith.  Pursuant to (b)(4)(iii) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, First Financial agrees to
furnish a copy of any such agreements to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon
request.

10.1 Agreement between Charles D. Lefferson and First Financial Bancorp. dated August 4, 2000
(filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference). * +

10.2 Amendment to Employment Agreement between Charles D. Lefferson and First Financial
Bancorp. dated May 23, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).*  +

10.3 First Financial Bancorp. Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan, dated April 24,
1997 (incorporated herein by reference to a Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration
No. 333-25745).

10.4 First Financial Bancorp. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and Employees, dated April
27, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to a Registration Statement on Form S-3,
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Registration No. 333-86781).*

10.5 First Financial Bancorp. 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan, as dated April 27, 1999
and amended and restated as of April 26, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.6 First Financial Bancorp. Director Fee Stock Plan amended and restated effective April 20,
2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Form10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference).*

10.7 Form of Executive Supplemental Retirement Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Form10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).*
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10.8 Form of Endorsement Method Split Dollar Agreement for Certain Executives (filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the Form10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated herein
by reference).*

10.9 First Financial Bancorp. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.9 to the Form10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated herein
by reference).*

10.10 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Incentive Stock Options (2005 – 2008) (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.11 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Qualified Stock Options (2005-2008) (filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.12 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards (2005-2007) (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Form 8-K filed on April 22, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.13 Amended and Restated Employment and Non-Competition Agreement between Claude E.
Davis and First Financial Bancorp. dated August 22, 2006, and incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to First Financial Bancorp’s Form 8-K filed on August 28, 2006.*
++

10.14 First Financial Bancorp. Amended and Restated Severance Pay Plan as approved April 28,
2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Form 10-Q filed on May 9, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference).*

10.15 Terms of First Financial Bancorp. Short-Term Incentive Plan (2007) (incorporated herein by
reference to the Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2007).*

10.16 First Financial Bancorp. Amended and Restated Key Management Severance Plan as
approved February 26, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the Form 10-Q filed on May 9, 2008
and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.17 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Award (2008) (filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the Form
10-Q filed on May 9, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.18 Long-Term Incentive Plan Grant Design (2008) (filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Form 10-Q
filed on May 9, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.19 Short-Term Incentive Plan Design (2008) (filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Form 10-Q filed on
May 9, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.20 Letter Agreement, dated December 23, 2008, including Securities Purchase Agreement –
Standard Terms incorporated by reference herein, between First Financial and the United
States Department of the Treasury (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on December
30, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.21 Form of Waiver, executed by each of Messrs. Claude E. Davis, C. Douglas Lefferson, J.
Franklin Hall, Samuel J. Munafo and Gregory A. Gehlmann dated as of December 23, 2008
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(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 8-K filed on December 30, 2008 and incorporated herein
by reference).*

10.22 Form of Letter Agreement, executed by each of Messrs. Claude E. Davis, C. Douglas
Lefferson, J. Franklin Hall, Samuel J. Munafo and Gregory A. Gehlmann dated as of
December 23, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 8-K filed on December 30, 2008 and
incorporated herein by reference).*

10.23 Form of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards for 2005 Awards
(filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

10.24 Form of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards for 2006 Awards
(filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

10.25 Form of Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards for 2007 Awards
(filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference).*
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10.26 Terms of First Financial Bancorp. Short-Term Incentive Plan (2009) (incorporated herein by
reference to the Form 8-K filed on April 16, 2009).*

10.27 First Financial Bancorp. 2009 Employee Stock Plan (filed as Appendix A to the DEF 14
Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 23, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.28 First Financial Bancorp. 2009 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan (filed as Appendix B to the
DEF 14 Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 23, 2009 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

10.29 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards for 2009 Awards under the First Financial
Bancorp. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and Employees (filed as Exhibit 10.30 for
the Form 10-Q filed on November 16, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.30 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards for Awards under the First Financial
Bancorp.  2009 Employee Stock Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.31 for the Form 10-Q filed on
November 16, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.31 Executive Supplemental Savings Agreement between Claude E. Davis and First Financial
Bancorp. Dated August 25, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the Form10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.32 Form of Amended and Restated Agreement for Restricted Stock Award (2009) for
NEOs/Top Five Compensated Employees (filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the Form10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.33 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards under the First Financial Bancorp. 2009
Employee Plan (3-year vesting/accrual of dividends).*

10.34 Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Awards under the First Financial Bancorp. 2009
Non-Employee Directors Stock Plan.*

14 First Financial Bancorp. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as amended April 27, 2010
(filed as Exhibit 14 to the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporated
herein by reference).

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 filed herewith.

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith.

 32.2 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 furnished herewith.
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First Financial will furnish, without charge, to a security holder upon request a copy of the documents and will furnish
any other Exhibit upon payment of reproductions costs.  Unless as otherwise noted, documents incorporated by
reference involve File No. 000-12379.

* Compensatory plans or arrangements.
+ Similar agreements between the Company and NEOs J. Franklin Hall and Samuel J. Munafo exist, the material
differences which are disclosed in the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC on Schedule 14A on
April 19, 2009.
++ A similar agreement between the Company and NEO Gregory A. Gehlmann exists, the material differences which
are disclosed in the Company’s definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC on Schedule 14A on April 19, 2009.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

FIRST FINANCIAL BANCORP.
(Registrant)

   /s/ J. Franklin Hall   /s/ Anthony M. Stollings
J. Franklin Hall Anthony M. Stollings
Executive Vice President and Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting
Chief Financial Officer Officer, and Controller

Date 8/9/10 Date 8/9/10
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